
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded

Principal Scrutiny Adviser:
Steven Courtney
Tel: 24 74707

Produced on Recycled Paper

A

SCRUTINY BOARD (STRATEGY AND RESOURCES)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Thursday, 22nd June, 2017 at 10.00 am

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.)

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

S Bentley Weetwood;
A Garthwaite Headingley;

P Grahame (Chair) Cross Gates and Whinmoor;
P Harrand Alwoodley;

J McKenna Armley;
D Nagle Rothwell;
A Smart Armley;
A Sobel Moortown;

E Tunnicliffe Roundhay;
T Wilford Farnley and Wortley;
R Wood Calverley and Farsley;

Public Document Pack



B

A G E N D A

Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

1  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded).

(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting).

2  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which 
officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the 
officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following 
resolution:-

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:

No exempt items have been identified.



Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

C

3  LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.)

4  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

5  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES

To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes.

6  MINUTES - 22 MAY 2017

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 22 May 2017.

1 - 4

7  SCRUTINY BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE

To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny Support setting out the 
Scrutiny Board’s Terms of Reference.

5 - 34

8  CO-OPTED MEMBERS

To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny Support setting out the 
available options for appointing co-opted members 
to the Scrutiny Board.

35 - 
38



Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

D

9  SOURCES OF WORK

To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny Support introducing a 
range of information to help identify priorities and 
work items for Scrutiny Board (Strategy and 
Resources) work schedule 2017/18. 

39 - 
62

10  FINANCIAL HEALTH MONITORING

To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny Support introducing a 
suite of financial reports due to be presented and 
considered by the Executive Board at its meeting 
on 21 June 2017.

(Reports to follow)

63 - 
64

11  WORK SCHEDULE

To receive and consider the Scrutiny Board’s draft 
work schedule for the 2017/18 municipal year.

65 - 
72

12  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Friday, 21 July 2017 at 10:30am 
(Pre-meeting for Board Members at 10:00am).



Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

E

THIRD PARTY RECORDING

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those 
not present to see or hear the proceedings either as 
they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of 
those proceedings.  A copy of the recording protocol is 
available from the contacts on the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties – code of practice

a) Any published recording should be 
accompanied by a statement of when and 
where the recording was made, the context 
of the discussion that took place, and a clear 
identification of the main speakers and their 
role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the 
recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the 
proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no 
internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at 
any point but the material between those 
points must be complete.



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Thursday, 22nd June, 2017

SCRUTINY BOARD (STRATEGY AND RESOURCES)

MONDAY, 22ND MAY, 2017

PRESENT: Councillor K Groves in the Chair

Councillors S Bentley, M Harland, 
P Harrand, H Hayden, J McKenna, 
S McKenna, A Sobel, E Tunnicliffe, 
T Wilford and R Wood

93 Late Items 

There were no late items; however there was some supplementary financial 
health monitoring information submitted in relation to agenda item 8 – 
Additional Workforce and Financial Information (minute 98 refers).  

The supplementary information had been provided to all members of the 
Scrutiny Board and published on the Council’s website.

94 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests.  

95 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes 

Apologies for absence had been received from Cllr D Nagle; with Cllr M 
Harland attending as a substitute member.

96 Minutes - 24 April 2017 

The draft minutes of the meeting held on 24 April 2017 were agreed as an 
accurate record of the meeting.  

There were no matters arising discussed at the meeting.

97 Commissioning - draft scrutiny inquiry report 

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support submitted a report that 
introduced the Scrutiny Board’s draft inquiry report and recommendations in 
relation to ‘Commissioning’.

The following were in attendance for this item:

 Cllr James Lewis – Executive Board member for Strategy and 
Resources

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Thursday, 22nd June, 2017

 Cath Roff – Director of Adults and Health
 Mick Ward – Interim Deputy Director, Integrated Commissioning, 

Adults and Health

The Chair introduced the draft report and recommendations as the 
culmination of the Boards work over the previous 18-months, and invited the 
Executive Board member and Director for any specific advice and/or 
comments.

In response, the Executive Board member:

 Welcomed the Board’s draft report, stating it was a useful piece of work 
and the Scrutiny Board had continually presented a useful ‘value for 
money’ challenge in respect of the Council’s commissioning of ‘people 
services’.  

 Highlighted that, although a number of draft recommendations were 
directed at the Director of Adults and Health, it would be useful to 
clarify this was in the capacity as the ‘corporate lead officer’ for 
commissioning, and not specifically related to the role as Director.

 Outlined that, subject to the Scrutiny Board’s final agreement of the 
draft report and recommendations, a cross-departmental / Executive 
Board response would follow.

The Director of Adults and Health responded by confirming the advice 
included in the cover report presented to the Board and outlined an initial 
verbal response to the draft recommendations.

The Chair thanked the Executive Board member and Director for their 
comments, and invited Scrutiny Board members for any further comments or 
suggested amendments to the draft inquiry report.  

RESOLVED –
 

(a) To note the comments and observations made at the meeting.
(b) To agree the draft report and recommendations as presented, subject 

to any minor amendments and/or corrections that may be required.  

98 Additional workforce and financial information 

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support submitted a report that 
introduced additional workforce and financial information identified at the 
previous Board meeting on 24 April 2017.

The following were in attendance for this item:

 Cllr James Lewis – Executive Board member for Strategy and 
Resources

 Alex Watson – Head of Human Resources
 Richard Ellis – Head of Finance (Corporate)

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Thursday, 22nd June, 2017

The Board confirmed that the additional financial information would be better 
discussed once the final financial outturn data for 2016/17 had been 
confirmed.  

The Board subsequently considered the following additional workforce 
information:

 The Council’s expenditure on overtime payments for 2014/15, 1015/16 
and 2016/17.  

 Redundancy in schools
 Employee Engagement results (staff survey) for 2016.

In respect of the ‘redundancy in schools’ information, it was confirmed the 
data did not include any redundancies from Academies and/or Free Schools 
based in Leeds.  The Board agreed to refer the matter to the Scrutiny Board 
(Children and Families) for consideration.  

RESOLVED –
 

(c) To note the additional information provided.
(d) That further consideration be given to the additional financial 

information, once the final financial outturn data for 2016/17 had been 
confirmed.  

(e) That, in respect of the ‘redundancy in schools’ information, the matter 
be referred to the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) for 
consideration.

99 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

It was noted that future meeting dates would be determined in the new 
municipal year.

At the end of the meeting, the Chair thanked all Board members for their work 
and contributions throughout the year.  Board members acknowledged the 
Chair’s remarks and thanked her for her hard work and dedication. 

The meeting closed at 10:35am.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support

Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources) 

Date: 22 June 2017

Subject: Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. This report presents the terms of reference for Scrutiny Board (Strategy and 
Resources) for Members’ information.

Recommendation

2. Members are requested to note the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference.

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  0113 3788666

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



1.0    Purpose of this report

1.1 This report presents the terms of reference for Scrutiny Board (Strategy and 
Resources).

2.0 Background information

Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference

2.1   This year, one document has been developed to define the Terms of Reference of all Scrutiny 
Boards (see Appendix 1).  In doing so, the variations in the Scrutiny Boards’ remit, together 
with their special responsibilities, are now captured within Article 6 of the constitution (see 
Appendix 2).

2.2 More detailed information surrounding the Scrutiny Board’s alignment with relevant 
officer delegated functions is also attached as Appendix 3.  

2.3 In terms of Executive Members, the Scrutiny Board’s role encompasses the areas of 
responsibility assigned to:

 Councillor J Blake (Leader of Council and Executive Member for Economy 
and Culture)
 Setting, supporting and monitoring the Council’s financial strategy
 International relations

 Councillor J Lewis (Executive Member for Resources and Strategy)
 Functions in relation to elections 
 Civic and ceremonial functions of the Council
 Managing effective financial management and controls
 Setting, supporting and monitoring the council’s policies and procedures
 Corporate communications services
 The council’s corporate planning and policy development services, including 

coordination of the Best Council Plan
 The council’s city-wide resilience and emergency planning functions
 Civic Enterprise Leeds services
 Community Infrastructure Levy spending relating to Strategic Fund
 Registrars functions
 Licensing functions
 Local Land Charges functions
 Council tax processing and billing arrangements
 Ensuring effective financial management and controls1

 Legal Services; 
 Democratic Services including support to elected members in their 

responsibilities
 Supporting the corporate governance of the council.

 Councillor M Rafique (Executive Member for Employment, Skills and 
Opportunity)
 Equalities

1 The Chief Officer (Financial Services) has responsibility for these arrangements as Section 151 Officer

Page 6



2.4 In terms of changes to the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference from the previous 
municipal year (i.e. 2016/17), perhaps the most notable is the inclusion of the 
following areas (delegated to the Director of Communities and Environment):

 Equalities;
 Registrars functions; 
 Licensing functions; 
 Local Land Charges functions; and
 Council tax processing and billing arrangements.

3.0 Corporate Considerations

3.1 Consultation and Engagement 

3.1.1 These terms of reference were formally considered and approved by Council on 
25th May 2017.  

3.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration.

3.2.1 In line with the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, the Scrutiny Boards will continue to 
ensure through service review that equality and diversity/cohesion and integration 
issues are considered in decision making and policy formulation.

3.3 Council Policies and the Best Council Plan

3.3.1 The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Board will continue to promote a strategic 
and outward looking Scrutiny function that focuses on the Best Council Plan.

3.4 Resources and Value for Money 

3.4.1 This report has no specific resource and value for money implications.

3.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

3.5.1 This report has no specific legal implications.

3.6 Risk Management

3.6.1 This report has no risk management implications.

4.0  Recommendation

4.1 Members are requested to note the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference.

5.0 Background documents2

5.1 None

2 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Council Committees’ Terms of Reference Appendix 1

Scrutiny Board

The Scrutiny Board is authorised to discharge the following overview and scrutiny 
functions1:

1. to review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken in connection with 
any council or executive function or any matter which affects the authority’s 
area or the inhabitants of that area;2

2. to receive and consider requests for Scrutiny from any source;

3. to review or scrutinise the performance of such Trust / Partnership Boards as 
fall within its remit; 

4. to act as the appropriate Scrutiny Board in relation to the Executive’s initial 
proposals for a relevant plan or strategy within the Budget and Policy 
Framework which falls within its remit;3

5. to review or scrutinise executive decisions that have been Called In;

6. to exercise such special functions as are allocated in Annex 3 to Article 6 – 
Scrutiny Boards; and

7. to make such reports and recommendations as it considers appropriate and to 
receive and monitor formal responses to any reports or recommendations 
made. 

1 In relation to functions set out in Annex 2 to Article 6 – Scrutiny Boards, whether or not those 
functions are concurrently delegated to any other committee or officer.
2 Including matters pertaining to outside bodies and partnerships to which the authority has made 
appointments.
3 In accordance with Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

ARTICLE 6 – SCRUTINY BOARDS

6.1 ROLE

The Council will appoint Scrutiny Boards as set out in Annex 2 to this Article to 
exercise functions conferred by section 9F of the Local Government Act 2000 and in 
accordance with the National Health Service Act 2006, in accordance with their terms 
of reference1. 

6.2 VISION FOR SCRUTINY

The Council has adopted a Vision for Scrutiny, which is attached at Annex 1.

6.3 ROLE OF SCRUTINY

Policy development and review

Within their Terms of Reference all Scrutiny Boards may:

 assist the Council and the Executive in the development of the Budget and 
Policy Framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues; 

 conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of policy 
issues and possible options;

 consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community 
participation in the development of policy options; 

 question Members of the Executive and Directors about their views on issues 
and proposals affecting the area; and

 liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether national, 
regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are enhanced by 
collaborative working.

Scrutiny

Within their terms of reference all Scrutiny Boards may:

 make recommendations to the Executive and/or appropriate committees and/or 
Council arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process;

 review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and 
invite reports from them by requesting them to address the Scrutiny Board and 
local people about their activities and performance; and

 question and gather evidence.

1 As set out at Part 3 Section 2A of the Constitution

Appendix 2

Page 11



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

6.4 SCRUTINY OFFICER

The Council has designated the post of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support, 
as Scrutiny Officer2.

The functions of the Scrutiny Officer are:
(a) to promote the role of the Scrutiny Boards;
(b) to provide support to the Scrutiny Boards and their members3;
(c) to provide support and guidance to Members (including Executive Members), 
and officers4, in relation to the Scrutiny Boards’ functions;
(d) to report to Council5 annually about how the authority has carried out its 
overview and scrutiny functions.

6.5 PROCEEDINGS 

Scrutiny Boards will conduct their proceedings in accordance with the Scrutiny 
Board Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

6.6 SCRUTINY BOARD CHAIRS

The Chair of each of the Scrutiny Boards shall be appointed in accordance with the 
Council Procedure Rules.

Group spokespersons shall not be appointed to Chair a Scrutiny Board which 
corresponds to the same portfolio.6

2 Under Section 9FB Local Government Act 2000.  
3 The Scrutiny Officer shall exercise overall responsibility for the finances made available to Scrutiny Boards.
4 The Scrutiny Officer shall exercise overall responsibility for the work programme of the officers employed to 
support the work of the Scrutiny Boards.
5 After consultation with the relevant Scrutiny Chairs
6 This does not apply to those groups who have less than 10% of the membership of the Council

Page 12



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

6.7 CO-OPTED MEMBERS

Education Representatives

The following shall be appointed as voting representatives on each relevant 
Scrutiny Board dealing with educational matters7:

(a) For a term of office which does not go beyond the next Annual Meeting of the 
Council:
 one Church of England diocese representative
 one Roman Catholic diocese representative

(b)   For a four year term of office:
 three parent governor representatives

If the relevant Scrutiny Board deals with other matters, these representatives shall 
not vote on those other matters.  They may stay in the meeting and speak.

Crime and Disorder Committee

Subject to the following provisions, the Scrutiny Board allocated special 
responsibility for crime and disorder may co-opt additional members to serve on the 
Board8.
 The Scrutiny Board cannot in this capacity co-opt an Executive Member.
 Unless the Scrutiny Board decides otherwise, any such co-opted member shall 

not be entitled to vote.
 The Scrutiny Board may limit a co-opted person’s membership to the exercise of 

the Board’s powers in relation to a particular matter or type of matter.
 The Scrutiny Board may withdraw the co-opted person’s membership at any 

time.

Additional co-opted members

The following may be appointed to each Scrutiny Board9:

(a) For a term of office which does not go beyond the next Annual Meeting of the 
Council:
 up to five non-voting co-opted members

(b) For a term of office which relates to a particular Scrutiny Inquiry:
 up to two non-voting co-opted members 

7 A Scrutiny Board is a relevant Scrutiny Board where the Board’s functions relate wholly or in part to any 
education functions which are the responsibility of the authority’s executive
8 The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009
9 Co-option would normally only be appropriate where the co-opted member has some specialist skill or 
knowledge, which would be of assistance to the Scrutiny Board.

Page 13



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

ANNEX 1
Vision for Scrutiny at Leeds

“To promote democratic engagement through the provision of an influential 
scrutiny function which is held in high regard by its many stakeholders and  
which achieves measurable service improvements which add value for the 
people of Leeds through a member led process of examination and review" 

To achieve this Scrutiny will follow the nationally agreed ‘Four Principles of Good Scrutiny’;
1. Provide ‘critical friend’ challenge to decision makers, through holding them to 

account for decisions made, engaging in policy review and policy development; 
2. Promote Scrutiny as a means by which the voice and concerns of the public can be 

heard; 
3. Ensure Scrutiny is carried out by ‘independent minded’  Board members; 
4. Improve public services by ensuring reviews of policy and service performance are 

focused.

To succeed Council recognises that the following conditions need to be present;
 Parity of esteem between the Executive and Scrutiny 
 Co-operation with statutory partners
 Member leadership and engagement
 Genuine non-partisan working
 Evidence based conclusions and recommendations
 Effective dedicated officer support
 Supportive Directors and senior officer culture

Council agrees that it is incumbent upon Scrutiny Boards to recognise that 
resources to support the Scrutiny function are, (like all other Council functions), 
under considerable pressure and that requests from Scrutiny Boards cannot always 
be met.  Therefore Council agrees that constructive consultation should take place 
between the Executive and Scrutiny about the availability of resources prior to any 
work being undertaken.  
Consequently, when establishing their work programmes Scrutiny Boards should

 Seek the advice of the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive 
Member about available resources

 Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already 
having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue (e.g. Plans Panel, 
Housing Advisory Board, established member working groups, other Scrutiny 
Boards) 

 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add 
value and can be delivered within our agreed time frame.

Page 14



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

ANNEX 2
Officer oversight (by reference to the Officer Delegation Scheme)Scrutiny Board Executive Portfolio oversight External oversight 

Council Functions Executive Functions
Strategy and 
Resources 

 Economy and Culture (Cllr 
Blake)

 Resources and Strategy (Cllr J 
Lewis)

 Employment, Skills and 
Opportunities (Cllr Rafique)

 Chief Executive
 Director of Resources and Housing
 Chief Officer (Financial Services)
 City Solicitor
 Director of Communities and 

Environment

 Chief Executive (1-2) 
 Director of Resources and Housing 

(1-9)
 City Solicitor (1-3)
 Chief Officer (Financial Services)(1)
 Director of Communities and 

Environment (2, 15 – 17, 19)

Infrastructure and 
Investment

 Regeneration, Transport and 
Planning (Cllr R Lewis)

Risk management 
authorities (defined by 
S6 Flood and Water 
Management Act 
2010)

 Director of City Development (a, d-
w)

 Chief Planning Officer

 Chief Executive (4)
 Director of Communities and 

Environment (9)
 Director of City Development (1, 3, 

7-8, 11)
 Chief Planning Officer (1-4)

Inclusive Growth, 
Culture and Sport

 Economy and Culture (Cllr 
Blake)

 Regeneration, Transport and 
Planning (Cllr R Lewis)

 Resources and Strategy (Cllr J 
Lewis)

 Employment, Skills and 
Opportunity (Cllr Rafique)

 Director of City Development (b,c)  Chief Executive (3)
 Director of City Development (4-6, 

9-10)
 Director of Children and Families (210)

10 14-16 skills development only

P
age 15



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

Scrutiny Board Executive Portfolio oversight External oversight Officer oversight (by reference to the Officer Delegation Scheme)
Council Functions Executive Functions

Environment, 
Housing and 
Communities

 Communities (Cllr Coupar)
 Environment and Sustainability 

(Cllr Yeadon)

Responsible 
authorities (defined by 
S5 Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998)

  Director of Communities and 
Environment (1, 3-8, 10-14, 18)

 Director of Resources and Housing 
(10-12)

 Director of City Development (111, 
2)

Children and Families  Children and Families (Cllr 
Mulherin)

 Director of Children and Families  Director of Children and Families 
(1, 212, 3)

Adults and Health  Health, Wellbeing and Adults 
(Cllr Charlwood)

Relevant NHS bodies 
or health service 
providers including:-
CCGs 
NHS Trusts 
Healthwatch Leeds

 None  Director of Adults and Health (1 - 
8)

 Director of Public Health (1-6)

11 Relating to provision of frontline services only
12 Excluding 14-16 skills development

P
age 16



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

ANNEX 3

SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF SCRUTINY BOARDS

1 – Flood risk Management

The Scrutiny Board (Infrastructure and Investment) is allocated special 
responsibility for flood risk management namely:-

 To review and scrutinise the exercise by risk management authorities13 of flood risk 
management functions14 which may affect the Leeds City Council area15.

2 – Crime and Disorder

The Scrutiny Board (Environment, Housing and Communities) is allocated special 
responsibility for crime and disorder namely:-

 To exercise the functions of a crime and disorder committee16, including the 
following:

a) To review or scrutinise the exercise of crime and disorder functions17 by 
responsible authorities18; and

b) To review or scrutinise any local crime or disorder matter19 raised by a 
Member.

3 – Health

The Scrutiny Board (Adults and Health) is allocated special responsibility for health 
namely:-

 to review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation 
of the health service in its area and to make reports and recommendations on any 
such matter it has reviewed or scrutinised;

 to comment on, make recommendations about, or report to the Secretary of State in 
writing about such proposals as are referred to the authority by a relevant NHS 
body or a relevant health service provider; 

 to respond to consultation by any relevant NHS body or health service provider; and

 to nominate Members to any joint overview and scrutiny committee appointed by 
the authority.20 

13 As defined by Section 6 Flood and Water Management Act 2010
14 As defined by Section 4 Flood and Water Management Act 2010
15 In accordance with Section 9FH Local Government Act 2000
16 In accordance with Section 19 Police and Justic Act 2006
17 As defined by Section 6 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (formulating and implementing crime and disorder 
strategies)
18 These are the authorities responsible for crime and disorder strategies set out in Section 5 Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998.
19 Any matter concerning – 

a) crime and disorder (including in particular forms of crime and disorder that involve anti-social 
behaviour or other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); or

b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in that area.
20 such nominations to reflect the political balance of the Board.

Page 17



Article 6 - Scrutiny Boards  

Matters which fall within the terms of reference of the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social 
Services and Public Health) include:

 arrangements made by local NHS bodies to secure hospital and community 
health services to the inhabitants of the authority’s area and the quality and 
safety of such services;

 the provision of family health services, personal medical services, personal 
dental services, pharmacy and NHS ophthalmic services;

 arrangements made by the authority for public health, health promotion, health 
improvement and for addressing health inequalities;

 the planning of health services by NHS bodies, including plans made in co-
operation with local authority’s Health and Wellbeing Board for improving both 
the health of the local population and the provision of health care to that 
population; 

 any matter referred by Healthwatch Leeds; and

 the arrangements made by relevant NHS bodies and health service providers for 
consulting and involving patients and the public.   

The Scrutiny Board may make recommendations to the authority, relevant NHS bodies, or 
relevant health service providers arising from the scrutiny process.

4– Residual Responsibility

The Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources) is allocated residual responsibility for 
any function not otherwise allocated to a Scrutiny Board.

Page 18



Appendix 3

Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions) relevant to the Scrutiny Board 
(Strategy and Resources)

The Chief Executive is authorised1 to discharge any function of the 
Executive not otherwise delegated to a Director including the 
following functions in relation to 2 

1) Functions in relation to elections including:- 
a) The registration of electors;
b) Elections and referenda in relation to local matters, including:-

i) reviews of polling districts, places and stations;
c) Assisting with and responding to consultation in relation to boundary reviews 

of all types, including:-
i) parliamentary constituency reviews; 
ii) electoral reviews;
iii) principal area boundary reviews;
iv) structural reviews; and

d) Community governance reviews.

2) Civic and ceremonial functions of the Council including:-
a) Provision of support to the Lord Mayor;
b) Ceremonial occasions; and
c) Authorisation of use of Council’s Crest.

1 Save where the Leader or the relevant Portfolio Holder has directed or the Director considers that 
the matter should be referred to Executive Board for consideration.
2 Together with similar and ancillary functions which have not been delegated to another Director.

Page 19



Appendix 3

Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions) relevant to the Scrutiny Board 
(Strategy and Resources)

The Director of Resources and Housing is authorised3 to discharge 
the following functions4 

1) Setting, supporting and monitoring the council’s financial strategy.

2) Managing effective financial management and controls, including:-
a) collecting council tax and business rates, and collecting other money that is 

owed to the council;
b) administration of pensions; and
c) insurance for the council.

3) Setting, supporting and monitoring the council’s policies and procedures 
for managing:-
a) budgets;
b) human resources (including health and safety);
c) information and communications technology;
d) information governance;
e) procurement and purchasing;
f) projects and programmes;
g) Joint Strategic Needs Analysis;
h) performance and service improvement; and
i) risk and business continuity.

4) Corporate communications services, including:-
a) the council’s communications strategy and policy;
b) internal and external communications; and
c) press and media relations.

5) International Relations

6) The council’s corporate planning and policy development services, 
including coordination of the Best Council Plan

7) The council’s city-wide resilience and emergency planning functions

8) Civic Enterprise Leeds services including:-
a) business support, facilities management, and similar services for the council 

and its civic and community buildings and office accommodation; and
b) trading these services to schools and other external partners (including the 

approval of business cases as and when required for the exercise of trading 
powers)5.

9) Community Infrastructure Levy spending relating to Strategic Fund.

3 Save where the Leader or the relevant Portfolio Holder has directed or the Director considers that 
the matter should be referred to Executive Board for consideration.
4 Together with similar and ancillary functions which have not been delegated to another Director.
5Subject to consultation with the appropriate Members.

Page 20



Appendix 3

Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions) relevant to the Scrutiny Board 
(Strategy and Resources)

The City Solicitor is authorised6 to discharge the following 
functions in relation to 7 

1) Legal Services including:- 
a) Provision of legal advice and related support services;
b) Functions relating to the role of Solicitor to the Council including:-

i) taking any action intended to give effect to a decision of the Executive 
(taken under the Leader’s executive arrangements);

ii)  the commencement, defence, withdrawal or settlement of proceedings;  
iii) the authorisation of Council officers to conduct legal matters in court; and

c) The issue of appropriate indemnities to Directors in relation to Public Private 
Partnership / Private Finance Initiative and other major property and 
infrastructure related projects where a Director:-
i) Signs a certificate under the Local Government (Contracts) Act 1997; or
ii) Acts as a director to the LEP or LIFTco.

2) Democratic Services including support to elected members in their 
responsibilities, particularly in respect of:-
a) The Leader of Council;
b) Councillors via group support offices;
c) The full Council meeting;
d) Executive Board;
e) Committees appointed by full Council;
f) Scrutiny of the Executive;
g) Training and development of councillors; and
h) Management and oversight of the Members’ Allowances Scheme.

3) Supporting the corporate governance of the council, particularly in respect 
of:-
a) The requirements of the Members’ Code of Conduct;
b) Compliance with access to information requirements;
c) Upkeep of the constitution; and
d) Preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.

6 Save where the Leader or the relevant Portfolio Holder has directed or the Director considers that 
the matter should be referred to Executive Board for consideration.
7 Together with similar and ancillary functions which have not been delegated to another Director.

Page 21



Appendix 3

Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions) relevant to the Scrutiny Board 
(Strategy and Resources)

The Chief Officer (Financial Services) is authorised8 to discharge 
the following functions9 

1) Ensuring effective financial management and controls10, including:-
a) Reporting on the robustness of the Council’s financial plans;
b) managing the Council’s borrowing and investment requirements;
c) managing and monitoring the Council’s revenue budget and capital 

programme;
d) preparation and closure of the Council’s financial accounts;
e) managing the Council’s tax affairs; and
f) internal audit.

8 Save where the Leader or the relevant Portfolio Holder has directed or the Director considers that 
the matter should be referred to Executive Board for consideration.
9 Together with similar and ancillary functions which have not been delegated to another Director.
10 The Chief Officer (Financial Services) has responsibility for these arrangements as Section 151 
Officer

Page 22



Appendix 3

Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions) relevant to the Scrutiny Board 
(Strategy and Resources)

The Director of Communities and Environment is authorised11 to 
discharge the following functions12 

2) Equalities. 

15) Registrars functions including:-
a) Registration of births, deaths, marriages and civil partnerships; and 
b) Provision of civic weddings, civil partnerships and citizenship ceremonies.

16) Licensing functions including:-
a) Taxi and Private hire licensing functions and related enforcement activities;
b) The administration and enforcement of licences for entertainment, gambling 

and the sale of alcohol; and
c) Miscellaneous licences.

17) Local Land Charges functions including:-
a) Maintenance of the Local Land Charges Register; and 
b) Responsibility for processing local authority searches.

19) Council tax processing and billing arrangements including:-
a) Annual billing;
b) Discount schemes including single person discounts;
c) Administration of s13 decisions; and
d) Empty property charges. 

11 Save where the Leader or the relevant Portfolio Holder has directed or the Director considers that 
the matter should be referred to Executive Board for consideration.
12 Together with similar and ancillary functions which have not been delegated to another Director.

Page 23



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

Chief Executive

1. The Chief Executive is the Head of Paid Service for the Council.

2. The Chief Executive is the Electoral Registration Officer for the Council, and the 
Returning Officer for local elections.

The Chief Executive13 is authorised to discharge the following Council (non-executive) 
functions:

Functions relating to Elections

(a) (To assign officers in relation to requisitions of 
the registration officer

Section 52(4) of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983

(b) (To provide assistance at European 
Parliamentary elections

Section 6(7) and (8) of the European 
Parliamentary Elections Act 2002

(c) To divide constituency into polling districts Section 18A to 18E of and Schedule A1 to   
the Representation of the People Act 
1983

(d) To divide electoral divisions into polling 
districts at local government elections

Section 31 of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983

(e) Powers in respect of holding of elections Section 39(4) of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983

(f) To pay expenses properly incurred by 
electoral registration officer

Section 54 of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983

(g) To fill vacancies in the event of insufficient 
nominations

Section 21 of the Representation of the 
People Act 1985

(h) To declare vacancy in office in certain cases Section 86 of the Local Government Act 
1972

(i) To give public notice of a casual vacancy Section 87 of the Local Government Act 
1972

(j) To submit proposals to the Secretary of State 
for an order under section 10 (pilot schemes 
for local elections in England and Wales) of 
the Representation of the People Act 2000

Section 10 of the Representation of the 
People Act 2000

(k) Functions relating to community governance14

i. Duties relating to community governance 
reviews

ii. Functions relating to community 

Section 79 of the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

Sections 80, 83 to 85 of the Local 

13 The fact that a function has been delegated to the Chief Executive does not require the Chief Executive to 
give the matter his/her personal attention and the Chief Executive may arrange for such delegation to be 
exercised by an officer of suitable experience and seniority.  However the Chief Executive remains 
responsible for any decision taken pursuant to such arrangements.
14 Functions relating to making of recommendations under section 87 – 92  of the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (Item 5 Paragraph EB of Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities 
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000/2853 ) are reserved to the relevant committee 
that is responsible for making recommendations to full Council.

Page 24

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=71&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I7F21775095D311DC95FFFE342170B1DA
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=71&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I7F21EC8095D311DC95FFFE342170B1DA
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=71&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I7F23732095D311DC95FFFE342170B1DA


Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

governance petitions.

iii. Functions relating to terms of reference of 
review

iv. Power to undertake a community 
governance review.

v. Duties when undertaking review.

vi. Duty to publicise outcome of review.

vii. Duty to send two copies of order to 
Secretary of State and Electoral 
Commission.

Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007

Sections 81(4) to (6) of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007

Section 82 of the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

Section 93 to 95 of the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007

Section 96 of the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

Section 98(1) of the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007

(l) Functions relating to consultation and
notification processes in relation to changing
the name of an electoral area15

S59 of the Local Government and
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

(m) To dissolve small parish councils Section 10 of the Local Government Act 
1972

(n) To make orders for grouping parishes, 
dissolving groups and separating parishes 
from groups

Section 11 of the Local Government Act 
1972

(o) To make temporary appointments to parish 
councils

Section 91 of the Local Government Act 
1972

Functions relating to changing governance arrangements

(a) To secure that copies of a document setting 
out new governance arrangements are 
available for public inspection, and to publish 
a notice about the change 

Section 9KC Local Government Act 2000

(b) To take any step,  subject to timely 
consultation with General Purposes 
Committee in advance of any action being 
taken, under or for the purposes of complying 
with any order from the Secretary of State 
under Section 9N of the Local Government 
Act 2000, or related regulations 

Section 9N Local Government Act 2000

15 The function of passing a resolution to change the name of an electoral area under s59(1) of the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 is reserved to full Council

Page 25

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=71&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I7F2288C095D311DC95FFFE342170B1DA
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=71&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I7F2791D095D311DC95FFFE342170B1DA
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=71&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I7F287C3095D311DC95FFFE342170B1DA
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=71&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IE9125AF095D111DC95FFFE342170B1DA


Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

Director of Resources and Housing

1. Subject to the Exception listed below, the Director of Resources and Housing16 is 
authorised to discharge the following Council (non-executive) functions: 

Functions relating to Human Resources

(a) Functions relating to local government 
pensions, etc

Regulations under section 7, 12 or 24 
of the Superannuation Act 1972 

(b) To make arrangements to consider 
and determine employee appeals in 
relation to grievances, grading and 
dismissal17

Section 112 Local Government Act 
1972

(c) To determine employee terms and 
conditions

Section 112 Local Government Act 
1972

Functions relating to standing orders

(a) To make standing orders in relation to 
Officer Employment 

Section 106 of, and paragraph 42 of
Schedule 12 to the Local Government
Act 1972

(b) To make standing orders as to
contracts

Section 135 of the Local Government
Act 1972

Regulatory functions
(a) To issue licences authorising the use 

of land as a caravan site (“site 
licences”)

Section 3(3) of the Caravan Sites and 
Control of Development Act 1960

(b) To license the use of moveable 
dwellings and camping sites

Section 269(1) of the Public Health 
Act 1936

16 The fact that a function has been delegated to the Director does not require the Director to give the 
matter his/her personal attention and the Director may arrange for  such delegation to be exercised by an 
officer of suitable experience and seniority, however, the Director remains responsible for any decision 
taken pursuant to such arrangements.
17 Except in relation to those which are to be determined by the Employment Committee.

Page 26



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

Chief Officer (Financial Services)

1. Subject to the Exception listed below, the Chief Officer (Financial Services)18 is 
authorised to discharge the following Council (non-executive) functions19: 

Functions relating to standing orders

(a) To make standing orders in relation to 
Finance 

Section 106 of, and paragraph 42 of
Schedule 12 to the Local Government
Act 1972

18 The fact that a function has been delegated to the Chief Officer does not require the Chief Officer to give 
the matter his/her personal attention and the Chief Officer may arrange for  such delegation to be exercised 
by an officer of suitable experience and seniority, however, the Chief Officer remains responsible for any 
decision taken pursuant to such arrangements.
19 The Chief Officer (Financial Services) has responsibility for these functions as the Council’s S151 Officer.

Page 27



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

City Solicitor

1. The City Solicitor is the Monitoring Officer for the Council.

2. The City Solicitor 20 is authorised to discharge the following Local Choice 
Functions which have been assigned to full Council (see Part 3 Section 1 of the 
Constitution):

(a) To appoint review boards under the Social Security Act 199821

3. The City Solicitor is authorised to discharge the following Council (non-executive) 
functions: 

To make standing orders in relation to 
Access to Information

Section 106 of, and paragraph 42 of 
Schedule 12 to the Local Government 
Act 1972

4. Appointments to Committees Boards and Panels

The City Solicitor is authorised to appoint members to vacancies during the 
period between the local elections and the Annual Council meeting, in 
consultation with appropriate whips, in order to secure that meetings 
necessary to be held during that period can proceed with adequate and 
appropriate membership levels.

5. Provision of Legal Services

The City Solicitor is authorised to take any action intended to give effect to a 
decision of the Council (including decisions taken by a Council committee in 
accordance with its terms of reference or by a Director in accordance with this 
scheme of delegation.)

20 The fact that a function has been delegated to the City Solicitor does not require the City Solicitor to 
give the matter his/her personal attention and the City Solicitor may arrange for such delegation to be 
exercised by an officer of suitable experience and seniority.  However the City Solicitor remains 
responsible for any decision taken pursuant to such arrangements.
21 s34 (4) Social Security Act 1998

Page 28



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

Director of Communities and Environment

Subject to the exceptions listed below, the Director of Communities and Environment22 
is authorised to discharge the following Council (non-executive) functions:

1. Regulatory Functions

(a) To approve premises for the
solemnisation of marriages

Section 46A of the Marriage Act 1949
and the Marriages (Approved
Premises) Regulations 1995(SI
1995/510)

(b) To license premises for acupuncture, 
tattooing, ear-piercing and electrolysis

Sections 13 to 17 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982

(c) To license premises for the breeding 
of dogs

Section 1 of the Breeding of Dogs Act 
1973 and Section 1 of the Breeding 
and Sale of Dogs (Welfare) Act 1999

(d) To license pet shops and other 
establishment where animals are bred 
or kept for the purposes of carrying on 
a business

Section 1 of the Pet Animals Act 1951, 
section 1 of the Animal Boarding 
Establishments Act 1963, the Riding 
Establishments Act 1964 and 1970, 
section 1 of the Breeding of Dogs Act 
1973 and sections 1 and 8 of the 
Breeding and Sale of Dogs (Welfare) 
Act 1999

(e) To register animal trainers and 
exhibitors

Section 1 of the Performing Animals 
(Regulation) Act 1925

(f) To license zoos Section 1 of the Zoo Licensing Act 
1981

(g) To license dangerous wild animals Section 1 of the Dangerous Wild 
Animals Act 1976

(h) To grant consent for the operation of a 
loudspeaker

Schedule 2 to the Noise and Statutory 
Nuisance Act 1993

(i) To issue licences for the movement of 
pigs

Article 12 of the Pigs (Records, 
Identification and Movement) Order 
1995 (SI 1996/11)

(j) To license the sale of pigs Article 13 of the Pigs (Records, 
Identification and Movement) Order 
1995

(k) To license collecting centres for the 
movement of pigs

Article 14 of the Pigs (Records, 
Identification and Movement) Order 
1995

(l) To issue a licence to move cattle from 
a market

Article 5(2) of the Cattle Identification 
Regulations 1998 (SI 1998/871)

22 The fact that a function has been delegated to the Director does not require the Director to give the 
matter his/her personal attention and the Director may arrange for such delegation to be exercised by 
an officer of suitable experience and seniority.  However, the Director remains responsible for any 
decision taken pursuant to such arrangements.

Page 29



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

(m) To sanction use of parts of buildings 
for storage of celluloid

Section 1 of the Celluloid and 
Cinematograph Film Act 1922

(n) Duty to enforce Chapter 1 and 
regulations made under it

Section 10(3) of the  Health Act 2006

(o) Power to authorise officers Section 10(5) of, and paragraph 1 of 
Schedule 2 to, the Health Act 2006

(p) Functions related to fixed penalty 
notices

Paragraphs 13,15 and 16 of Schedule 
1 to the Health  Act 2006.  Smoke-free 
(Vehicle Operators and Penalty 
Notices) Regulations 2007 (SI 
2006/760) 

(q) Power to transfer enforcement 
functions to another enforcement 
authority

Smoke-free(Premises and 
Enforcement) Regulations 2006 (SI 
2006/3368)

(r) To license pleasure boats and 
pleasure vessels

Section 94 of the Public Health Acts 
Amendment Act 1907

(s) To authorise erection of stiles etc on 
footpaths or bridleways23

Section 147 of the Highways Act 1980

(t) To create footpath bridleway or 
restricted byway by agreement

Section 25 of the Highways Act 1980

(u) To create footpaths bridleways and 
restricted byways

Section 26 of the Highways Act 1980

(v) Duty to keep register of information 
with respect to maps, statements and 
declarations

Section 31A of the Highways Act 1980

(w) To stop up footpaths bridleways and 
restricted byways

Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980

(x) To determine application for public 
path extinguishment order

Sections 118ZA and 118C(2) of the 
Highways Act 1980

(y) To make a rail crossing 
extinguishment order

Section 118A of the Highways Act 
1980

(z) To divert footpaths bridleways and 
restricted byways

Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980

(aa) To make a public path diversion order Sections 119ZA and 119C(4) of the 
Highways Act 1980

(bb) To make a rail crossing diversion 
order

Section 119A of the Highways Act 
1980

(cc) To make a special diversion order Section 119B of the Highways Act 
1980

(dd) To require applicant for order to enter 
into agreement

Section 119C(3) of the Highways Act 
1980

(ee) To make an SSSI diversion order Section 12B of the Highways Act 1980

23 Functions (v) – (xx) are limited to areas contained within the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way. 
Functions (u), (jj), (kk) and (ss) are also delegated to the Director of City Development whose powers 
are not limited to areas contained within the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way.

Page 30



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

(ff) To keep register with respect to 
applications under sections 118ZA, 
118C, 119ZA and 119C of the 
Highways Act 1980

Section 121B of the Highways Act 
1980

(gg) To decline to determine certain 
applications

Section 121C of the Highways Act 
1980

(hh) To assert and protect the rights of the 
public to use and enjoyment of 
highways

Section 130 of the Highways Act 1980

(ii) To apply for variation of order under 
section 130B of the Highway Act 1980

Section 130B(7) of the Highways Act 
1980

(jj) To authorise temporary disturbance of 
surface of footpath bridleway or 
restricted byway

Section 135 Highways Act 1980

(kk) To divert footpath bridleway or 
restricted byway temporarily

Section 135A of the Highways Act 
1980

(ll) To extinguish certain public rights of 
way

Section 32 of the Acquisition of Land 
Act 1981

(mm) To keep definitive map and statement 
under review

Section 53 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981

(nn) To include modifications in other 
orders

Section 53A of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981

(oo) To keep register of prescribed 
information with respect to 
applications under section 53(5) of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Section 53B of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981

(pp) To prepare map and statement by way 
of consolidation of definitive map and 
statement

Section 57A of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981

(qq) To designate footpath as cycle track Section 3 of the Cycle Tracks Act 
1984

(rr) To extinguish public right of way over 
land acquired for clearance

Section 294 of the Housing Act 1981

(ss) To authorise stopping up or diversion 
of footpath bridleway or restricted 
byway

Section 257 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990

(tt) To extinguish public rights of way over 
land held for planning purposes

Section 258 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990

(uu) To enter into agreements with respect 
to means of access

Section 35 of the Countryside and 
Rights of Way Act 2000

(vv) To provide access in absence of 
agreement

Section 37 of the Countryside and 
Rights of Way Act 2000

Exceptions24

The Director of Communities and Environment is not authorised to discharge the 
function above where objections have been received.

24 Under this delegation scheme (Council functions). The General Purposes Committee may however 
arrange for the discharge of any of its functions by the Director of Communities and Environment - 
(Section 101(2) Local Government Act 1972.

Page 31



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

2. Functions of the Licensing Authority delegated by Full Council

Subject to the exception set out below, the Director of Communities and 
Environment is authorised to discharge the functions of the licensing authority as set 
out below:-

(a) Any function of a Licensing Authority25 Licensing Act 2003 and any 
regulations or orders made under that 
Act26.

(b) Powers and functions relating to late 
night levy requirements

Chapter 2 of Part 2 of the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011 and any regulations made 
under that Chapter.

Exceptions:
 any function of the Licensing Authority reserved to full Council27; 

3. Functions of the Licensing Authority delegated by Licensing Committee

Subject to the exceptions listed below, the Director of Communities and Environment 
is authorised to discharge the licensing functions28 of the licensing authority as set 
out below:-

(a) Any function of a Licensing Authority Licensing Act 2003 and any 
regulations or orders made under 
that Act29. 

(b) Powers and functions relating to late 
night levy requirements

Chapter 2 of Part 2 of the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011 and any regulations made 
under that chapter

(c) Duty to comply with requirement to 
provide information to Gambling 
Commission.

Section 29 of the Gambling Act 2005

(d) Functions relating to the exchange of 
information

Section 30 of the Gambling Act 2005

(e) Functions relating to occasional use 
notices

Section 39 of the Gambling Act 2005

25 These functions will be carried out to support those matters which cannot be delegated by the 
Licensing Authority.
26 Including functions which, by virtue of the Gambling Act 2005 Act are delegated to the Licensing 
Committee.
27 Part 3, Section 2A of the Constitution sets out licensing functions reserved to full Council, as 
licensing authority under the 2011 Act.
28 “Licensing functions” means functions under the Licensing Act 2003 Act, the Gambling Act 2005 
2005  and the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.
29 Including functions which, by virtue of the 2005 Act are delegated to the Licensing Committee.

Page 32



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

(f) Power to designate officer of a 
licensing authority as an authorised 
person for a purpose relating to 
premises

Section 304 of the Gambling Act 
2005

(g) Power to institute criminal 
proceedings

Section 346 of the Gambling Act 
2005

(h) Power to exchange information Section 350 of the Gambling Act 
2005

(i) Functions relating to the registration 
and regulation of small society 
lotteries

Part 5 of Schedule 11 to the 
Gambling Act 2005

Exceptions:
 any function of the Licensing Authority30 reserved to full Council31; 
 any function of the Licensing Authority where full Council has referred a matter to 

a committee other than the Licensing Committee32; 
 any function of the Licensing Authority reserved to the Licensing Committee;
 any function of the Licensing Authority within the terms of reference of the 

Licensing Sub-committees33;and
 to object when the Authority is consultee and not the relevant authority 

considering an application under the 2003 Act

4. Functions related to the Licensing Functions delegated by Licensing 
Committee34

Subject to the exceptions listed below, the Director of Communities and Environment 
is authorised to discharge the functions set out in the following table which are 
delegated to the Director by Licensing Committee35

(a) To license hackney carriages and
private hire vehicles

(a) As to hackney carriages, the Town
Police Clauses Act 1847 as extended
by section 171 of the Public Health 
Act
1875 and section 15 of the Transport
Act 1985 and sections 47, 57, 58, 60
and 79 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
(b) As to private hire vehicles, 
sections
48, 57, 58, 60 and 79 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976

30“Licensing functions”  - see footnote 6 above
31 Part 3, Section 2A of the Constitution sets out licensing functions reserved to full Council, as 
licensing authority under the 2003 Act.
32 Under the provisions of Section 7(5)(a) of the 2003 Act.
33 Except where a Licensing sub-committee has arranged for the discharge of any of their functions by 
an Officer.
34 These functions were delegated to the Licensing Committee by full Council on 14 July 2010.
35 These delegations include functions where these have been delegated to Leeds City Council by 
any other Council.

Page 33



Appendix 2
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) functions)

(b) To license drivers of hackney 
carriages
and private hire vehicles

Section 51, 53, 54, 59, 61 and 79 of
the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976

(c) To license operators of hackney
carriages and private hire vehicles

Sections 55 to 58, 62 and 79 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976

(d) ** To license sex shops and sex
cinemas and sexual entertainment
venues.

The Local Government 
(Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982, Section 2,
Schedule 3, the Policing and Crime 
Act
2009, Section 27.

(e) To license performances of hypnotism. The Hypnotism Act 1952

(f) *** To license persons to collect for
charitable and other causes

Section 5 of the Police, Factories etc
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916
and section 2 of the House to House
Collections Act 1939

Exceptions

The Director of Communities and Environment is not authorised to discharge those 
functions marked ** above where the application is for the grant, renewal or transfer 
of a sexual entertainment venue licence irrespective of whether objections have 
been received, or the grant of a sex shop or sex cinema licence irrespective of 
whether objections have been made, or renewal or transfer of a sex shop or cinema 
licence where objections have been received
The Director of Communities and Environment is not authorised to discharge those 
functions marked *** above where objections have been received. 

Page 34



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support

Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)

Date:  22 June 2017

Subject: Co-opted Members

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the 
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards.  

2. This report provides guidance to the Scrutiny Board when seeking to appoint co-opted 
members. There are also some legislative arrangements in place for the appointment 
of specific co-opted members. Such cases are set out in Article 6 of the Council’s 
Constitution and are also summarised within this report.  

Recommendation

3. In line with the options available outlined in this report, Members are asked to consider 
the appointment of co-opted members to the Scrutiny Board.

Report author:  Angela Brogden
Tel:  (0113) 3788666

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



1 Purpose of this report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Scrutiny Board’s formal consideration for the 
appointment of co-opted members to the Board.

2 Background information

2.1 For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the 
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards.  For those Scrutiny 
Boards where co-opted members have previously been appointed, such 
arrangements have tended to be reviewed on an annual basis, usually at the 
beginning of a new municipal year.  

3 Main issues

General arrangements for appointing co-opted members

3.1 It is widely recognised that in some circumstances, co-opted members can 
significantly aid the work of Scrutiny Boards.  This is currently reflected in Article 6 
(Scrutiny Boards) of the Council’s Constitution, which outlines the options available to 
Scrutiny Boards in relation to appointing co-opted members.  

3.2 In general terms, Scrutiny Boards can appoint:

 Up to five non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that does not go 
beyond the next Annual Meeting of Council ; and/or,

 Up to two non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that relates to the 
duration of a particular and specific scrutiny inquiry.

3.3 In the majority of cases the appointment of co-opted members is optional and is 
determined by the relevant Scrutiny Board.  However, Article 6 makes it clear that co-
option would normally only be appropriate where the co-opted member has some 
specialist skill or knowledge, which would be of assistance to the Scrutiny Board.  
Particular issues to consider when seeking to appoint a co-opted member are set out 
later in the report.

3.4 There are also some legislative arrangements in place for the appointment of specific 
co-opted members. Such cases are also set out in Article 6 (Scrutiny Boards) of the 
Council’s Constitution and relate to Education representatives.  

Issues to consider when seeking to appoint co-opted members

3.5 The Constitution makes it clear that ‘co-option would normally only be appropriate 
where the co-opted member has some specialist skill or knowledge, which would be 
of assistance to the Scrutiny Board’. In considering the appointment of co-opted 
members, Scrutiny Boards should be satisfied that a co-opted member can use their 
specialist skill or knowledge to add value to the work of the Scrutiny Board.  However, 
co-opted members should not be seen as a replacement to professional advice from 
officers. 

Page 36



3.6 Co-opted members should be considered as representatives of wider groups of 
people.  However, when seeking external input into the Scrutiny Board’s work, 
consideration should always be given to other alternative approaches, such as the 
role of expert witnesses or use of external research studies, to help achieve a 
balanced evidence base. 

3.7 When considering the appointment of a standing co-opted member for a term of 
office, Scrutiny Boards should be mindful of any potential conflicts of interest that may 
arise during the course of the year in view of the Scrutiny Boards’ wide ranging terms 
of reference.  To help overcome this, Scrutiny Boards may wish to focus on the 
provision available to appoint up to two non-voting co-opted members for a term of 
office that relates to the duration of a particular and specific scrutiny inquiry. 

3.8 Despite the lack of any national guidance, what is clear is that any process for 
appointing co-opted members should be open, effective and carried out in a manner 
which seeks to strengthen the work of Scrutiny Boards.

4.0 Corporate Considerations

4.1 Consultation and Engagement 

4.1.1 During 2010/11, the guidance surrounding co-opted members was discussed by the 
Scrutiny Chairs and it was agreed that individual Scrutiny Boards would consider the 
appointment of co-optees on an individual basis.

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration.

4.2.1 The process for appointing co-opted members should be open, effective and carried 
out in a manner which seeks to strengthen the work of the Scrutiny Board.  In doing 
so, due regard should also be given to any potential equality issues in line with the 
Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme. 

4.3 Council Policies and Best Council Plan

4.3.1 The Council’s Scrutiny arrangements are one of the key parts of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  Within the Council’s Constitution, there is particular 
provision for the appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards, 
which this report seeks to summarise.

4.4 Resources and Value for Money 

4.4.1 Where applicable, any incidental expenses paid to co-optees will be met within 
existing resources. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 Where additional members are co-opted onto a Scrutiny Board, such members 
must comply with the provisions set out in the Member’s Code of Conduct as 
detailed within the Council’s Constitution. 

4.6 Risk Management

Page 37



4.6.1 As stated in paragraph 3.7 above, when Scrutiny Boards are considering the 
appointment of a standing co-opted member for a term of office, they should be 
mindful of any potential conflicts of interest that may arise during the course of the 
year in view of the Scrutiny Boards’ wide ranging terms of reference.  

5.0 Conclusions

5.1 For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the 
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards.  This report sets out 
the legislative arrangements in place for the appointment of specific co-opted 
members and also provides further guidance when seeking to appoint co-opted 
members.

6.0 Recommendations

6.1 In line with the options available outlined in this report, Members are asked to 
consider the appointment of co-opted members to the Scrutiny Board.

7.0 Background documents1

7.1 None.

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 38



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources) 

Date: 22 June 2017

Subject: Sources of work for the Scrutiny Board

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. Scrutiny Boards are responsible for ensuring that items of scrutiny work come from a 
strategic approach as well as a need to challenge service performance and respond 
to issues of high public interest.

2. The Vision for Scrutiny1, attached at Appendix 1, recognises that like all other Council 
functions, resources to support the Scrutiny function are under considerable pressure 
and that requests from Scrutiny Boards cannot always be met.  Consequently, when 
establishing their work programmes Scrutiny Boards should:

 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add 
value and can be delivered within an agreed time frame;

 Avoid pure “information items” except where that information is being received as 
part of a policy/scrutiny review;

 Seek the advice of the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive 
Member about available resources;

 Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already 
having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue;

 Balanced in terms of the workload across the Scrutiny Boards and as to the type 
of Scrutiny taking place;

1 Agreed by Full Council on 21 May 2015.

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  0113 378 8666

Page 39

Agenda Item 9



 Sufficiently flexible to enable the consideration of urgent matters that may arise 
during the year.

3. This report provides information and guidance on potential sources of work and areas 
of priority within the Board’s terms of reference.  In consultation with the relevant 
Directors and Executive Board Members, the Scrutiny Board is requested to consider 
priority areas of Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal year.  

Recommendations

4. Members are requested to;

 Use the attached information and the discussion with those present at the 
meeting to draw up a list of areas for Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal year.

 Request that the Chair and the Principal Scrutiny Officer consult with the relevant 
Director and Executive Board Members regarding resources in line with the 
agreed Vision for Scrutiny and report back to the next meeting with a more 
detailed work programme.

Page 40



1.0 Purpose of this report

1.1 To assist the Scrutiny Board in effectively managing its workload for the forthcoming 
municipal year, this report provides information and guidance on potential sources of 
work and areas of priority within the Board’s terms of reference.  

2.0 Background information

2.1 Scrutiny Boards are responsible for ensuring that items of scrutiny work come from a 
strategic approach as well as a need to challenge service performance and respond 
to issues of high public interest.

3.0 Main issues

Best Council Plan

3.1 A refresh of the Best Council Plan was agreed by Council in February 2016 to reflect 
the significant changes to the context in which the council is working. The resulting 
‘Best Council Plan – Summary’ is attached as Appendix 2.

Matters identified by previous Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)

3.2 During the preceding municipal year (2016/17), the following matters were identified 
by the previous Scrutiny Board for possible consideration during 2017/18:

 Sickness rates / monitoring.
                                         

 Continued oversight of financial performance through the monthly Financial 
Health Monitoring reports

 Follow-up the areas arising from the budget/ Best Council Plan actions agreed 
by Executive Board, as follows:
(a) As part of the development of the ‘Leeds £’ approach, there should be a 

review of joint funding arrangements in order to help ensure a consistent 
and strategic approach that is fair and equitable to all partners involved;

(b) Where any directorate is anticipating a significant budget overspend, 
support be given to the need for the section 151 Officer and the relevant 
Director to work closely and proactively with the relevant Scrutiny Board in 
order to provide suitable assurance that there is robust financial risk 
management and transition planning in place;

(c) For all proposed budget savings, there is a clear narrative that explains how 
the savings will be achieved, including (but not limited to) service redesign 
and service commissioning/ decommissioning.

 Continuing oversight of the Council’s use of and expenditure on agency staff.  
Latterly, in 2016/17, the Board shifted its focus to workforce planning, 
considering the strategies in place for succession planning and workforce 
development under continued and sustained austerity.  

 Maintaining an oversight of the Council’s procurement arrangements, and 
specifically focusing on the levels of ‘off contract’ spending and non-compliance 
with the Contract Procedure Rules (CPR).  

Page 41



 Continuing oversight of the Council’s resilience and prioritisation of the use of 
ICT resources, to help support the future success of many of the Council’s 
ambitions and targets. 

 As part of the Council’s future budget development, focusing on how the 
Council continues to maximise its income through appropriate fees and 
charges.

 Overseeing the development of appropriate performance indicators and 
maintaining an overview of progress against the Council’s ambitions set out in 
the Best Council Plan.

 Receiving the formal response to the Scrutiny Inquiry into Commissioning and 
following-up on the recommendations. 

3.3 It should be noted that in anticipation of the Scrutiny Board’s desire to maintain an 
overview of the Council’s financial health, the following suite of financial reports are 
included elsewhere on the agenda:

 Treasury Management Outturn Report 2016/17
 Financial Performance – Outturn Financial Year ended 31/3/17
 Financial Health Monitoring 2017/18 – Month 2 (May 2017)  

3.4 In considering its priorities for 2017/18, members of the Scrutiny Board are 
reminded of the changes to the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference from the 
previous municipal year (i.e. 2016/17), including the inclusion of the following areas 
(delegated to the Director of Communities and Environment):

 Equalities;
 Registrars functions; 
 Licensing functions; 
 Local Land Charges functions; and
 Council tax processing and billing arrangements.

Other sources of Scrutiny work

3.5 The Scrutiny Boards’ terms of reference are also determined by reference to 
Directors’ delegations. As such, Scrutiny Boards have always challenged service 
directorates across the full range of council activities and the Scrutiny Board may 
therefore undertake pieces of scrutiny work in line with its terms of reference, as 
considered appropriate.  

3.6 Other common sources of work include pre-decision scrutiny, requests for scrutiny 
and other corporate referrals. The Board is also required to be formally consulted 
during the development of key policies which form part of the council’s budget and 
policy framework. 

4.0 Corporate Considerations

4.1 Consultation and Engagement 

4.1.1 It is recognised that in order to enable Scrutiny to focus on strategic areas of 
priority, each Scrutiny Board needs to establish an early dialogue with the Directors 
and Executive Board Members holding the relevant portfolios. The Vision for 

Page 42



Scrutiny, agreed by full Council in May 2015 also states that Scrutiny Boards should 
seek the advice of the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive Member 
about available resources prior to agreeing items of work.

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration.

4.2.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules state that, where appropriate, all terms of 
reference for work undertaken by Scrutiny Boards will include ‘ to review how and to 
what effect consideration has been given to the impact of a service or policy on all 
equality areas, as set out in the Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme’. 

4.3 Council Policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Boards promote a strategic and outward 
looking Scrutiny function that focuses on the best council objectives. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money 

4.4.1 Experience has shown that the Scrutiny  process is more effective and adds greater 
value if the Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial inquiries running at 
one time and focus its resources on one key issue at a time.   

4.4.2 The Vision for Scrutiny, agreed by full Council also recognises that like all other 
Council functions, resources to support the Scrutiny function are under considerable 
pressure and that requests from Scrutiny Boards cannot always be met.  
Consequently, when establishing their work programmes Scrutiny Boards should:

 Seek the advice of the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive 
Member about available resources;

 Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already 
having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue;

 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add 
value and can be delivered within an agreed time frame.

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 This report has no specific legal implications.

4.6 Risk Management

4.6.1 There are no risk management implications relevant to this report.

5.0 Conclusions

5.1 Scrutiny Boards are responsible for ensuring that items of scrutiny work come from 
a strategic approach as well as a need to challenge service performance and 
respond to issues of high public interest.  This report provides information and 
guidance on potential sources of work and areas of priority within the Board’s terms 
of reference.  In consultation with the relevant Directors, Executive Board Members 

Page 43



and Scrutiny Officer, the Scrutiny Board is requested to consider areas of Scrutiny 
for the forthcoming municipal year.

6.0 Recommendations

6.1 Members are requested to;

 Use the attached information and the discussion with those present at the 
meeting to draw up a list of areas for Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal 
year.

 Request that the Chair and the Principal Scrutiny Officer consult with the 
relevant Director and Executive Board Members regarding resources in line with 
the agreed Vision for Scrutiny and report back to the next meeting with a more 
detailed work programme.

7.0 Background papers2

7.1 None

2 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 44



APPENDIX 1

Vision for Scrutiny at Leeds

“To promote democratic engagement through the provision of an 
influential scrutiny function which is held in high regard by its many 
stakeholders and  which achieves measurable service improvements 
which add value for the people of Leeds through a member led process 
of examination and review" 

To achieve this Scrutiny will follow the nationally agreed ‘Four Principles of Good 
Scrutiny’;

1. Provide ‘critical friend’ challenge to decision makers, through holding them to 
account for decisions made, engaging in policy review and policy 
development; 

2. Promote Scrutiny as a means by which the voice and concerns of the public 
can be heard; 

3. Ensure Scrutiny is carried out by ‘independent minded’  Board members; 

4. Improve public services by ensuring reviews of policy and service 
performance are focused.

To succeed Council recognises that the following conditions need to be present;

 Parity of esteem between the Executive and Scrutiny 

 Co-operation with statutory partners

 Member leadership and engagement

 Genuine non-partisan working

 Evidence based conclusions and recommendations

 Effective dedicated officer support

 Supportive Directors and senior officer culture

Council agrees that it is incumbent upon Scrutiny Boards to recognise that resources 
to support the Scrutiny function are, (like all other Council functions), under 
considerable pressure and that requests from Scrutiny Boards cannot always be 
met.  Therefore Council agrees that constructive consultation should take place 
between the Executive and Scrutiny about the availability of resources prior to any 
work being undertaken.  
Consequently, when establishing their work programmes Scrutiny Boards should

Page 45



 Seek the advice from the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director  and Executive 
Member about available resources

 Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already 
having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue (e.g. Plans Panel, 
Housing Advisory Board, established member working groups, other Scrutiny 
Boards) 

 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add 
value and can be delivered within our agreed time frame.

Page 46



  

BEST COUNCIL PLAN 2017/18:
  Tackling poverty and reducing inequalities

Page 47



3

Bu
ild

in
g 

on
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 c

ou
nc

il a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

th
e 

up
da

te
 s

et
s 

ou
t s

ev
en

 
in

te
rc

on
ne

ct
ed

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 w
or

k 
th

at
, t

ak
en

 to
ge

th
er

, 
w

ill 
de

liv
er

 b
et

te
r o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r e

ve
ry

on
e 

in
 L

ee
ds

:

• 
G

oo
d 

gr
ow

th
• 

Tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e
• 

Lo
w

 c
ar

bo
n

• 
R

es
ili

en
t c

om
m

un
iti

es
• 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

• 
B

et
te

r l
iv

es
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

  
ca

re
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
ne

ed
s

• 
C

hi
ld

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 c
ity

-
or

ity
 a

re
as

 w
ha

t t
he

 is
su

es
 a

re
 a

nd
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
th

in
gs

 w
e 

an
d 

ou
r p

ar
tn

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll s
ec

to
rs

 a
re

 d
oi

ng
 in

 re
sp

on
se

, 

to
 ta

ck
lin

g 
po

ve
rty

 a
nd

 in
eq

ua
liti

es
. T

hi
s 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

in
tro

-
du

ct
io

n 
to

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

fa
nt

as
tic

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

e 
an

d 
in

no
va

-
tiv

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

’s 
un

de
rw

ay
 in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 w
ith

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il a

va
il-

ab
le

 in
 th

e 
re

fe
re

nc
ed

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 d

oc
um

en
ts

, a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 
ou

r w
eb

si
te

 le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

.  
 

as
 a

n 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
w

ith
 o

ur
 v

al
ue

s 
at

 th
e 

co
re

 o
f h

ow
 w

e 
w

or
k,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 c

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

de
m

an
ds

 o
n 

al
l p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  

D
es

p
ite

 t
h

e 
p

re
ss

u
re

s,
  

w
e 

re
m

ai
n

 a
m

b
it

io
u

s 
as

 a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l, 
 

a 
ci

ty
 a

n
d

 a
 r

eg
io

n
.

Th
ro

ug
h 

st
ro

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 c

om
m

un
itie

s 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 w
e’

ve
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 s
om

e 
re

al
 re

su
lts

 o
n 

ou
r j

ou
rn

ey
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

th
e 

be
st

 c
ity

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
 c

an
 re

ad
 m

or
e 

ab
ou

t i
n 

ou
r a

nn
ua

l 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 re
po

rts
. T

hi
s 

le
d 

to
 u

s 
w

in
ni

ng
 th

e 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 
Jo

ur
na

l’s
 p

re
st

ig
io

us
 ‘L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
of

 th
e 

Ye
ar

’ a
w

ar
d 

in
 2

01
6 

an
d 

pu
ts

 u
s 

in
 a

 g
re

at
 p

os
itio

n 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
m

os
t o

f f
ut

ur
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s,

 b
e 

th
ey

 th
ro

ug
h 

de
vo

lu
tio

n,
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

itie
s 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty.
  

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il c

an
 m

ak
e,

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 b
rin

gi
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
ge

th
er

 
ar

ou
nd

 a
m

bi
tio

us
, s

ha
re

d 
ou

tc
om

es
. 

N
on

e 
of

 th
is

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

w
ith

ou
t o

ur
 s

ki
lle

d 
an

d 
de

di
ca

te
d 

co
un

ci
llo

rs
 a

nd
 s

ta
ff:

 th
e 

el
ec

te
d 

m
em

be
rs

 
w

ho
 s

er
ve

 th
e 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 e
ve

ry
on

e 
w

ho
 w

or
ks

 fo
r t

he
 

fro
nt

-li
ne

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 p

la
ys

 a
 v

ita
l r

ol
e 

in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ou

r 
B

es
t C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n.

 W
e 

w
an

t t
o 

ta
ke

 th
is

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 

th
an

k 
yo

u 
al

l f
or

 y
ou

r e
ffo

rts
 s

o 
fa

r a
nd

 th
e 

ha
rd

 w
or

k 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 in
 2

01
7/

18
 a

nd
 b

ey
on

d.
  

 
B

E
S

T
 C

IT
Y

 •  
B

E
S

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

  T
ac

kl
in

g
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

an
d

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 in
eq

u
al

it
ie

s

O
u

r 
vi

si
on

 is
 fo

r 
Le

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
th

e 
b

es
t c

it
y 

in
 th

e 
U

K
: o

n
e 

th
at

 is
 c

om
p

as
si

on
at

e 
 

w
it

h
 a

 s
tr

on
g

 e
co

n
om

y,
 w

h
ic

h
 ta

ck
le

s 
p

ov
er

ty
 a

n
d

 r
ed

u
ce

s 
th

e 
in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s 

th
at

 s
ti

ll 
ex

is
t. 

 
W

e 
w

an
t L

ee
d

s 
to

 b
e 

a 
ci

ty
 th

at
 is

 fa
ir

 a
n

d
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

, a
m

b
it

io
u

s,
 fu

n
 a

n
d

 c
re

at
iv

e 
fo

r 
al

l 
w

it
h

 a
 c

ou
n

ci
l t

h
at

 it
s 

re
si

d
en

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
p

ro
u

d
 o

f: 
th

e 
b

es
t c

ou
n

ci
l i

n
 th

e 
co

u
n

tr
y.

  

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
re

co
ve

re
d 

w
el

l f
ro

m
 th

e 
re

ce
ss

io
n 

an
d 

is
 

fo
r e

ve
n 

m
or

e.
 W

e 
ar

e 
no

w
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 m
os

t a
ttr

ac
tiv

e 
‘c

or
e 

ci
ty

’ f
or

 in
w

ar
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

ha
ve

 th
e 

fa
st

es
t r

at
e 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 jo
bs

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f a

ny
 m

aj
or

 U
K

 c
ity

 a
nd

 
Le

ed
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
be

st
 c

ity
 in

 th
e 

U
K

 fo
r q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

. M
aj

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

un
de

rw
ay

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ci
ty

 w
ith

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

in
ve

st
in

g,
 

in
no

va
tin

g 
an

d 
cr

ea
tin

g 
ne

w
 jo

bs
.

H
ow

ev
er

, w
e 

k
n

ow
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
 

b
en

efi
ts

 o
f 

Le
ed

s’
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 

g
ro

w
th

 a
re

 n
o

t 
re

ac
h

in
g

 e
ve

ry
o

n
e.

 

20
%

 o
f t

he
 L

ee
ds

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

– 
al

m
os

t 1
55

,0
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f o

ur
 re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 lo

w
-w

ag
e 

an
d 

in
se

cu
re

 
jo

bs
. H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
at

ta
in

m
en

t i
ne

qu
al

iti
es

 p
er

si
st

 
w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

os
e 

m
os

t d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 in

 
so

ci
et

y,
 m

an
y 

of
 w

ho
m

 li
ve

 in
 a

re
as

 d
ee

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
un

try
, a

nd
 w

el
fa

re
 c

ha
ng

es
 

co
ul

d 
w

or
se

n 
th

e 
po

ve
rty

 g
ap

. 

Th
is 

Be
st

 C
ou

nc
il P

la
n 

up
da

te
 fo

r 2
01

7/
18

 th
er

ef
or

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 o
ur

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
fo

cu
s 

on
 ta

ck
lin

g 
po

ve
rty

 
an

d 
in

eq
ua

liti
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 s
tre

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
do

in
g 

th
is 

in
 a

 w
ay

 th
at

 is
 c

om
pa

ss
io

na
te

, 
th

at
 a

llo
w

s 
us

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e.
 

10
,0

00
 

pe
op

le
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 in
 

Le
ed

s’
 d

ig
ita

l s
ec

to
r

26
  

m
ill

io
n

vi
si

to
rs

 w
el

co
m

ed
 b

y 
Le

ed
s 

in
 2

01
5 

- w
or

th
 £

1.
5 

bi
lli

on
 to

 th
e 

lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y
15

0+
 

S
yr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
es

 
w

el
co

m
ed

 b
y 

Le
ed

s 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 n
at

io
na

l 
re

se
ttl

em
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e

18
3,

00
0 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 

62
%

 

of
 a

ll 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 L

ee
ds

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ra

te
d 

as
 ‘g

oo
d’

10
3,

00
0

re
gi

st
er

ed
 L

ee
ds

  
Le

t’s
 G

et
 A

ct
iv

e 
 

m
em

be
rs

£7
 m

ill
io

n
sa

ve
d 

ev
er

y 
ye

ar
 b

y 
th

e 
R

E
R

F 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 

pr
ev

io
us

 c
os

ts
  

U
K

’s
 3

rd
 

la
rg

es
t 

re
ta

il 
ce

nt
re

  
ou

ts
id

e 
Lo

nd
on

40
%

of
 L

ee
ds

’ w
as

te
 is

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 –

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

w
ei

gh
t o

f 3
,2

00
 d

ou
bl

e 
de

ck
er

 b
us

es
 

Cl
lr

 J
ud

ith
 B

la
ke

Le
ad

er
 o

f  
Le

ed
s 

Ci
ty

  
Co

un
ci

l

To
m

 R
io

rd
an

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
of

 
Le

ed
s 

Ci
ty

  
Co

un
ci

l
Co

un
ci

l

24
6,

00
0 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 
 

ag
ed

 o
ve

r 8
5

Page 48



5

O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

W
e 

w
an

t e
ve

ry
on

e 
in

 L
ee

ds
 to

…

G
O

O
D

 
G

R
O

W
T

H
G

ro
w

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 
cr

ea
tin

g 
jo

bs
, i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
sk

ill
s,

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

a 
 

vi
br

an
t c

ity

20
17

/1
8 

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S

LO
W

  
C

A
R

B
O

N
 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
em

is
si

on
s,

 
ta

ck
lin

g 
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
, 

an
d 

se
cu

re
  

en
er

gy
 

W
h

at
 w

e 
an

d
 o

u
r 

p
ar

tn
er

s 
 

ar
e 

d
o

in
g

 in
 2

01
7/

18
  

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 o

u
tc

o
m

es
i

B
ET

TE
R

  
LI

V
ES

 G
iv

in
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 

ca
re

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

ne
ed

s 
th

e 
rig

ht
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t a

t t
he

 
rig

ht
 ti

m
e 

H
EA

LT
H

 &
  

W
EL

LB
EI

N
G

 
 S

up
po

rti
ng

 h
ea

lth
y 

lif
es

ty
le

s,
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

, 
in

te
gr

at
in

g 
he

al
th

  
an

d 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e

R
ES

IL
IE

N
T

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S

Bu
ild

in
g 

st
ro

ng
, c

oh
es

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, r
ai

si
ng

 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

, r
ed

uc
in

g 

C
H

IL
D

- 
FR

IE
N

D
LY

 C
IT

Y
K

ee
pi

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

sa
fe

, 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

fa
m

ili
es

, 
ra

is
in

g 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

  
an

d 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
at

ta
in

m
en

t

T
R

A
N

S
PO

R
T

 &
  

IN
FR

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 
C

on
ne

ct
in

g 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 
pl

ac
es

, i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

 
ai

r q
ua

lit
y,

 m
ee

tin
g 

 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s

• 
B

e 
sa

fe
 a

n
d

 fe
el

 s
af

e

• 
  E

n
jo

y 
h

ap
py

, h
ea

lth
y,

 
ac

tiv
e 

liv
es

  

• 
Li

ve
 in

 g
oo

d
 q

u
al

ity
, 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

  
w

ith
in

 c
le

an
 a

n
d

 w
el

l  
ca

re
d

 fo
r 

p
la

ce
s

• 
D

o 
w

el
l a

t a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
le

ar
n

in
g 

an
d

 h
av

e 
th

e 
sk

ill
s 

th
ey

 n
ee

d
 fo

r 
lif

e 

• 
En

jo
y 

gr
ea

te
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

  
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

es
, l

ei
su

re
  

an
d

 th
e 

ar
ts

• 
E

ar
n

 e
n

ou
gh

 to
  

su
p

p
or

t t
h

em
se

lv
es

  
an

d
 th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

• 
M

ov
e 

ar
ou

n
d

 a
  

w
el

l-p
la

n
n

ed
 c

ity
 e

as
ily

• 
Li

ve
 w

ith
 d

ig
n

ity
 a

n
d

  
st

ay
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t f

or
  

as
 lo

n
g 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

 

O
U

R
 V

A
LU

E
S

B
R

E
A

K
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
 –

 H
el

pi
ng

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

B
es

t C
ou

nc
il 

Pl
an

C
u
tt
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n
  

a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
  

a
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y

W
o
rl
d

 c
la

s
s
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
 

v
ib

ra
n
t 
c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

c
a
n
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

M
o
re

 j
o
b

s
, 
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

jo
b

s

E
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
  

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s

  
  

 
B

E
S

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 P

LA
N

 2
01

7/
18

: 
T

ac
kl

in
g

 p
o

ve
rt

y 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s

U
n

d
er

p
in

n
in

g
 w

h
at

 w
e 

 
d

o
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

o
rk

i

In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
, o

n
 a

 c
it

y-
w

id
e 

sc
al

e,
 d

ri
vi

n
g

 c
h

an
g

e 
fo

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
s,

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
an

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s

i
S

tr
o
n
g

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
  

b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g

 f
ro

m
 a

  

s
tr

o
n
g

 c
it
y

M
a
k
in

g
 L

e
e
d

s
 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 
p

la
c
e
 

to
 g

ro
w

 o
ld

 i
n

H
o
u
s
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
  

a
n
d

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
  

in
 a

ll 
s
e
c
to

rs

Ta
c
k
lin

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
  

v
io

le
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

a
b

u
s
e

A
M

B
IT

IO
N

S
   

•  
 L

ee
ds

…
 A

 S
tr

on
g 

Ec
on

om
y 

an
d 

a 
C

om
pa

ss
io

na
te

 C
ity

   
 • 

  L
ee

ds
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il…
 

B
ei

n
g

 o
p

en
, h

o
n

es
t a

n
d

 tr
u

st
ed

   
  T

re
at

in
g

 p
eo

p
le

 fa
ir

ly
  

  S
p

en
d

in
g

 m
o

n
ey

 w
is

el
y 

  
  W

o
rk

in
g

 a
s 

a 
te

am
 fo

r 
L

ee
d

s 
 

  W
o

rk
in

g
 w

ith
 a

ll 
co

m
m

u
n

iti
es

Page 49



7

 
  

T
E

LL
IN

G
 T

H
E

 S
T

O
R

Y
   

41
5,

00
0 

jo
bs

 in
 L

ee
ds

  
– 

ba
ck

 to
 p

re
-r

ec
es

si
on

 le
ve

ls

80
,0

00
 

jo
bs

 in
 L

ee
ds

 p
ay

in
g 

le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

R
ea

l 
Li

vi
ng

 W
ag

e 
of

 £
8.

25
 a

n 
ho

ur
 

 

– 
m

an
y 

in
 p

ar
t t

im
e 

ro
le

s,
 in

 in
se

cu
re

 
jo

bs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 z
er

o 
ho

ur
 c

on
tra

ct
s

6%
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 a

ve
ra

ge
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

in
 L

ee
ds

 –
 th

e 
bi

gg
es

t 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

ny
w

he
re

 in
 th

e 
U

K
  

1/
3

of
 a

ll 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
tw

o 
 

th
ird

s 
of

 a
du

lts
 in

 L
ee

ds
 

ar
e 

ei
th

er
 o

ve
rw

ei
gh

t o
r o

be
se

17
 

co
un

ci
l o

pe
ra

te
d 

le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 

ce
nt

re
s 

at
tra

ct
in

g 
3.

5m
 a

nn
ua

l v
is

its

34
8,

00
0

vi
si

ts
 to

 L
et

’s
 G

et
 A

ct
iv

e 
se

ss
io

ns
. W

e 
no

w
 h

av
e 

10
3,

00
0 

re
gi

st
er

ed
  

Le
ed

s 
Le

t’s
 G

et
 A

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
  

4,
71

2 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

m
et

ro
po

lit
an

 d
is

tri
ct

 
of

 L
ee

ds
 fr

om
 S

to
rm

 E
va

2 
w

et
te

st
 U

K
 w

in
te

rs
 o

n 
re

co
rd

 w
er

e 

w
ea

th
er

 is
 b

ec
om

in
g 

m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

t

3,
00

0 

 

11
-1

7
 y

ea
r o

ld
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

 h
as

 s
ee

n 
th

e 
 

hi
gh

es
t i

nc
re

as
e 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

 
 w

ho
 a

re
 lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 

 

36
0

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
en

te
re

d 
ca

re
 d

ur
in

g 
20

15
/1

6 
– 

pr
im

ar
y 

re
as

on
 fo

r t
hi

s 
w

as
 d

ue
 to

 n
eg

le
ct

 a
nd

 a
bu

se
 

 

69
4

ca
re

rs
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 

of
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
w

ith
 a

 n
et

 g
ai

n 
of

 2
6 

m
ai

ns
tre

am
 c

ar
er

s

24
6,

00
0 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 L
ee

ds
  

 

13
%

 
in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
20

20
 o

f t
ho

se
 m

os
t 

in
 n

ee
d 

of
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

 

£6
.8

m
 g

ra
nt

s 
pe

r y
ea

r p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 1
,0

00
 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
 to

 p
riv

at
e 

ho
m

es
 

 

8,
16

9 
pe

op
le

 re
sp

on
de

d 
on

lin
e 

in
 2

01
6 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 n
ew

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r L
ee

ds
 

he
lp

in
g 

ta
ck

le
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 is
su

es

£2
70

m
 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
o 

be
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r t
ra

ns
po

rt 
in

 L
ee

ds

3.
66

m
  

to
nn

es
 

em
itt

ed
 b

y 
Le

ed
s  

11
0,

00
0  

 
to

nn
es

 o
f t

hi
s 

co
m

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l

1,
10

9 
to

nn
es

of
 c

ar
bo

n 
sa

ve
d 

in
 2

01
6 

  
co

un
ci

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
  

1,
00

0 
co

un
ci

l h
om

es

B
es

t 
C

ou
nc

il 
: E

ffi
ci

en
t 

an
d

 E
nt

er
p

ri
si

ng
 O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

£8
1.

8m
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ne
ed

ed
 b

y  
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8

17
 to

 4
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 c
ity

 c
en

tre
 

C
ou

nc
il 

bu
ild

in
gs

 b
y 

20
17

/1
8

1,
60

0
m

em
be

rs
 o

f s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 g

on
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ne
w

 w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

  
– 

w
ith

 a
 fu

rth
er

 2
,0

00
 p

la
nn

ed

60
%

  
In

te
rim

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r r
ed

uc
tio

n 

by
 2

03
0 

– 
ai

m
in

g 
fo

r 8
0%

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

by
 2

05
0

S
o

m
e 

ex
am

p
le

s 
ex

p
la

in
in

g
 h

o
w

 w
e 

ta
ck

le
 c

h
al

le
n

g
es

  
in

 o
u

r 
B

es
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

re
as

i

al
l b

ut
 o

ne
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
d 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

re
as

 in
 L

ee
ds

 a
re

 ra
nk

ed
 

am
on

g 
th

e 
ci

ty
’s

 3
0%

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 a
re

as

G
oo

d
 g

ro
w

th

H
ea

lt
h 

&
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

B
et

te
r 

liv
es

R
es

ili
en

t 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s

T
ra

ns
p

or
t 

&
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

C
hi

ld
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 c

it
y

Lo
w

 c
ar

b
on

Page 50



  

fro
m

 o
r c

on
tri

bu
tin

g 
fu

lly
 to

 th
e 

ci
ty

’s
 e

co
no

m
ic

 s
uc

ce
ss

  

8

Le
ed

s 
h

as
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 w
el

l f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n
 w

it
h

 
n

ew
 j

o
b

s 
b

ei
n

g
 c

re
at

ed
, f

al
li

n
g

 u
n

em
p

lo
ym

en
t, 

ri
si

n
g

 w
ag

es
 a

n
d

 in
cr

ea
se

d
 t

o
u

ri
sm

 a
n

d
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
. H

ow
ev

er
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
h

as
 n

o
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

er
e 

re
m

ai
n

s 
si

g
n

ifi
ca

n
t 

p
ov

er
ty

 in
 

Le
ed

s.
 T

h
e 

co
u

n
ci

l i
s 

co
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 “
g

o
o

d
 g

ro
w

th
”:

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 t
ac

k
li

n
g

 p
ov

er
ty

 a
re

 t
ru

ly
 

tw
o

 s
id

es
 o

f 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

co
in

. B
y 

cr
ea

ti
n

g
 m

o
re

 a
n

d
 

b
et

te
r 

jo
b

s 
an

d
 b

y 
en

h
an

ci
n

g
 t

h
e 

ab
il

it
y 

o
f 

al
l o

u
r 

p
eo

p
le

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

ec
o

n
o

m
y 

to
 t

h
ei

r 
fu

ll 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
, w

e 
ca

n
 b

o
o

st
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
an

d
 

co
m

p
et

it
iv

en
es

s,
 r

ed
u

ce
 t

h
e 

co
st

s 
o

f 
p

ov
er

ty
 t

o
 t

h
e 

ec
o

n
o

m
y 

an
d

 t
h

e 
ta

xp
ay

er
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

 o
u

tc
o

m
es

 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

eo
p

le
 o

f 
Le

ed
s.

 T
h

e 
p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

h
as

 a
 

ro
le

 in
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 t
ra

d
e 

an
d

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 t

h
e 

ci
ty

, 
b

ac
k

in
g

 in
n

ov
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

ep
re

n
eu

rs
, p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 

th
e 

ri
g

h
t 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
fo

r 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

to
 g

ro
w

 
an

d
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
em

 t
o

 in
ve

st
 b

ac
k

 in
to

 t
h

ei
r 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e 

an
d

 lo
ca

l c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s.
   

G
O

O
D

 G
R

O
W

T
H

   
T

ac
kl

in
g

 p
o

ve
rt

y 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s

T
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 p

ro
du

ci
ng

 a
  

Le
ed

s 
G

ro
w

th
 S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d 

 
20

17
-2

0.
 It

 w
ill 

su
pp

or
t e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

,  
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 s
ec

to
rs

 a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r g

ro
w

th
, a

lo
ng

si
de

 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n,
 h

ou
si

ng
, s

ki
lls

, t
ra

ns
po

rt 
an

d 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s.

 K
ey

 th
em

es
 in

cl
ud

e:
 ta

ck
lin

g 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

lo
w

 p
ay

; r
eg

en
er

at
in

g 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 a
nd

 c
en

tre
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 to
 g

ro
w

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
; a

nd
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 
an

d 
ha

rn
es

si
ng

 in
no

va
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

fo
rm

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
n 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
ro

un
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
m

or
e 

jo
in

ed
-u

p 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

m
us

t e
qu

ip
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
sk

ills
, r

es
ilie

nc
e 

an
d 

ab
ilit

y 
to

 
ad

ap
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 a

nd
 th

e 
la

bo
ur

 m
ar

ke
t, 

an
d 

to
 ta

ke
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f n

ew
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

 

W
e 

ar
e 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

n
d

 
co

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p
 t

h
e 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

  
an

d
 s

k
ill

s 
sy

st
em

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 
g

ro
w

th
, a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

ab
le

 p
eo

p
le

 t
o

 f
u

lfi
ll 

 
th

ei
r 

ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

. 

Th
is

 in
vo

lv
es

 p
ut

tin
g 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
at

 th
e 

ce
nt

re
 o

f t
he

 s
ki

lls
 

sy
st

em
, w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
, c

ol
le

ge
s,

 u
ni

ve
rs

itie
s 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

ca
re

er
s 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s:

 fo
r 

Pl
an

. T
he

 M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 C

ol
le

ge
, 

re
ce

nt
ly

 o
pe

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
So

ut
h 

Ba
nk

, w
ill 

he
lp

 a
dd

re
ss

 s
ki

lls
 

sh
or

ta
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
se

ct
or

. T
he

re
 is

 s
co

pe
 fo

r 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r c

ro
ss

-c
ut

tin
g 

‘b
re

ak
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

t’ 
M

or
e 

Jo
bs

, 
B

et
te

r 
Jo

bs
 a

nd
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

Jo
se

ph
 R

ow
nt

re
e 

Fo
un

da
tio

n,
 w

e 
ar

e 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
in

-w
or

k 
pr

og
re

ss
io

n,
 g

oo
d 

w
or

ki
ng

, a
nd

 ta
ck

lin
g 

lo
w

 p
ay

. T
he

 c
ou

nc
il,

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

th
er

 m
aj

or
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty,

 is
 ta

ki
ng

 a
 le

ad
 

ac
cr

ed
ite

d 
by

 th
e 

Li
vi

ng
 W

ag
e 

Fo
un

da
tio

n,
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t’s
 n

at
io

na
l m

in
im

um
 w

ag
e.

 B
y 

en
ga

gi
ng

 w
ith

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 a
nd

 s
tre

ng
th

en
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
, w

e 
ar

e 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 

to
 g

et
 w

or
k 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

on
 m

aj
or

 s
ch

em
es

, s
uc

h 
as

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

An
 im

po
rta

nt
 fa

ct
or

 in
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 c

om
pe

tit
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
ci

tie
s 

is
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 g

ra
du

at
es

 in
 th

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 a
nd

 
so

 o
ur

 G
ro

w
th

 S
tra

te
gy

 w
ill 

ai
m

 to
 d

ev
el

op
, a

ttr
ac

t a
nd

 
re

ta
in

 g
ra

du
at

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
sk

ills
 to

 h
el

p 
gr

ow
 th

e 
ec

on
om

y.
 

en
tre

pr
en

eu
rs

 is
 a

ls
o 

re
qu

ire
d 

an
d 

so
 w

e 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

th
e 

gr
ow

th
 o

f 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tre

, c
en

tre
d 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
un

iv
er

si
ty

 c
am

pu
se

s,
 

 

  th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

br
in

g 
to

ge
th

er
 s

om
e 

of
 o

ur
 m

os
t c

re
at

iv
e 

an
d 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
in

st
itu

tio
ns

, b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
. 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

In
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 R
eg

io
n 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

C
ha

m
be

r o
f C

om
m

er
ce

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

su
pp

or
ts

 b
us

in
es

s 
gr

ow
th

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Le
ed

s 
C

ity
 R

eg
io

n 
G

ro
w

th
 H

ub
; t

he
 

A
d:

ve
nt

ur
e 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e;
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 R
eg

io
n 

S
up

po
rt 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

W
or

ki
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 th
e 

In
ve

st
 L

ee
ds

 
C

ity
 R

eg
io

n 
te

am
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

ou
r s

tro
ng

 in
w

ar
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

tre
ng

th
en

 o
ur

 K
ey

 A
cc

ou
nt

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 fo
r m

an
ag

in
g 

ou
r r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

. 
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Le
ed

s’
 p

ro
po

sa
l f

or
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

C
ap

ita
l o

f C
ul

tu
re

 2
02

3 
hi

gh
lig

ht
s 

ou
r a

m
bi

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

bi
d 

la
te

r i
n 

20
17

 w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 in
vo

lv
e 

an
d 

to
 b

e 
ow

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 c
ity

. T
hi

s 
fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 o

ur
 o

ng
oi

ng
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t t
ha

t b
eg

an
 in

 2
01

6 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

Le
ed

s 
C

ul
tu

re
 S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

pi
ns

 o
ur

 
cr

os
s-

cu
tti

ng
 ‘b

re
ak

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oj

ec
t’ 

W
or

ld
-c

la
ss

 e
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

a 
vi

br
an

t c
ity

 c
en

tr
e

an
d 

be
co

m
in

g 
m

or
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n-
fri

en
dl

y,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 lo
w

 
co

st
 e

ve
nt

s 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
an

d 
cr

ea
tin

g 
an

 im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

.  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
e 

Le
ed

s 
G

ro
w

th
 S

tra
te

gy
 w

ill 
co

m
pl

em
en

t w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 re
gi

on
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

LE
P’

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Ec
on

om
ic

 P
la

n 
20

16
-3

6 
– 

a 
pl

an
 w

hi
ch

 a
im

s 
to

 u
nl

oc
k 

th
e 

re
gi

on
’s

 v
as

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 p

ot
en

tia
l b

y 
en

ab
lin

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

nd
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
to

 
th

riv
e 

– 
an

d 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
N

or
th

er
n 

Po
w

er
ho

us
e 

in
iti

at
iv

e,
 

to
 a

ls
o 

en
co

m
pa

ss
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 s

ki
lls

, t
ra

de
 a

nd
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

in
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
en

te
rp

ris
e,

 a
nd

 h
ou

si
ng

. 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

A
t 

a 
n

at
io

n
al

 le
ve

l, 
Le

ed
s 

is
 h

el
p

in
g

 t
o

 s
h

ap
e 

th
e 

p
o

lic
y

 a
ge

n
d

a 
ar

o
u

n
d

 t
h

e 
co

n
ce

p
t 

o
f 

in
cl

u
si

ve
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e 
 

R
S

A
’s

 In
cl

u
si

ve
 G

ro
w

th
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n

– 
an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t i

nq
ui

ry
 lo

ok
in

g 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

pr
ac

tic
al

 w
ay

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
ie

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

U
K 

m
or

e 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

an
d 

pr
os

pe
ro

us
 b

y 
en

ab
lin

g 
th

e 
w

id
es

t r
an

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

po
in

t p
la

n 
fo

r t
he

 c
ity

 to
: m

ai
nt

ai
n 

m
om

en
tu

m
 o

n 
m

aj
or

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
sc

he
m

es
 a

nd
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
; s

up
po

rt 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
nd

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
an

d 
N

H
S;

 c
re

at
e 

a 
m

or
e 

to
le

ra
nt

 a
nd

 u
ni

te
d 

ci
ty

; 

ou
tw

ar
d 

lo
ok

in
g 

im
ag

e 
of

 L
ee

ds
 a

s 
an

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l c
ity

. 

Fo
r L

ee
ds

 a
nd

 th
e 

w
id

er
 L

ee
ds

 C
ity

 R
eg

io
n,

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
gr

ea
te

r d
ev

ol
ut

io
n 

po
w

er
s 

w
ill

 e
nh

an
ce

 o
ur

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 

su
pp

or
t e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 ta
ck

le
 d

ep
riv

at
io

n.

– 
du

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
su

m
m

er
 2

01
7)

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 R
eg

io
n 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
E

co
no

m
ic

 P
la

n 
20

16
-3

6
du

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
sp

rin
g 

20
17

)

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

 
re

la
te

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
:

 
in

-w
or

k 
po

ve
rty

  
w

as
 e

st
im

at
ed

  
to

 a
ffe

ct
 

15
,0

00
 

H
O

U
SE

H
O

LD
S

 in
 L

ee
ds

 

 Th
e 

N
or

th
 u

nd
er

pe
rfo

rm
s 

 
th

e 
re

st
 o

f t
he

 U
K

 b
y

25
%

ba
se

d 
on

 e
co

no
m

ic
 o

ut
pu

t p
er

 
he

ad
 –

 th
is

 m
ea

ns
 th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 h

ar
de

r t
o 

pr
od

uc
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f g

oo
ds

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

es
, t

he
 re

su
lt 

of
 w

hi
ch

 
cr

ea
te

s 
a 

st
ag

na
tio

n 
of

  
w

ag
es

 a
nd

 li
vi

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

  
S

ou
rc

e:
 N

or
th

er
n 

P
ow

er
ho

us
e 

 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t E
co

no
m

ic
 R

ev
ie

w
 2

01
6

Lo
w

 p
ay

 is
 a

 

ov
er

 8
0,

00
0 

jo
bs

 in
 

Le
ed

s 
– 

m
an

y 
of

  
th

em
 p

ar
t-t

im
e 

– 
pa

y 
le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
R

ea
l 

Li
vi

ng
 W

ag
e 

of
 £

8.
25

 
an

 h
ou

r 
 

 

67
%

 

 
Le

ed
s 

ch
ild

re
n 

 
cl

as
se

d 
as

 li
vi

ng
 

‘IN
 P

O
V

ER
TY

’ 

ar
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
fro

m
 

w
or

ki
ng

 fa
m

ili
es

 

1 
in

 8
of

 a
ll 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 in

 th
e 

 

bu
t i

n 
m

or
e 

de
pr

iv
ed

 a
re

as
 th

is
 

1 
in

 5
B

EN
EF

IT £ g
x
u

15
0,

00
0 

 P
EO

PL
E

 

  
w

ar
ds

 ra
nk

ed
  

am
on

gs
t  

th
e 

10
%

  
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
  

na
tio

na
lly

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T

0 
H

O
U

R
S

..........................................                            .............

9,
50

0
 W

O
R

K
ER

S
 

ar
e 

on
 z

er
o 

ho
ur

 c
on

tra
ct

s

A
t 9

.6
%

 

U
N

EM
PL

O
YM

EN
T

in
 L

ee
ds

 re
m

ai
ns

 ab
ov

e 
na

tio
na

l  
ris

es
 to

 m
or

e 
th

an

20
%

in
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s,
  

su
ch

 a
s 

S
ea

cr
of

t,  
H

un
sl

et
 a

nd
  

R
ic

hm
on

d 
H

ill

Page 51



11

• 
Le

ed
s 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

y 
W

ei
gh

t P
la

n 
20

16
-2

1

• 
Le

ed
s 

M
at

er
ni

ty
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

01
5-

20
 

• 
Le

ed
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r S

po
rt 

an
d 

A
ct

iv
e 

Li
fe

st
yl

es
 2

01
3-

18

• 
Le

ed
s 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

y 
W

ei
gh

t P
la

n 
20

16
-2

1

• 
Le

ed
s 

M
at

er
ni

ty
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

01
5-

20
 

• 
Le

ed
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r S

po
rt 

an
d 

A
ct

iv
e 

Li
fe

st
yl

es
 2

01
3-

18

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

 
re

la
te

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
:

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

re
-te

nd
er

in
g 

th
e 

Le
ed

s 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 H
ea

lth
y 

pe
op

le
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

in
 m

ul
tip

le
 u

nh
ea

lth
y 

lif
es

ty
le

s;
 re

sp
on

d 

he
al

th
; a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
pe

op
le

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
be

ha
vi

ou
r.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

w
ill 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
N

H
S 

H
ea

lth
ch

ec
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

is
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
 th

os
e 

m
os

t a
t n

ee
d 

an
d 

w
ill 

re
-c

om
m

is
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

up
ta

ke
 o

f 
ca

nc
er

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 w

ith
 ta

rg
et

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t o

ur
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 L

ee
ds

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
, 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 n
ee

d 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
ci

ty
. W

e 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 a

n
 u

p
d

at
ed

 L
ee

d
s 

 
S

u
ic

id
e 

P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 2
01

7-
20

– 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 L
ee

ds
 S

ui
ci

de
 

Au
di

t c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t i

n 
20

16
. T

he
 a

ud
it 

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e 

th
e 

‘g
ol

d 
st

an
da

rd
’ o

f b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

s 
a 

m
od

el
 fo

r o
th

er
 a

re
as

 to
 le

ar
n 

fro
m

. W
e 

ar
e 

in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 a
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 v

is
io

n 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 c

en
tre

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 o
f t

ho
se

 in
 m

os
t n

ee
d,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
la

ce
s 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ca

n 
be

 a
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ac
cr

ue
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

al
on

gs
id

e 
ou

r o
w

n 
Sp

or
ts

 a
nd

 A
ct

iv
e 

Li
fe

st
yl

es
, 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 F

oo
d 

C
ha

rte
r w

ith
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 
se

t a
 c

le
ar

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r f

oo
d 

an
d 

nu
tri

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 L

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

y 
W

ei
gh

t P
la

n 
w

ith
 a

ct
io

ns
 fo

r 2
01

7/
18

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 

pa
re

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
ea

rly
 y

ea
rs

; H
AP

PY
 –

 a
 n

ew
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
to

 
ta

ck
le

 m
at

er
na

l o
be

si
ty

; a
nd

 th
e 

H
ea

lth
y 

St
ar

t i
n 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 

in
iti

at
iv

e.
 H

el
pi

ng
 to

 g
iv

e 
ev

er
y 

ch
ild

 th
e 

be
st

 s
ta

rt 
in

 li
fe

, 
w

e 
w

ill 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

In
fa

nt
 F

ee
di

ng
 P

la
n,

 ‘F
oo

d 
fo

r 
Li

fe
’ b

y 
fu

rth
er

 e
m

be
dd

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 B
re

as
t F

ee
di

ng
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 W
e 

w
ill 

al
so

 s
ee

k 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 U
ni

ce
f U

K 
Ba

by
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

en
tre

s 
to

 g
ai

n 
St

ag
e 

1 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n.
 A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

a 
se

t o
f s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
fo

r m
at

er
ni

ty
 h

ea
lth

 v
is

iti
ng

, n
eo

na
ta

l a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

 h
ea

lth
y 

ag
ei

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

cr
os

s-
cu

tti
ng

 ‘b
re

ak
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

t’ 
M

ak
in

g 
Le

ed
s 

th
e 

be
st

 c
ity

 to
 g

ro
w

 o
ld

 in
 w

ith
 a

 fo
cu

s 
on

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
ac

tiv
ity

, m
al

nu
tri

tio
n,

 a
nd

 fa
lls

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

Le
ed

s 
C

C
G

s 
as

 a
 p

ilo
t f

or
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

w
ill

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
an

 o
ut

br
ea

k 
co

nt
ro

l p
la

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

Le
ed

s 
is

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
, r

es
ili

en
t a

nd
 re

sp
on

si
ve

 to
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

ou
tb

re
ak

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 le

ad
in

g 
on

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 to
 

ta
ck

le
 a

nt
im

ic
ro

bi
al

 re
si

st
an

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
Le

ed
s.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

le
ad

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

an
d 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

he
al

th
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 p
oo

r a
ir 

qu
al

ity
  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 s

yp
hi

lis
 te

st
in

g 
w

ith
in

 m
os

t a
t r

is
k 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
 v

ia
 Y

or
ks

hi
re

 M
es

m
ac

 

an
d 

H
ep

at
iti

s 
C

 w
ith

in
 ta

rg
et

ed
 G

P 
pr

ac
tic

es
.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

M
uc

h 
w

ill
 d

ep
en

d 
on

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 s
o 

–

w
e 

w
o

rk
 ‘w

it
h

’ a
n

d
 n

o
t ‘

d
o

 t
o

’ 

fa
ce

 o
f r

is
in

g 
co

st
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
cr

os
s 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e.
 

W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 g
re

at
er

 re
si

lie
nc

e 
in

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
so

 th
at

 m
or

e 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 s
up

po
rte

d 
to

 d
o 

m
or

e 
th

em
se

lv
es

, 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

ei
r h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
de

m
an

ds
 o

n 
pu

bl
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

T
h

e 
vi

si
on

 s
et

 o
u

t i
n

 th
e 

Le
ed

s 
H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
el

lb
ei

n
g

 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

is
 t

h
at

 w
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
h

ea
lt

h
y 

an
d

 c
ar

in
g

 
ci

ty
 fo

r 
al

l a
g

es
, w

h
er

e 
p

eo
p

le
 w

h
o 

ar
e 

th
e 

p
oo

re
st

 
w

ill
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
ei

r 
h

ea
lt

h
 t

h
e 

fa
st

es
t. 

B
y 

su
p

p
or

ti
n

g
 

h
ea

lt
h

y 
lif

es
ty

le
s,

 w
or

ki
n

g
 w

it
h

 c
om

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

an
d

 
ta

rg
et

in
g

 s
u

p
p

or
t 

in
 d

ep
ri

ve
d

 a
re

as
 w

e 
ca

n
 r

ed
u

ce
 

av
oi

d
ab

le
 d

ea
th

s,
 r

ed
u

ce
 a

vo
id

ab
le

 il
ln

es
s 

an
d

 
in

cr
ea

se
 h

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
el

lb
ei

n
g.

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 w

or
k

 

w
e 

w
ill

 im
p

ro
ve

 p
u

b
lic

 k
n

ow
le

d
g

e 
ab

ou
t 

h
ea

lt
h

y 
liv

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

fa
m

ili
es

 t
o 

b
e 

ac
tiv

e 
an

d
 

ta
ke

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
f t

h
ei

r 
ow

n
 h

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
el

lb
ei

n
g.

 
Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 h

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
el

lb
ei

n
g

 a
cr

os
s 

Le
ed

s 
n

ee
d

s 
to

 b
e 

ev
er

yo
n

e’
s 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

so
 w

e 
m

u
st

 w
or

k 
w

it
h

 
p

eo
p

le
 o

n
 w

h
at

 m
at

te
rs

 t
o 

th
em

 a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ti
m

e 
re

im
ag

in
e 

th
e 

w
ay

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d
 c

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

te
rv

en
e 

an
d

 w
or

k 
to

g
et

h
er

.

H
E

A
LT

H
 &

 W
E

LL
B

E
IN

G
  

T
ac

kl
in

g
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

an
d

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 in
eq

u
al

it
ie

s

T
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
ac

ro
ss

 L
ee

ds
, w

ith
 a

 g
ap

 

th
e 

m
os

t a
nd

 le
as

t d
ep

riv
ed

 
ar

ea
s 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 o

f  

10
.8

 y
rs

40
%

 

of
 a

vo
id

ab
le

 
de

at
hs

 d
ue

 to
 

un
he

al
th

y 
 

lif
es

ty
le

s

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 L

ee
ds

 a
re

  
en

te
rin

g 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 c
ha

ng
e,

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t  

an
d 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

ai
m

ed
 a

t m
ak

in
g 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
m

or
e 

pe
rs

on
-c

en
tre

d,
 jo

in
ed

-u
p 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
ta

tiv
e,

 w
hi

ls
t 

w
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
. T

o 
ta

ke
 th

is
 fo

rw
ar

ds
, t

he
 L

ee
ds

 H
ea

lth
  

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ith
 fo

ur
 th

em
es

: P
re

ve
nt

io
n;

 S
el

f-
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

of
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 C
ar

e 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s;
 U

rg
en

t  
C

ar
e 

/ R
ap

id
 R

es
po

ns
e 

in
 ti

m
es

 o
f C

ris
is

. M
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

ill 
be

 le
d 

by
 N

H
S 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, s
uc

h 
as

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
 

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e 

ca
re

 s
ys

te
m

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 c
ar

e 
ar

ou
nd

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 th

e 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 

pl
ay

 a
 le

ad
in

g 
ro

le
, w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r 

cr
os

s-
cu

tti
ng

 ‘b
re

ak
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

t’,
 E

ar
ly

 In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
H

ea
lth

 In
eq

ua
lit

ie
s.

 

A
cr

os
s 

Le
ed

s 
ar

ou
nd

 o
ne

 in
 

sa
y 

th
ey

 o
fte

n 
fe

el
 s

tre
ss

ed
 

33
%

of
 5

 y
ea

r-
ol

ds
  

in
 L

ee
ds

 h
av

e 
 

de
nt

al
 d

ec
ay

  
an

d 
ne

ar
ly

  
ha

lf 
of

 1
2 

 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
hi

gh
er

  

tra
ns

m
itt

ed
 in

fe
ct

io
ns

 
in

 L
ee

ds
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

th
e 

re
st

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 a

ffe
ct

in
g

15
-2

4 
YE

A
R

 O
LD

S.  

P
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 d
ep

riv
ed

 a
re

as
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 

ha
ve

 m
or

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 il

l h
ea

lth
, 

hi
gh

er
 le

ve
ls

 o
f p

oo
r m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
  

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
, a

nd
 m

en
ta

l i
lln

es
s

50
%

of
 a

ll 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 L
ee

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
th

e 
le

ve
ls

 o
f p

hy
si

ca
l 

 
– 

1 
in

 3
 a

re
 c

la
ss

ed
 

as
 o

be
se

 
ill

 h
ea

lth
 a

cr
os

s  
th

e 
ci

ty

Fo
r t

ho
se

 th
at

 n
ee

d 
 

ca
re

, t
hi

s 
is

 o
fte

n 
 

or
ga

ni
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

  
si

ng
le

 il
ln

es
se

s:
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

is
, i

ns
te

ad
, t

o 
lo

ok
 a

t a
ll 

of
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

’s
 

ne
ed

s 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 th
ei

r s
oc

ia
l 

an
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 

 

Page 52



13

Le
ed

s 
is

 o
n

e 
of

 th
e 

fa
st

es
t g

ro
w

in
g

 c
it

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
U

K
 w

it
h

 p
eo

p
le

 o
f d

iff
er

en
t a

ge
s 

an
d

 fr
om

 m
an

y 
d

iff
er

en
t b

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

s,
 c

u
ltu

re
s 

an
d

 b
el

ie
fs

 li
vi

n
g

 
an

d
 w

or
ki

n
g

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e 
ea

ch
 o

th
er

. A
s 

a 
C

it
y 

of
 

S
an

ct
u

ar
y,

 w
e 

ce
le

b
ra

te
 th

is
 r

ic
h

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 a

n
d

 w
an

t 
Le

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

w
el

co
m

in
g

 c
it

y 
fo

r 
al

l, 
w

h
er

e 
p

eo
p

le
 

ge
t o

n
 w

it
h

 e
ac

h
 o

th
er

 a
n

d
 fe

el
 li

ke
 th

ey
 a

re
 p

ar
t 

of
 th

ei
r 

lo
ca

l n
ei

g
h

b
ou

rh
oo

d
. T

o 
ac

h
ie

ve
 th

is
, w

e 
n

ee
d

 s
tr

on
g

 lo
ca

l l
ea

d
er

sh
ip

, t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 c
om

m
u

n
it

y 

co
nv

er
sa

ti
on

s 
to

 r
es

o
lv

e 
p

ro
b

le
m

s 
an

d
 c

o
n

fl
ic

t 
lo

ca
lly

, r
ai

se
 a

sp
ir

at
io

n
s,

 c
re

at
e 

b
et

te
r 

li
n

k
s 

to
 

so
ci

al
 a

n
d

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

 a
n

d
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

ci
ty

’s
 r

es
il

ie
n

ce
 t

o
 e

xt
re

m
is

t 
n

ar
ra

ti
ve

s.
 I

n
cr

ea
si

n
g

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

en
g

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 w
il

l 
re

d
u

ce
 d

ep
en

d
en

cy
 o

n
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
rv

ic
es

, b
u

il
d

in
g

 
m

o
re

 r
es

il
ie

n
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

ci
ty

 t
h

at
 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
b

es
t 

u
se

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
st

re
n

g
th

s 
an

d
 a

ss
et

s 
to

 
ov

er
co

m
e 

ch
al

le
n

g
es

.

R
E

S
IL

IE
N

T
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
T

ac
kl

in
g

 p
o

ve
rt

y 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s

T
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

. C
om

m
un

ity
 C

om
m

itt
ee

s 
ha

ve
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

w
ha

t i
s 

im
po

rta
nt

 to
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ey
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 p
la

y 
a 

ke
y 

ro
le

 in
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

w
ith

 re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 
lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

w
ill

 a
dd

 t
o

 o
u

r 
n

et
w

o
rk

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
H

u
b

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
, i

n
cr

ea
si

n
g

 t
h

es
e 

to
  

18
 in

 2
01

7/
18

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

10
. 

Th
e 

hu
bs

 o
ffe

r a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 c
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

jo
b 

se
ar

ch
in

g 
he

lp
 a

nd
 a

dv
ic

e,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 

a 
ve

nu
e 

fo
r p

op
-u

p 
su

rg
er

ie
s 

fro
m

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l c
ar

ee
rs

 s
er

vi
ce

, M
on

ey
 B

ud
di

es
 a

nd
 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
LC

C
U

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 s
tre

ng
th

en
, 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 h

ig
h 

co
st

 le
nd

er
s 

fo
r i

ts
 3

1,
00

0 
Le

ed
s 

m
em

be
rs

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 lo

w
er

 in
te

re
st

 w
eb

-

se
rv

ic
e 

of
fe

rin
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 lo

an
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

hi
gh

 
st

re
et

, a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 re
nt

-to
-b

uy
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
of

fe
rin

g 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

go
od

s 
at

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 ra

te
s.

 In
 re

sp
on

se
 

to
 re

se
ar

ch
 c

om
m

iss
io

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
co

un
cil

 a
nd

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

by
 L

ee
ds

 B
ec

ke
tt 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 in

to
 g

am
bl

in
g 

re
la

te
d 

ha
rm

 in
 

Le
ed

s,
 th

e 
co

un
cil

 is
 w

or
kin

g 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

os
e 

at
 ri

sk
.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

A 
nu

m
be

r o
f g

ov
er

nm
en

t w
el

fa
re

 re
fo

rm
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

si
nc

e 
20

13
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

ar
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r 2

01
7,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 U

ni
ve

rs
al

 C
re

di
t. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 m

on
ito

r t
he

se
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

d 
by

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 w

el
fa

re
-re

la
te

d 
su

pp
or

t. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 tr

ai
ne

d 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 o

r b
rin

g 
in

 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 d

ig
ita

l c
en

tre
 o

f 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
ith

 o
ur

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r p

ar
tn

er
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 re
fre

sh
 o

ur
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
, l

in
ke

d 
to

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
ou

nt
er

 

‘b
re

ak
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

t’,
 W

or
ld

 c
la

ss
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
a 

vi
br

an
t 

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fe

st
iv

al
s 

an
d 

ev
en

ts
 th

at
 

br
in

g 
pe

op
le

 to
ge

th
er

, s
uc

h 
as

 L
ee

ds
 P

rid
e,

 th
e 

Le
ed

s 
W

es
t I

nd
ia

n 
C

ar
ni

va
l, 

B
ee

st
on

 F
es

tiv
al

, M
or

le
y 

A
rts

 
an

d 
G

ar
fo

rth
 F

es
tiv

al
, a

nd
 m

an
y 

ot
he

r c
om

m
un

ity
 le

ve
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, f
es

tiv
al

s 
an

d 
ev

en
ts

.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 n
ew

 s
ig

np
os

tin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 c
en

tre
s 

w
ith

in
 c

om
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
la

ce
s 

of
 

w
or

sh
ip

 to
 c

on
ne

ct
 w

ith
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
vi

ct
im

s.
 W

e 
w

ill 
id

en
tif

y 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 ra
ci

sm
 a

nd
 re

lig
io

us
 

in
to

le
ra

nc
e 

im
pa

ct
in

g 
up

on
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
. W

e 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ci

ty
’s

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

al
l s

ta
ff 

ha
ve

 a
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 re

co
gn

is
e 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
s 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 is
su

es
. P

le
dg

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 to

 
he

lp
 e

m
be

d 
th

is
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Le
ed

s 
h

as
 a

 lo
n

g
-h

el
d

 c
o

m
m

it
m

en
t 

to
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

sy
lu

m
 s

ee
ke

rs
 a

n
d

 r
ef

u
ge

es
.

75
 S

yr
ia

n 
re

fu
ge

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l r
es

et
tle

m
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 L

ee
ds

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
be

en
 a

t t
he

 fo
re

fro
nt

 o
f 

w
el

co
m

in
g 

un
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 a

sy
lu

m
 s

ee
ki

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n:

 

nu
m

be
r i

s 
gr

ow
in

g.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
w

ay
 

as
 lo

ok
ed

-a
fte

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
bu

t c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 u
nd

er
 

th
e 

Im
m

ig
ra

tio
n 

Ac
t i

n 
ho

w
 w

e 
ca

n 
su

pp
or

t t
he

m
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 
re

ac
h 

18
. W

or
k 

is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 to
 m

or
e 

fu
lly

 u
nd

er
st

an
d,

 a
nd

 

su
pp

or
ts

 e
co

no
m

ic
 m

ig
ra

nt
s.

 A
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

ci
ty

-w
id

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

to
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 le
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Le
ed

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

M
ig

ra
tio

n 
Bo

ar
d,

 a
im

ed
 a

t i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
on

 a
ll 

si
de

s 
an

d 
br

in
gi

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f a

ll 
m

ig
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

he
lp

 th
em

 fu
lly

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty.
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
in

 s
af

et
y 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ci

ty
 

w
ith

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 fo
cu

s 
on

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
pe

op
le

. 

ha
rm

s 
in

 a
re

as
 o

f m
os

t n
ee

d 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
co

m
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 
an

d 
tim

el
y 

re
sp

on
se

s 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

en
te

rin
g 

po
lic

e 
cu

st
od

y.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

rr
es

ts
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 

in
 a

 s
af

e 
an

d 
se

cu
re

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 o

ur
 c

ro
ss

-
cu

tti
ng

 ‘b
re

ak
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

t’ 
Ta

ck
lin

g 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

an
d 

ab
us

e

se
e 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s 
fro

m
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
ha

t r
es

po
ns

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t c
an

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 v

ic
tim

s 
of

 

pi
lo

t, 
in

 w
hi

ch
 G

P 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

sk
 w

om
en

 if
 th

ey
 a

re
 

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 th
em

se
lv

es
 a

nd
  

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 th
e 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r, 

 
w

e 
ar

e 
he

lp
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

en
te

rp
ris

in
g 

an
d 

re
si

lie
nt

 th
ro

ug
h 

ci
tiz

en
-le

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

, s
up

po
rti

ng
 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

ac
tio

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
S

af
er

 
Le

ed
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
. M

uc
h 

of
 th

is
 is

 b
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 v
ia

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 c

ro
ss

-c
ut

tin
g 

‘b
re

ak
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

t’,
 S

tr
on

g 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

In
 2

01
7/

18
 w

e 
ar

e 
ro

llin
g 

ou
t a

 n
ew

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

’s
 p

rio
rit

y 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

re
as

. 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t w

ill 
be

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 n

ee
ds

, b
rin

gi
ng

 to
ge

th
er

 e
le

ct
ed

 m
em

be
rs

, l
oc

al
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 s
et

 o
ut

 a
 c

le
ar

, a
m

bi
tio

us
 

bu
t r

ea
lis

tic
 v

is
io

n 
of

 h
ow

 a
re

as
 c

an
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

Th
is

 n
ew

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
pr

om
ot

es
 lo

ca
l d

ec
is

io
n-

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l c

ha
ng

e 
w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 d

ire
ct

or
at

es
 

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

E
qu

al
ity

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

rio
rit

ie
s 

20
16

-2
0

• 
C

iti
ze

ns
@

Le
ed

s 
– 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 ta

ck
lin

g 

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

 
re

la
te

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
:

20
%

of
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
 

– 
al

m
os

t 1
55

,0
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

 
in

 6
5,

00
0 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
  

‘A
B

SO
LU

TE
 

PO
V

ER
TY

’ 

86
,0

00
 

Le
ed

s 
re

si
de

nt
s 

bo
rn

 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
U

K

W
hi

le
 th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f  
as

yl
um

 s
ee

ke
rs

 a
nd

  
re

fu
ge

es
 in

 L
ee

ds
  

ar
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
, 

R
A

C
E 

H
AT

E
 

an
d 

de
st

itu
tio

n  
ca

n 
af

fe
ct

 th
es

e 
pe

op
le

’s
 li

ve
s 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
ne

ed
ed

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

w
ith

 fo
od

 v
ia

 a
 

FO
O

D
 B

A
N

K
 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 

ar
ou

nd
 2

0,
00

0 
to

 2
5,

00
0 

77
4,

00
0+

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 L

ee
ds

 –
 

fo
re

ca
st

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

12
%

 to
 2

02
1.

W
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

  
th

e 
m

ak
eu

p 
of

  
ou

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

  
ha

s 
al

so
 c

ha
ng

ed
:  

it 
is

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

D
IV

ER
SE

w
ith

...
 

17
0 

di
ffe

re
nt

 la
ng

ua
ge

s 
sp

ok
en

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty

B
et

w
ee

n 
20

05
 a

nd
 2

01
5,

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 L
ee

ds
 

gr
ew

 b
y 

 5.
3%

m
or

e 
th

an
 h

al
f 

ar
riv

ed
 in

 th
e 

la
st

 
10

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 n

ea
rly

 
on

e 
th

ird
 w

er
e 

ag
ed

 
15

 o
r y

ou
ng

er
14

0 
di

ffe
re

nt
  

et
hn

ic
 g

ro
up

s 

Page 53



15

W
e 

w
ill

 c
o

n
su

lt
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti

nu
e 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 

o
u

r 
p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
o

ge
th

er
 w

e 
fo

cu
s 

o
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
ll 

ch
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 
to

 r
ea

ch
 t

h
ei

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
. 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

lo
ca

l m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
ce

nt
re

d 
on

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

ce
nt

re
s 

at
 th

e 
he

ar
t o

f c
om

m
un

iti
es

. T
he

y 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
e,

 g
ov

er
no

rs
, 

ho
us

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

, t
hi

rd
 s

ec
to

r, 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
el

ec
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
. I

n 
20

17
/1

8 
w

e 
w

ill
 s

tre
ng

th
en

 th
es

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

or
di

na
te

d 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 w

ho
 re

qu
ire

 
in

te
ns

iv
e 

su
pp

or
t. 

In
iti

al
ly

 th
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

in
 e

ig
ht

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

w
e 

ha
d 

be
en

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l i

n 
ou

r b
id

 fo
r i

nn
ov

at
io

n 
fu

nd
in

g.
 

fo
r c

hi
ld

 w
el

fa
re

 in
 L

ee
ds

, b
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 o
ur

 c
ur

re
nt

 ‘g
oo

d’
 

fo
r t

hr
ee

 k
ey

 a
re

as
: e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 th

e 
ne

w
 R

E
S

Ts
; a

 
re

st
or

at
iv

e 
ad

ol
es

ce
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

, o
ffe

rin
g 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t e
m

ot
io

na
l w

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 

‘p
ar

tn
er

 in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e’

. 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
ac

tiv
ity

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 o

ur
  

ba
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

: 

th
re

e 
‘o

b
se

ss
io

n
s’

 –
 t

o
 r

ed
u

ce
 t

h
e 

 
n

ee
d

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n

 t
o

 e
n

te
r 

ca
re

;  
im

p
ro

ve
 s

ch
o

o
l a

tt
en

d
an

ce
;  

an
d

 r
ed

u
ce

 t
h

e 
nu

m
b

er
 o

f 
yo

u
n

g
  

p
eo

p
le

 c
la

ss
ed

 a
s 

‘N
E

E
T

’  
(n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

, e
m

p
lo

y
m

en
t 

o
r 

tr
ai

n
in

g
). 

  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

C
om

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
C

Y
P

P 
is

 th
e 

Le
ed

s 
B

es
t S

ta
rt 

P
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 a

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 b
ro

ad
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fro
m

 c
on

ce
pt

io
n 

to
 a

ge
 2

 y
ea

rs
 a

im
ed

 
at

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
a 

go
od

 s
ta

rt 
fo

r e
ve

ry
 b

ab
y,

 w
ith

 e
ar

ly
 

ea
rly

 in
 th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
e 

ch
ild

. 

In
 2

01
7/

18
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

B
es

t S
ta

rt 
P

la
n,

 w
e 

w
ill

 in
tro

du
ce

 th
e 

B
ab

y 
B

ud
dy

 a
pp

, a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
re

so
ur

ce
 fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 o
f u

nd
er

 2
s;

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 H

ap
py

 B
ab

y 
in

te
rg

en
er

at
io

na
l w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 a

im
s 

to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
to

 
ol

de
r p

eo
pl

e 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 w

e 
ra

is
e 

ha
pp

y,
 h

ea
lth

y 
ch

ild
re

n;
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 re
ce

nt
 H

ea
lth

 N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f 

M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 N

ut
rit

io
n,

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 o

ur
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

pr
im

ar
y 

ph
as

e 
an

d 
so

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r a
dd

itio
na

l s
ec

on
da

ry
 p

la
ce

s 
is 

un
de

rw
ay

, h
el

pi
ng

 u
s 

m
ee

t o
ur

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

ut
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ev

er
y 

ch
ild

 in
 L

ee
ds

 h
as

 a
 s

ch
oo

l p
la

ce
. B

et
w

ee
n 

20
16

 a
nd

 2
02

3 
th

e 

pl
ac

es
 –

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
de

m
an

d.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

N
H

S
 a

nd
 

w
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

on
ly

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 h
av

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

a 
jo

in
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 th

is
 w

ay
.  

A
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
le

ar
n

in
g

  
p

ro
v

is
io

n
, u

n
d

er
p

in
n

ed
 b

y
 a

£4
5m

 in
ve

st
m

en
t,  

w
ill

 b
e 

o
p

er
at

io
n

al
 b

y
  

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

8,
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 w

o
rl

d
-c

la
ss

  
p

ro
v

is
io

n
, w

h
en

 n
ee

d
ed

, f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
  

w
it

h
 S

E
M

H
 n

ee
d

s.
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
. 

20
16

, a
ss

es
si

ng
 o

ur
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
sp

ec
ia

l e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 T
he

 o
ut

co
m

es
 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
17

. I
t h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
ar

ea
s 

of
 s

tre
ng

th
 a

nd
 fo

r 
fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
hi

ch
 c

or
re

la
te

 w
el

l w
ith

 o
ur

 o
w

n 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 th
at

 w
ill

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
ou

r s
tre

ng
th

s 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

s 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 fu

rth
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
hi

le
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 L

ee
ds

 w
ho

 a
re

 lo
ok

ed
 

af
te

r b
y 

th
e 

st
at

e 
is

 a
t i

ts
 lo

w
es

t f
or

 m
or

e 
th

an
 1

0 
ye

ar
s,

 
m

or
e 

w
or

k 
is

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 s

af
el

y 
re

du
ce

 th
is

 n
um

be
r f

ur
th

er
 

pr
ov

id
er

s.
 T

he
 Y

or
ks

hi
re

 a
nd

 H
um

be
r r

eg
io

na
l a

do
pt

io
n 

ag
en

cy
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 a
 b

id
 to

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t t

o 
se

t u
p 

a 
re

gi
on

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 a

do
pt

io
n,

 w
ith

 th
re

e 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 a

do
pt

io
n 

ag
en

ci
es

. L
ee

ds
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
ct

in
g 

as
 th

e 
le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y 
fo

r t
he

 w
es

t s
ub

-r
eg

io
n.

 T
he

 n
ew

 
ag

en
cy

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 m
or

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

Th
es

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ill 
al

so
 h

el
p 

re
sp

on
d 

 

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

  
re

la
te

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
:

 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 
as

p
ir

at
io

n
 t

o
 b

e 
a 

ch
il

d
-f

ri
en

d
ly

 c
it

y,
 

w
e 

ar
e 

m
ak

in
g

 a
 r

ea
l d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 in

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

, y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

ei
r 

fa
m

il
ie

s.
 M

o
re

 
ch

il
d

re
n

 in
 L

ee
d

s 
ar

e 
n

ow
 s

af
e 

an
d

 s
ec

u
re

 in
 

fa
m

il
ie

s;
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 h

av
e 

g
re

at
er

 
vo

ic
e 

an
d

 in
fl

u
en

ce
; a

n
d

 a
n

 in
cr

ea
si

n
g

 n
u

m
b

er
 

ar
e 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g

 g
o

o
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
es

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 m

ak
in

g
 

g
o

o
d

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 t
h

ei
r 

le
ar

n
in

g.
 T

h
is

 is
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

jo
u

rn
ey

: w
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 t
h

is
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 b
y 

co
n

ti
nu

in
g

 t
o

 p
u

t 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 a
t 

th
e 

h
ea

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
co

u
n

ci
l’s

 p
o

li
ci

es
 a

n
d

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g,

 s
ta

yi
n

g
 f

o
cu

se
d

 o
n

 k
ee

p
in

g
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 s

af
e 

an
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

o
lle

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 f
am

il
ie

s 
g

et
 

th
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
ey

 n
ee

d
. O

u
r 

ai
m

 is
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

, y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 
fa

m
il

ie
s 

w
h

o
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 in

eq
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

o
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
es

 a
re

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
d

 r
es

p
o

n
d

ed
 t

o
 a

s 
so

o
n

 a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
.

C
H

IL
D

 F
R

IE
N

D
LY

 C
IT

Y
T

ac
kl

in
g

 p
o

ve
rt

y 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s

T
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 

26
,4

00
un

de
r 1

6s
  

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ci

ty
 

es
tim

at
ed

 to
 b

e

LI
V

IN
G

 IN
 

PO
V

ER
TY

...

W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

ui
ld

  
th

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 o
f 

8 
 N

EW
 H

IG
H

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 

by
 2

02
3 

to
  

m
an

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
 

de
m

an
d 

 
fo

r s
ch

oo
l 

pl
ac

es

• 
Fu

tu
re

 in
 M

in
d:

 L
ee

ds
 2

01
6-

20
 (A

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

so
ci

al
, e

m
ot

io
na

l, 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
ge

d 
0-

25
 y

ea
rs

)

• 
Le

ed
s 

Jo
in

t S
tra

te
gi

c 
N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 2

01
5

• 
Le

ed
s 

Jo
in

t H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

...
W

ith
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g 
ch

ild
  

po
pu

la
tio

n,
 a

nd
 th

at
 g

ro
w

th
 

be
in

g 
gr

ea
te

st
 in

 th
e 

po
or

er
 

an
d 

m
or

e 
di

ve
rs

e 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

...
th

at
 is

 

18
.1

%
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

  
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 

14
.7

%
 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
...

H
ow

ev
er

, r
eg

io
na

lly
 th

e 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
cl

as
se

d 
as

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
  

   
   

 o
r v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
le

ar
ne

rs
 is

     
   

 b
el

ow
 n

at
io

na
l

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.  

vi
si

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

is
 B

es
t C

ou
nc

il 
Pl

an
  

in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

w
e 

ar
e 

do
in

g 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 p
la

ce
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
liv

e 
an

d 
pl

ay
 a

nd
 

be
tte

r t
he

ir 
ov

er
al

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

. S
om

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 s

ta
tis

tic
al

ly
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

po
or

 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s;

 th
os

e 
fro

m
 s

om
e 

et
hn

ic
 m

in
or

ity
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
; 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 E

ng
lis

h 
as

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
an

gu
ag

e;
 p

oo
r s

ch
oo

l 

 ..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

at
te

nd
er

s;
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
sy

st
em

, 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

th
os

e 
liv

in
g 

in
 m

or
e 

de
pr

iv
ed

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
ds

.  

is
 a

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

; 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

fro
m

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

th
re

e 
‘A

s’
: t

he
ir 

‘a
tte

nd
an

ce
’ 

at
 s

ch
oo

l; 
th

ei
r a

bi
lit

y 
to

 ‘a
ch

ie
ve

’ w
el

l s
oc

ia
lly

; a
nd

 th
ei

r 
ac

ad
em

ic
 ‘a

tta
in

m
en

t’.
 

   
P

oo
r  

at
ta

in
m

en
t a

t  
sc

ho
ol

 h
as

 a
 s

ta
rk

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ad
ul

t 
ou

tc
om

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

em
pl

oy
ab

ili
ty

,  
ea

rn
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l, 

 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 h

ea
lth

 in
  

la
te

r l
ife

 a
nd

 li
fe

  

R
es

ea
rc

h 
te

lls
 u

s 
th

at
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

is
 th

e 
ke

y 
to

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
re

si
lie

nt
 

ad
ul

ts
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

 
ad

ul
t o

ut
co

m
es

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
  

an
d 

H
um

be
r  

is
 th

e 

2n
d

 
LO

W
ES

T
 

E
ng

lis
h 

re
gi

on
 fo

r G
C

S
E

 
at

ta
in

m
en

t f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
on

 
fre

e 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ea

ls
 

 

Page 54



  

17

H
el

p
in

g
 p

eo
p

le
 t

o
 b

e 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t, 

liv
e 

in
 d

ig
n

it
y 

an
d

 e
n

jo
y 

h
ap

p
y,

 h
ea

lt
h

y 
an

d
 a

ct
iv

e 
liv

es
 is

 a
t 

th
e 

h
ea

rt
 o

f 
Le

ed
s’ 

am
b

it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e 
a 

co
m

p
as

si
o

n
at

e 
ci

ty
 

w
it

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y.
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
is

, o
n

e 
o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 is
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 p

eo
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
ar

e 
n

ee
d

s 
ar

e 

g
iv

en
 t

h
e 

ri
g

h
t 

ca
re

 a
t 

th
e 

ri
g

h
t 

ti
m

e.
 W

h
er

e 
p

eo
p

le
 

ar
e 

ab
le

 t
o

 b
e 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

t, 
w

e 
w

il
l h

el
p

 t
h

em
 

g
et

 t
h

e 
ri

g
h

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 

en
ab

le
 t

h
is

 f
o

r 
as

 lo
n

g
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

. 

B
E

T
T

E
R

 L
IV

E
S

 F
O

R
 P

E
O

PL
E

 W
IT

H
  

C
A

R
E

 A
N

D
 S

U
PP

O
R

T
 N

E
E

D
S

  
T

ac
kl

in
g

 p
o

ve
rt

y 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s

T
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

fa
ci

ng
 th

es
e 

ch
al

le
ng

es
  

to
ge

th
er

 a
s 

a 
ci

ty
, w

or
ki

ng
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
el

y 
 

to
 tr

an
sf

or
m

 h
ow

 w
e 

su
pp

or
t p

eo
pl

e’
s 

 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

ne
ed

s,
 w

hi
le

  
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
pr

io
rit

is
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e.

O
u

r 
st

ra
te

g
y

 is
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

ge
th

er
 w

it
h

 
p

eo
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
ar

e 
an

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

ee
d

s 
an

d
 t

h
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 t

o
 fi

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
es

 t
h

at
 

d
ra

w
 o

n
 t

h
ei

r 
st

re
n

g
th

s 
an

d
 a

ss
et

s 
to

 
h

el
p

 t
h

em
 s

ta
y

 w
el

l a
n

d
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

fo
r 

as
 lo

n
g

 a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
. 

It 
pr

om
ot

es
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 to

 b
e 

co
-

pr
od

uc
er

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t r
at

he
r t

ha
n 

so
le

ly
 

co
ns

um
er

s 
of

 th
os

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, t

he
re

by
 re

st
or

in
g 

th
ei

r 
di

gn
ity

 a
s 

eq
ua

l a
nd

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

iti
ze

ns
 o

f L
ee

ds
.

K
ey

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 in
cl

ud
e:

 h
el

pi
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
ca

re
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
ne

ed
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 li

ve
 th

e 
w

ay
 th

ey
 w

an
t t

o;
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

sh
or

t-t
er

m
 h

el
p 

fo
r o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 le
av

in
g 

ho
sp

ita
l; 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s;

 b
rin

gi
ng

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
to

ge
th

er
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
os

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 is

ol
at

ed
 o

r w
ith

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t n
ee

ds
; i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
he

lp
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 fr

ie
nd

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
ne

ed
s;

 
en

su
rin

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t n
ee

ds
 a

re
 s

af
e;

 
he

lp
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 p
hy

si
ca

l o
r m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 
to

 le
ar

n/
re

-le
ar

n 
sk

ill
s 

fo
r i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 li

vi
ng

. T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 
ca

n 
be

 b
ro

ke
n 

do
w

n 
in

to
 th

re
e 

ar
ea

s:
 

b
et

te
r 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
s,

  
b

et
te

r 
liv

in
g

 a
n

d
  

b
et

te
r 

co
nv

er
sa

ti
o

n
s

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

B
et

te
r 

L
iv

es
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 B

et
te

r 
C

o
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
s

W
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
lo

ca
l s

up
po

rt 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 u

se
 c

iti
ze

n-
dr

iv
en

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

to
 re

du
ce

 is
ol

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
. W

e 
ar

e 
lin

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 in
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 to
 

su
pp

or
t c

or
po

ra
te

 s
oc

ia
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

. 

In
 2

01
7 

th
is

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e:

• 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 lo

ca
l p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
ith

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

pr
ov

id
er

s;

to
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

an
d 

ca
re

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

ne
ed

s;
 a

nd

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

bu
ild

 c
ap

ac
ity

 w
ith

in
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

to
 o

ffe
r s

up
po

rt 
to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t n
ee

ds
. 

 .
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.  

B
et

te
r 

L
iv

es
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 B

et
te

r 
L

iv
in

g

W
e 

ar
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t n

ee
ds

 to
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 
op

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
na

bl
in

g 
m

or
e 

pe
op

le
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
th

ei
r s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 d

ire
ct

ly,
 e

ith
er

 in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 o
r c

ol
le

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 o
th

er
s 

in
 a

 s
im

ila
r s

itu
at

io
n.

 W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ou

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 ta

rg
et

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 h

el
pi

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 re
co

ve
r t

he
ir 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
an

 a
cc

id
en

t o
r i

lln
es

s 
an

d 
w

ill 
up

 o
ur

 
ga

m
e 

on
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

in
g 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 

• 
Le

ed
s 

w
ill

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lts

 
in

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l c

ar
e 

by
 fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

H
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

; 
• 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t r
es

id
en

tia
l d

em
en

tia
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

in
ce

nt
iv

is
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t n

ur
si

ng
 c

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 L
ee

ds
; a

nd
• 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

em
er

gi
ng

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
S

tra
te

gy
, d

ev
el

op
 a

 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

tra
ns

po
rt 

to
 m

ak
e 

ge
tti

ng
 in

to
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
ci

ty
 e

as
ie

r. 

M
or

e 
br

oa
dl

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 c
ro

ss
-c

ut
tin

g 
‘b

re
ak

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oj

ec
t’,

 M
ak

in
g 

Le
ed

s 
th

e 
be

st
 p

la
ce

 to
 g

ro
w

 o
ld

 in
. T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 c
on

si
de

rin
g:

 
tra

ns
po

rt 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e;
 h

ow
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 
fe

el
, a

nd
 a

re
, s

af
e;

 a
nd

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
ol

de
r p

eo
pl

e 
in

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 

cu
ltu

re
, e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rin
g.

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

B
et

te
r 

L
iv

es
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 B

et
te

r 
C

o
n

ve
rs

at
io

n
s

re
vi

si
on

 to
 it

s 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 in
tro

du
ce

 s
tre

ng
th

s-
ba

se
d 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 s
im

pl
ify

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

hr
ou

gh
 d

ire
ct

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 fu

nd
s.

 W
e 

w
an

t p
eo

pl
e 

to
 h

av
e 

ne
w

 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

on
ve

rs
at

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 a

 p
er

so
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t n
ee

ds
. T

he
se

 w
ill

 fo
cu

s 
on

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 
as

pi
ra

tio
n,

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 c
ap

ac
ity

; e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n;
 

sw
ift

 re
sp

on
se

s 
in

 a
 c

ris
is

; a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e,
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 b
y 

ci
tiz

en
s.

 

• 
Le

ed
s 

B
et

te
r L

iv
es

 S
tra

te
gy

 (u
pd

at
ed

  
ve

rs
io

n 
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t –
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

su
m

m
er

 2
01

7)

• 
Le

ed
s 

Jo
in

t S
tra

te
gi

c 
N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 2

01
5

• 
Le

ed
s 

Lo
ca

l A
cc

ou
nt

 2
01

6/
17

• 
Le

ed
s 

Jo
in

t H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

• 
Le

ed
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
du

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
en

d 
20

17

• 
Le

ed
s 

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 W

ar
m

th
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

01
7-

30

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

  
re

la
te

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
: 

 
20

 y
ea

rs
 th

e 
 65

-8
5

 A
G

E 
G

R
O

U
P 

is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

 

1/
3

5%
 

ye
ar

s 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

’s
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

po
pu

la
tio

n:
 it

 
no

w
 s

ta
nd

s 
at

 m
or

e 
th

an
 

3,
00

0 
PE

O
PL

E
 

10
%

 

in
 L

ee
ds

 a
re

 a
ge

d 
ov

er
 6

0 

R
es

id
en

ts
 a

ge
d 

85
 a

nd
 

ov
er

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

Le
ed

s’
 a

du
lt 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
w

ith
 d

em
en

tia
  

is
 p

re
di

ct
ed

 to
 ri

se
 b

et
w

ee
n 

 

50
%

fro
m

 ju
st

  
ov

er
 8

,0
00
  

to
 1

2,
00

0
 

   
W

e 
fa

ce
 th

e 
tw

in
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 

gr
ow

in
g 

an
d 

ag
ei

ng
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

ith
 m

or
e 

re
qu

iri
ng

 g
re

at
er

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
in

te
ns

e 
 

le
ve

ls
 o

f  
su

pp
or

t

Th
is

 g
ro

w
th

 is
 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 

am
on

gs
t y

ou
ng

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
m

os
t p

ro
fo

un
d 

ne
ed

s 
fo

r c
ar

e

ab
ou

t t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
– 

th
is

 h
as

 le
d 

 
to

 a
 n

at
io

na
l d

riv
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 le

ve
l o

f p
eo

pl
e’

s 

of
 th

ei
r s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t  
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 fo
cu

s 
 

on
 th

e 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
  

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

x

...................... ................................

70
,0

00
 

pe
ns

io
ne

r h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

in
 L

ee
ds

 –
 o

ve
r h

al
f a

re
 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
al

on
e

S
ou

rc
e:

 2
01

1 
ce

ns
us

15
%

 
ol

de
r p

eo
pl

e 
de

sc
rib

ed
 

as
 lo

ne
ly

 o
r s

oc
ia

lly
 

is
ol

at
ed

Tr
en

ds
 s

ug
ge

st
 th

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
  

po
pu

la
tio

n 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
ith

 m
od

er
at

e 
or

  
se

ve
re

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s  

w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

ar
ou

nd  
7.

5%
 

C
H

O
IC

E 
A

N
D

 C
O

N
TR

O
L

Page 55



 

19

Le
ed

s 
is

 a
 g

ro
w

in
g

 c
it

y.
  W

e 
h

av
e 

a 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 7

7
4

,0
0

0
 t

h
at

 is
 f

o
re

ca
st

 t
o

 r
is

e 
fu

rt
h

er
 a

s 
th

e 
ci

ty
 e

xp
an

d
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
ec

o
n

o
m

y 
st

re
n

g
th

en
s.

 A
 

st
ra

te
g

ic
, i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 t
o

 p
la

n
n

in
g,

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
an

d
 d

el
iv

er
in

g
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
o

r 
Le

ed
s 

w
il

l 
h

el
p

 u
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
is

 g
ro

w
th

. I
m

p
ro

vi
n

g
 c

o
n

n
ec

ti
vi

ty
 

w
il

l b
ri

n
g

 n
ew

 m
ar

ke
ts

 w
it

h
in

 r
ea

ch
 f

o
r 

b
u

si
n

es
s,

 
n

ew
 j

o
b

s 
w

it
h

in
 r

ea
ch

 f
o

r 
p

eo
p

le
, a

n
d

 a
 w

id
er

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
w

it
h

in
 r

ea
ch

 f
o

r 
em

p
lo

ye
rs

. I
n

 li
n

e 
w

it
h

 
b

ei
n

g
 a

 c
o

m
p

as
si

o
n

at
e 

ci
ty

, w
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
is

 in
 

a 
w

ay
 t

h
at

 e
n

su
re

s 
Le

ed
s 

is
 li

ve
ab

le
 a

n
d

 h
ea

lt
h

y,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
p

ro
sp

er
o

u
s.

 W
e 

n
ee

d
: a

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 s
ys

te
m

 
th

at
’s

 fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

2
1

st
 c

en
tu

ry
, c

o
n

n
ec

ti
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 
p

la
ce

s 
an

d
 h

el
p

in
g

 u
s 

im
p

ro
ve

 a
ir

 q
u

al
it

y;
 a

 d
ig

it
al

ly
 

co
n

n
ec

te
d

 a
n

d
 e

n
ab

le
d

 c
it

y 
an

d
 in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 t

h
at

 
ca

n
 c

o
p

e 
w

it
h

 e
xt

re
m

e 
w

ea
th

er
 a

n
d

 u
n

ex
p

ec
te

d
 

ev
en

ts
; a

n
d

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 q
u

al
it

y,
 a

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 a

n
d

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 h
o

m
es

 t
h

at
 c

at
er

 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

g
ro

w
in

g
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

, p
ro

te
ct

 t
h

e 
q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
an

d
 r

es
p

ec
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
id

en
ti

ty
. 

T
R

A
N

S
PO

R
T

 &
 IN

FR
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 

T
ac

kl
in

g
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

an
d

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 in
eq

u
al

it
ie

s

T
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t l

ev
el

 o
f  

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

 
in

 th
e 

N
or

th
 is

 n
ot

 e
no

ug
h

S
ou

rc
e:

 IP
P

R

£2
47

 

sp
en

d 
pe

r p
er

so
n 

in
YO

R
K

SH
IR

E 
&

  
H

U
M

B
ER

SI
D

E
32

%
 

of
 L

ee
ds

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

 
ha

ve
 n

o 
ca

r
S

ou
rc

e:
 2

01
1 

ce
ns

us

£1
,8

70
 

sp
en

d 
pe

r p
er

so
n 

in
 

LO
N

D
O

N

ha
s 

m
aj

or
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

in
 

re
lia

bi
lit

y,
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

ho
us

e 
pr

ic
e 

is
 

 7
x 

H
IG

H
ER

 th
an

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

si
ng

le
 

of
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

 s
ec

to
r 

un
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 to
 m

an
y 

lo
w

 
in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

24
,0

00
A

PP
LI

C
A

N
TS

 
on

 th
e 

so
ci

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 L

ee
ds

 
H

om
e 

R
eg

is
te

r i
n 

20
16

 in
 

pa
rt 

du
e 

to
 p

oo
r q

ua
lit

y,
 

un
sa

fe
,u

nh
ea

lth
y 

an
d 

 
co

st
ly

 p
riv

at
e 

re
nt

al
s 

C
on

ge
st

io
n 

is
 a

n 
is

su
e 

on
 b

us
y 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 c
au

si
ng

 jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

de
la

ys
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tin

g 
to

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 is

su
es

Le
ed

s 
is

 th
e 

bu
si

es
t  

st
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
N

or
th

 w
ith

 

37
 m

ill
io

n 
 

PA
SS

EN
G

ER
S
 

...................          ...........

..........................................................

 O
N

LY

18
.5

%
 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

tra
ve

l t
o 

w
or

k 
 

by
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t 

• 
Le

ed
s 

S
ite

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 P

la
n 

20
12

-2
8 

• 
Le

ed
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

• 
Le

ed
s 

G
ro

w
th

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

7-
20

 (i
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t –

 d
ue

 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
su

m
m

er
 2

01
7)

 –
 

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 R
eg

io
n 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
E

co
no

m
ic

 P
la

n 
20

16
-3

6

• 
W

es
t Y

or
ks

hi
re

 L
ow

 E
m

is
si

on
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

• 
W

es
t Y

or
ks

hi
re

 L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

P
la

n 
20

11
-2

6
• 

W
es

t Y
or

ks
hi

re
 C

om
bi

ne
d 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tra
te

gy
 

(in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t)

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

C
on

ne
ct

in
g 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

ci
ty

 a
nd

  
th

e 
re

gi
on

, w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 u

ni
qu

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
  

in
ve

st
 in

 n
ew

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

gr
ow

th
 in

 
th

e 
ci

ty
, u

si
ng

 £
17

3m
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 

tro
lle

yb
us

 s
ys

te
m

. W
ith

 lo
ca

l a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 th
e 

to
ta

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t p

ac
ka

ge
 is

 w
or

th
 

ar
ou

nd
 £

27
0m

. L
at

er
 in

 2
01

7 
w

e 
w

ill
 p

ub
lis

h 
a 

Le
ed

s 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tra
te

gy
, g

ui
de

d 
by

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

dv
is

or
y 

pa
ne

l a
nd

 ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 th

e 
8,

00
0 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 p

ut
 th

ei
r v

ie
w

s 
fo

rw
ar

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

20
16

 
‘T

ra
ns

po
rt 

C
on

ve
rs

at
io

n’
.

Sh
or

te
r-t

er
m

 p
ro

po
sa

ls 
in

clu
de

 tr
an

sf
or

m
in

g 
th

e 
bu

s 
ne

tw
or

k 
w

ith
 a

 m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

t s
er

vic
e,

 m
or

e 
bu

s 
st

op
s 

w
ith

 re
al

 ti
m

e 

an
d 

co
nt

ac
tle

ss
 p

ay
m

en
ts

; d
ev

el
op

in
g 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lity
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

hu
bs

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t f

or
 k

ey
 e

co
no

m
ic 

hu
bs

 s
uc

h 
as

 L
ee

ds
 

Br
ad

fo
rd

 A
irp

or
t, 

Th
or

pe
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 R

os
e,

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

pe
op

le
 to

 jo
bs

; a
nd

 2
,0

00
 a

dd
itio

na
l p

ar
k 

an
d 

rid
e 

sp
ac

es
 to

 
re

du
ce

 c
on

ge
st

io
n.

 

A
s 

th
e 

la
rg

es
t 

ci
ty

 in
 W

es
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

a 
m

o
d

er
n

 m
as

s 
tr

an
si

t 
n

et
w

o
rk

, 
o

u
r 

lo
n

ge
r-

te
rm

 a
m

b
it

io
n

 r
em

ai
n

s 
to

 
h

av
e 

a 
tr

an
sp

o
rt

 s
y

st
em

 t
h

at
 c

an
 m

ov
e 

la
rg

e 
nu

m
b

er
s 

o
f 

p
eo

p
le

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
 a

n
d

 c
it

y
 r

eg
io

n

St
at

io
n 

to
 c

on
ne

ct
 H

S2
, N

or
th

er
n 

Po
w

er
ho

us
e 

R
ai

l a
nd

 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 s

er
vic

es
. B

ot
h 

sh
or

t-t
er

m
 a

nd
 lo

ng
er

-te
rm

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 o
ur

 lo
w

 c
ar

bo
n,

 b
et

te
r a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
im

s.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

H
S2

 is
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 L
ee

ds
 w

ith
 a

n 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 re

-im
ag

in
e 

th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tre
, a

cc
el

er
at

in
g 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 w

ha
t i

s 
al

re
ad

y 
on

e 
of

 E
ur

op
e’

s 
la

rg
es

t r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
: L

ee
ds

 S
ou

th
 

Ba
nk

. T
he

 w
at

er
fro

nt
 w

ill 
be

 c
om

pl
et

el
y 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ar
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

in
g 

th
e 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
Le

ed
s 

Fl
oo

d 
Al

le
vi

at
io

n 

th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tre
 a

nd
 H

un
sl

et
, a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

on
 th

e 
R

iv
er

 W
ha

rfe
.  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e:
 th

e 
ci

ty
 is

 th
e 

ho
m

e 
of

 th
e 

on
ly

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

of
 E

ng
la

nd
; o

ve
r 1

,3
50

 d
ig

ita
l c

om
pa

ni
es

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 in

 
Le

ed
s 

an
d 

w
e 

ha
ve

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t n

um
be

r o
f s

ca
le

-u
p 

di
gi

ta
l 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
So

ut
h 

Ea
st

; w
e 

ar
e 

a 
w

or
ld

 le
ad

er
 

N
or

th
. G

oi
ng

 fo
rw

ar
ds

, w
e 

w
ill 

bu
ild

 o
n 

th
es

e 
st

re
ng

th
s,

 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 o
ur

 ‘S
m

ar
t C

iti
es

’ w
or

k:
 s

ee
ki

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 u

se
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 to
 h

el
p 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

da
ta

; g
ro

w
in

g 
pe

op
le

’s
 d

ig
ita

l s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 th

ei
r a

cc
es

s 
to

 
th

e 
in

te
rn

et
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
em

 to
 b

e 
be

tte
r c

on
ne

ct
ed

 a
nd

 

m
or

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 IT
 p

la
tfo

rm
s 

an
d 

be
tte

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
ci

ty
, 

en
ab

lin
g 

m
or

e 
jo

in
ed

-u
p 

ca
re

.  
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
e 

Le
ed

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

01
6-

21
 s

et
s 

ou
t o

ur
 a

m
bi

tio
ns

 
fo

r e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
ee

tin
g 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

Le
ed

s 

pr
io

rit
ie

s:
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

; i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

qu
al

ity
; p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t l
iv

in
g;

 c
re

at
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
itie

s;
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

he
al

th
 th

ro
ug

h 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
m

ee
tin

g 

H
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 a

ll 
se

ct
or

s 
‘b

re
ak

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oj

ec
t’ 

ai
m

s 

re
ge

ne
ra

te
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s,
 a

nd
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ho
us

in
g 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 w
e 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 b

ui
ld

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 –

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

m
es

 –
 a

nd
 c

on
ve

rt 
em

pt
y 

ho
m

es
 b

ac
k 

in
to

 u
se

 to
 m

ee
t a

 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 7

0,
00

0 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 in
 L

ee
ds

 b
y 

20
28

. 

W
e’

re
 u

n
d

er
w

ay
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
la

rg
es

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

o
f 

co
u

n
ci

l h
o

u
si

n
g

 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
fo

r 
d

ec
ad

es
, d

el
iv

er
in

g
 

1,
00

0 
n

ew
 c

o
u

n
ci

l h
o

m
es

 

C
ar

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
. T

he
se

 w
ill 

be
 b

ui
lt 

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 

Le
ed

s 
St

an
da

rd
: b

et
te

r u
rb

an
 d

es
ig

n,
 m

ee
tin

g 
sp

ac
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
us

in
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 T
hr

ou
gh

 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
to

 s
ig

n 
up

 to
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

R
en

ta
l 

St
an

da
rd

: a
n 

ac
cr

ed
ita

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e 

ai
m

ed
 a

t d
riv

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 q

ua
lit

y 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

re
nt

ed
 

se
ct

or
. T

he
se

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
in

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

en
er

gy
-

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

W
e 

ar
e 

re
du

ci
ng

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
, e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 n
o 

pe
rs

on
 n

ee
ds

 to
 s

le
ep

 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
re

 h
el

pe
d 

fu
rth

er
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r H
ou

si
ng

 
R

el
at

ed
 S

up
po

rt 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
up

po
rt 

an
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
 W

e 
ar

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 c

ar
ry

 
ou

t a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 to
 h

ou
si

ng
 to

 h
el

p 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e 
liv

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

nd
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

dm
is

si
on

 to
 h

os
pi

ta
l o

r 

m
ak

in
g 

it 
ea

si
er

 fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

&
  

re
la

te
d

 d
o

cu
m

en
ts

:

Page 56



..............        ..................

21

W
e 

w
an

t L
ee

d
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

h
ea

lth
y 

an
d

 g
re

en
 c

it
y 

in
 

w
h

ic
h

 to
 li

ve
, w

or
k 

an
d

 v
is

it
. W

or
ki

n
g

 w
it

h
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 r

ed
u

ce
 c

ar
b

on
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 a

b
ou

t h
ea

lth
 

an
d

 w
el

lb
ei

n
g

 b
en

efi
ts

 th
ro

u
g

h
 c

le
an

er
 a

ir
 a

n
d

 m
or

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 w
ar

m
th

. T
ec

h
n

ol
og

y 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

h
om

es
 

an
d

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
m

or
e 

en
er

g
y 

ef
fi

ci
en

t, 
d

el
iv

er
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t, 
h

el
p

 u
s 

re
d

u
ce

 w
as

te
 a

n
d

 
re

cy
cl

e 
m

or
e 

an
d

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
ci

ty
 g

re
at

er
 e

n
er

g
y 

se
cu

ri
ty

.  
N

ew
 jo

b
s 

an
d

 a
p

p
re

n
ti

ce
sh

ip
s 

ca
n

 b
e 

cr
ea

te
d

 in
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l a
re

n
a.

 F
ro

m
 th

e 
B

es
t C

ou
n

ci
l P

la
n

 
p

er
sp

ec
tiv

e 
of

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 in
eq

u
al

it
ie

s,
 lo

w
er

in
g

 c
ar

b
on

 
p

la
ys

 a
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
t r

ol
e 

in
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
.

LO
W

 C
A

R
B

O
N

   
T

ac
kl

in
g

 p
o

ve
rt

y 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s

T
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

W
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 ta
ck

le
  

fu
el

 p
ov

er
ty

 th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r c

ro
ss

-c
ut

tin
g 

 
‘b

re
ak

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oj

ec
t’,

 C
ut

tin
g 

ca
rb

on
 a

nd
  

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

. A
 n

um
be

r o
f s

ch
em

es
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 

w
ith

 m
or

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 w
id

en
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 lo
w

 c
os

t e
ne

rg
y,

 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 ta
rg

et
ed

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 fa
lli

ng
 in

to
 fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
. 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

20
17

 w
ill

 s
ee

 u
s 

ai
m

in
g

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
to

 b
eg

in
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

rs
t 

p
h

as
e 

o
f 

a 
ci

ty
w

id
e 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
h

ea
ti

n
g

 n
et

w
o

rk
 

to
 p

ip
e 

lo
w

er
 c

os
t a

nd
 lo

w
er

 c
ar

bo
n 

he
at

 to
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 u

rb
an

 a
re

as
. L

on
ge

r-t
er

m
, w

e 
ha

ve
 a

 v
is

io
n 

to
 c

re
at

e 
an

 in
te

rli
nk

ed
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 d
is

tri
ct

 h
ea

tin
g 

ne
tw

or
ks

 
co

ve
rin

g 
m

uc
h 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 s

o 
ha

ve
 b

eg
un

 d
et

ai
le

d 
he

at
 m

ap
pi

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s.

 W
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 b

us
in

es
se

s,
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

pa
rtn

er
s 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

ei
r i

nt
er

es
t. 

So
la

r p
an

el
s 

in
st

al
le

d 
on

 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
ou

nc
il 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 1
,0

00
 c

ou
nc

il 
ho

m
es

 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

12
 a

nd
 2

01
5,

 h
av

e 
sa

ve
d 

ar
ou

nd
 1

,2
00

 to
nn

es
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
ei

r f
ue

l b
ills

. H
ow

ev
er

, w
ith

 d
ra

st
ic

 c
ut

s 
in

 

ca
n 

ap
pl

y 
to

 g
et

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 y

ou
r e

ne
rg

y 
su

pp
lie

r i
f y

ou
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
ho

w
 n

ew
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 g

re
at

er
 u

se
 

of
 e

ne
rg

y 
st

or
ag

e,
 c

an
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 h
el

p 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
ca

se
 w

or
k 

fo
r m

or
e 

so
la

r s
ch

em
es

.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

, l
oc

al
 c

lin
ic

al
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 
Le

ed
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

‘W
ar

m
 W

el
l 

H
om

es
’ in

iti
at

iv
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

su
ffe

rin
g 

fro
m

 c
ol

d-

pe
op

le
 to

 li
ve

 s
af

el
y 

in
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

ho
m

es
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

ir 
he

al
th

 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

w
or

se
 b

y 
liv

in
g 

in
 c

ol
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t, 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t w

or
k 

in
 H

ol
be

ck
 –

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

ar
ea

s 
in

 L
ee

ds
 w

ith
 m

an
y 

em
pt

y 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

re
nt

al
s  

w
or

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

at
tic

 ro
om

 a
nd

 s
ol

id
 w

al
l i

ns
ul

at
io

n.
 W

e 
ar

e 

in
su

la
tio

n 
a 

na
tio

na
l i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pr

io
rit

y.
 If

 a
ll 

70
,0

00
  

so
lid

-w
al

le
d 

ho
m

es
 in

 L
ee

ds
 w

er
e 

in
su

la
te

d,
 o

ve
r £

0.
5b

n 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
al

re
ad

y 
in

su
la

te
d,

 p
eo

pl
e 

ha
ve

 s
ee

n 
on

 a
ve

ra
ge

 

 ..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

In
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
6,

 W
h

ite
 R

o
se

 E
n

er
g

y
  

w
as

 la
u

n
ch

ed
 

– 
a 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 R

ob
in

 H
oo

d 

pr
ov

id
e 

lo
w

 c
os

t e
ne

rg
y 

to
 a

ll 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 w
ith

 p
ric

in
g 

th
at

 is
 fa

ir 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nt

, h
el

pi
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 s

ta
y 

w
ar

m
 

an
d 

co
m

fo
rta

bl
e 

in
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

ho
m

es
 w

ith
ou

t p
ay

in
g 

ov
er

 
th

e 
od

ds
. I

n 
20

17
, t

he
 a

m
bi

tio
n 

is
 to

 a
cq

ui
re

 a
nd

 re
ta

in
 

10
,0

00
 n

ew
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
fro

m
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
re

gi
on

.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 N

or
th

er
n 

G
as

 N
et

w
or

ks
 

an
d 

Te
es

si
de

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ca
se

 to
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

na
tu

ra
l g

as
 n

et
w

or
k 

in
 L

ee
ds

 to
 1

00
%

 h
yd

ro
ge

n 
w

hi
ch

 

co
nv

er
te

d 
in

 w
ha

t i
s 

es
se

nt
ia

lly
 a

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
, 

re
du

ci
ng

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 b

y 
ov

er
 1

1%
 b

y 
20

30
.  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

A 
cr

os
s-

se
ct

or
 L

ee
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
is

 b
ei

ng
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d.
 T

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
dv

ic
e 

on
 th

e 
m

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

st
ep

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 

m
ee

t t
he

 c
ity

’s
 c

ar
bo

n 
re

du
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s:

 a
n 

in
te

rim
 2

03
0 

ta
rg

et
 o

f a
 6

0%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
’s

 c
ar

bo
n 

em
is

si
on

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
ul

tim
at

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

of
 L

ee
ds

 h
av

in
g 

ze
ro

 c
ar

bo
n 

em
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
ru

nn
in

g 
on

 g
re

en
 e

ne
rg

y 
by

 2
05

0.
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 d

o 
its

 p
ar

t b
y 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 to

 re
du

ce
 it

s 
ow

n 
en

er
gy

 a
nd

 c
ar

bo
n 

fo
ot

pr
in

t. 
 

B
et

w
ee

n
 2

00
8/

09
 a

n
d

 2
01

4/
15

 w
e 

 
cu

t 
ca

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

by
 2

0%
 a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

b
u

ild
in

g
s 

an
d

 o
p

er
at

io
n

s 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
ou

r p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 c

on
tra

ct
s.

 T
hi

s 
al

so
 s

up
po

rts
 

Fu
el

 p
ov

er
ty

  
di

sp
ro

po
rti

on
at

el
y 

af
fe

ct
s  

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 p

eo
pl

e:
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
co

ld
er

 th
an

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 w

hi
ch

 is
 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 d

am
ag

in
g 

to
 th

e 
he

al
th

 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n,
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
he

al
th

 c
on

di
tio

ns
, 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

ei
r q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

 a
nd

 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 o
n 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

S
tra

te
gy

: M
ak

in
g 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
 2

01
2-

15
• 

Le
ed

s 
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 W
ar

m
th

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

7-
30

• 
W

es
t Y

or
ks

hi
re

 L
ow

 E
m

is
si

on
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 2
01

6-
21

 
• 

Le
ed

s 
In

te
rim

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
S

tra
te

gy
 (D

ec
em

be
r 

20
16

)

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

E
ne

rg
y 

P
ol

ic
y 

(2
01

5)

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
(D

ec
em

be
r 

20
15

)

• 
C

ut
tin

g 
C

ar
bo

n 
B

re
ak

th
ro

ug
h 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 
(E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
, D

ec
em

be
r 

20
16

)

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

  
re

la
te

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
: 

 of
 L

ee
ds

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

liv
e 

in
 fu

el
 

po
ve

rty
, m

ea
ni

ng
 th

ei
r e

ne
rg

y 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

hi
gh

 re
la

tiv
e 

to
  

th
ei

r i
nc

om
es

 
 

95
0,

00
0 

to
nn

es
of

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

  
in

du
st

ria
l w

as
te

  
pr

od
uc

ed
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 
So

ur
ce

: b
as

ed
 o

n 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r L

ee
ds

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

N
at

ur
al

 W
as

te
 a

nd
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

tta
in

m
en

t c
an

 
su

ffe
r a

s 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

no
w

he
re

 
to

 c
om

fo
rta

bl
y 

do
 h

om
ew

or
k 

or
 e

nt
er

ta
in

 fr
ie

nd
s

w
ho

se
 ta

rif
fs

 c
an

 b
e 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

70
0 

pe
op

le
 in

 L
ee

ds
 w

ill
 d

ie
  

th
is

 y
ea

r f
ro

m
 il

ln
es

se
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 a

ir 
po

llu
tio

n.
..

...
w

ith
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l c
os

t t
o 

th
e 

lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y 
of

 

£4
80

m
 

1
=

51
%

 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 re

al
 te

rm
  

do
m

es
tic

 e
ne

rg
y 

bi
lls

  
20

05
-2

01
3

U
K

  
TA

R
G

ET
:

 80
%

  
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
  

ca
rb

on
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
 

by
 2

05
0 

 
ba

se
lin

e 
 

LE
ED

S
  

TA
R

G
ET

:

 1
00

%
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
ar

bo
n  

em
is

si
on

s  
by

 2
05

0

00
00

0

70
,0

00
 

 s
ol

id
-w

al
le

d 
ho

m
es

  
in

 L
ee

ds
 –

 in
su

la
tio

n 
 

co
ul

d 
sa

ve
 £

0.
5b

n 
in

 
en

er
gy

 c
os

ts

...........................................................................................

 

Th
is

 is
 a

bo
ve

 th
e

 1
0.

6%
 

E
ng

lis
h 

 
av

er
ag

e

11
.9

%
 

Page 57



In
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

1
6

 L
ee

d
s 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l w
o

n
 t

h
e 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

C
h

ro
n

ic
le

’s
 C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
aw

ar
d

 
w

it
h

 j
u

d
g

es
 p

ra
is

in
g

 o
u

r, 
“g

en
u

in
el

y 
am

b
it

io
u

s 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

re
ac

h
in

g
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ll 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

yo
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
n

ce
rt

ed
 

in
te

ra
g

en
cy

 d
ri

ve
 a

n
d

 a
n

 o
b

vi
o

u
s 

cl
ar

it
y 

o
f 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
.” 

In
 J

u
n

e 
2

0
1

6
 w

e 
th

en
 w

o
n

 t
h

e 
M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 J

o
u

rn
al

’s
 p

re
st

ig
io

u
s 

‘L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

o
f 

th
e 

Ye
ar

’ a
w

ar
d

. T
h

e 
ju

d
g

es
 c

o
m

m
en

d
ed

 o
u

r 
“c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 d
yn

am
ic

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
” 

an
d

 “
cl

ea
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
vi

si
o

n
”,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 in

 r
eg

ar
d

 t
o

 
re

g
en

er
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 h

ea
lt

h
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s.

 T
h

ey
 a

ls
o

 
n

o
te

d
 t

h
at

 w
in

n
in

g
 t

h
is

 c
at

eg
o

ry
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
ts

 a
 

lo
ca

l a
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 s

u
cc

es
s 

n
o

t 
ju

st
 in

 o
n

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 o

r 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
b

u
t 

ri
g

h
t 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
. 

W
e 

ar
e 

ju
st

ifi
ab

ly
 p

ro
u

d
 o

f 
re

ce
iv

in
g

 t
h

es
e 

ac
co

la
d

es
 b

u
t 

w
e 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
co

m
p

la
ce

n
t: 

w
e 

re
co

g
n

is
e 

th
e 

co
m

p
le

x 
ch

al
le

n
g

es
 f

ac
in

g
 t

h
e 

ci
ty

, 
as

 e
xp

la
in

ed
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
is

 B
es

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l P
la

n
, a

t 
a 

ti
m

e 
o

f 
co

n
ti

nu
ed

 fi
n

an
ci

al
 a

n
d

 d
em

an
d

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
p

u
b

li
c 

se
rv

ic
es

. I
n

 r
es

p
o

n
se

, w
e 

ar
e 

co
n

ti
nu

in
g

 t
o

 lo
o

k
 h

ar
d

 a
t 

w
h

at
 w

e 
d

o
 a

n
d

 h
ow

 w
e 

d
o

 it
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 j

o
u

rn
ey

 t
o

 b
ec

o
m

e 
a 

m
o

re
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

an
d

 e
n

te
rp

ri
si

n
g

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
, t

h
e 

‘B
es

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’ 
in

 t
h

e 
U

K
.

E
FF

IC
IE

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

IN
G

  
T

ac
kl

in
g

 p
o

ve
rt

y 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ci
n

g
 in

eq
u

al
it

ie
s

W
h

at
 w

e’
re

 d
o

in
g

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

Th
is

 jo
ur

ne
y 

ce
nt

re
s 

on
 a

  
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l  

cu
ltu

ra
l c

ha
ng

e 
ai

m
ed

 a
t m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
 

be
st

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l  
an

d 
m

or
e 

br
oa

dl
y 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

.  
 

It 
bu

ild
s 

on
 th

e 
Le

ed
s-

le
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

 
Fu

tu
re

 o
f L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t w

hi
ch

, i
n 

20
12

, d
ev

el
op

ed
  

a 
se

t o
f p

ro
po

si
tio

ns
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

co
nc

ep
t o

f: 

‘c
iv

ic
 e

n
te

rp
ri

se
’: 

co
u

n
ci

ls
 b

ec
o

m
in

g
 m

o
re

 
en

te
rp

ri
si

n
g,

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
an

d
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
m

o
re

 c
iv

ic
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
re

 e
n

g
ag

ed
.  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
e 

w
or

ld
 o

f l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
s 

ch
an

gi
ng

: t
he

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
es

 
an

d 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
s 

of
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

 w
e 

se
rv

e 
ar

e 
sh

ift
in

g;
 

ar
e 

ad
va

nc
in

g 
al

l t
he

 ti
m

e;
 le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 

w
or

ki
ng

, i
nt

eg
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

de
vo

lu
tio

n.
 A

ga
in

st
 th

is
 b

ac
kd

ro
p,

 
w

e 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

is
 ri

gh
t t

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 re
fre

sh
 th

e 
pr

op
os

iti
on

s 
la

id
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

S
in

ce
 2

01
0 

th
e 

co
u

n
ci

l’s
  

co
st

s 
h

av
e 

ri
se

n
 a

n
d

  
o

u
r 

co
re

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

h
as

 g
o

n
e 

 
d

ow
n

 b
y

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

£2
14

m
 (4

8%
)

w
it

h
 a

 f
u

rt
h

er
 r

ed
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
 

£2
5m

 in
 2

01
7/

18

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

To
 d

at
e,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 re
sp

on
de

d 
  

be
en

 a
bl

e 
to

 b
al

an
ce

 th
e 

 
bu

dg
et

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
, p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
 

fro
nt

 li
ne

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
av

oi
di

ng
 la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
co

m
pu

ls
or

y 
re

du
nd

an
ci

es
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
by

 s
tim

ul
at

in
g 

go
od

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
, c

re
at

iv
el

y 
m

an
ag

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s,
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 tr
ad

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
 

 
 

al
l o

f w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
  

so
 th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

 

£8
2m

 
o

f 
sa

v
in

g
s 

 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 in
  

20
17

/1
8

Th
is

 y
ea

r w
e 

w
ill

 fu
rth

er
 a

ss
es

s 
ou

r f
ee

s 
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

s,
 

st
re

ng
th

en
 b

ud
ge

t a
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 o

ur
 jo

in
t 

fu
nd

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 h

el
p 

en
su

re
 a

 c
on

si
st

en
t a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 th

at
 is

 fa
ir 

an
d 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

pa
rtn

er
s 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 w

ill
 b

e 
se

t o
ut

 th
is

 s
um

m
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

an
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 h

as
 s

hr
un

k 
in

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

, 

T
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e 

h
av

e 
fe

w
er

 p
eo

p
le

, w
e 

re
m

ai
n

 c
o

n
fi

d
en

t 
w

e 
ca

n
 d

el
iv

er
 o

u
r 

B
es

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l P
la

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 if

 s
ta

ff
 

co
n

ti
nu

e 
to

 w
o

rk
 m

o
re

 fl
ex

ib
ly

 a
n

d
 

in
n

ov
at

iv
el

y,
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g
 a

t 
th

ei
r 

b
es

t. 

To
 e

na
bl

e 
th

is
, w

e 
w

ill
 re

fre
sh

 o
ur

 P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

C
ul

tu
re

 S
tra

te
gy

 th
is

 y
ea

r t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r l

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
ta

le
nt

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
W

e 
w

ill
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
ro

le
 o

f l
ea

de
rs

 
in

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 ‘c

an
 d

o’
 c

ul
tu

re
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 

sp
ea

ki
ng

 u
p 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 s

ee
 th

at
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
do

ne
 b

et
te

r a
nd

 e
m

po
w

er
ed

 to
 c

re
at

e 
so

lu
tio

ns
.  

   
 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

20
17

/1
8 

w
ill 

se
e 

an
 e

ve
n 

gr
ea

te
r f

oc
us

 o
n 

in
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ity
 w

ith
 in

di
vi

du
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 fo
r a

ll 
st

af
f, 

po
lic

y 
re

vi
ew

s,
 a

ct
io

ns
 in

 te
am

 p
la

ns
, i

m
pr

ov
ed

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

s 
of

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

si
on

 
ro

ut
es

. T
he

se
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
im

 to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s,
 e

lim
in

at
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

, c
el

eb
ra

te
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 a
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 
m

or
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
of

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

.  

H
av

in
g

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 t
h

e 
W

es
t Y

o
rk

sh
ir

e 
Lo

w
 P

ay
 C

h
ar

te
r, 

w
e 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

nu
e 

w
it

h
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

o
u

r 
lo

w
er

 p
ai

d
 s

ta
ff

: m
ai

n
ta

in
  

a 
m

in
im

u
m

 p
ay

 r
at

e 
o

f

£8
.2

5 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 th
is

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 n

at
io

na
l p

ay
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
; c

ar
ry

 
ou

t i
m

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 p
ay

 a
nd

 p
ov

er
ty

 
is

su
es

 in
 o

ur
 w

or
kf

or
ce

; r
e-

la
un

ch
 o

ur
 U

ni
on

 L
ea

rn
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
lo

w
er

 p
ai

d 
w

or
ke

rs
 w

ith
 b

as
ic

 
sk

ill
s 

an
d 

us
e 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t’s

 n
ew

 A
pp

re
nt

ic
e 

Le
vy

 to
 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
ei

r c
ar

ee
r p

ro
gr

es
si

on
.

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Fr
om

 A
pr

il 2
01

7,
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l s
ha

pe
 is

 

br
in

gi
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

ge
th

er
 in

 a
 s

im
pl

er
 a

nd
 c

le
ar

er
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t l
ev

el
. W

hi
le

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
is

 im
po

rta
nt

, t
oo

 
m

uc
h 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

it 
ca

n 
le

ad
 to

 a
 s

ilo
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

in
 h

ow
 

pe
op

le
 w

or
k.

 T
o 

co
un

te
ra

ct
 th

is
, i

t i
s 

cr
uc

ia
l t

ha
t w

e 
ke

ep
 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

m
ul

ti-
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
te

am
s 

fro
m

 a
cr

os
s 

co
un

ci
l 

se
rv

ic
es

, p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
itie

s 
to

 c
om

e 
to

ge
th

er
 

ar
ou

nd
 s

ha
re

d 
is

su
es

. T
hi

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 u

nd
er

pi
ns

 o
ur

 e
ig

ht
 

‘b
re

ak
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

ts
’ w

hi
ch

 a
re

 h
el

pi
ng

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

Be
st

 
C

ou
nc

il P
la

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 in

 2
01

7/
18

 
al

on
gs

id
e 

a 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 ‘k

ey
 a

cc
ou

nt
 m

an
ag

em
en

t’ 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

im
ed

 a
t c

ap
ita

lis
in

g 
on

 th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 w
e 

ha
ve

 
w

ith
 c

ity
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

fro
m

 a
ll 

se
ct

or
s.

 

C
u

tt
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n

 a
n

d
  

im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 a
ir

 q
u

a
lit

y 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

fu
el

 b
ill

s,
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
sa

vi
ng

s 
 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y

W
o

rl
d

 c
la

ss
 e

ve
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
  

vi
b

ra
n

t 
c

it
y 

c
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
at

  
a

ll 
c

a
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
o

m
 

C
re

at
in

g 
a 

cu
tti

ng
 e

dg
e 

an
d 

 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tre
, a

nd
  

ho
st

in
g 

w
or

ld
 c

la
ss

 e
ve

nt
s

M
o

re
 jo

b
s,

 b
e

tt
e

r 
jo

b
s

M
or

e 
se

cu
re

, w
el

l p
ai

d 
jo

bs
 fo

r  
Le

ed
s 

an
d 

be
tte

r a
cc

es
s 

to
 th

em

E
a

rl
y 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
  

re
d

u
c

in
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
 in

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
S

up
po

rti
ng

 a
n 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
he

al
th

y 
 

liv
in

g 
sy

st
em

 fo
r L

ee
ds

Ta
ck

lin
g

 d
o

m
e

st
ic

  
vi

o
le

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 a
b

u
se

 

A 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 s
to

p  
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

an
d 

ab
us

e

H
o

u
si

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

  
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s 

in
 a

ll 
se

c
to

rs
  

M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
  

vi
br

an
t a

nd
 g

ro
w

in
g 

ci
ty  

M
a

ki
n

g
 L

e
e

d
s 

th
e

 b
e

st
  

p
la

c
e

 t
o

 g
ro

w
 o

ld
 in

 

E
ns

ur
in

g 
Le

ed
s 

he
lp

s 
pe

op
le

  
to

 a
ge

 w
el

l a
nd

 li
ve

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

S
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s  

b
e

n
e

fi
ti

n
g

 f
ro

m
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 c

it
y 

S
tre

ng
th

, s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
  

as
pi

ra
tio

n 
in

 L
ee

ds
 c

om
m

un
iti

es

B
R

E
A

K
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
 

H
el

p
in

g
 d

el
iv

er
 t

h
e 

B
es

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l P
la

n

In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
, o

n
 a

 c
it

y-
w

id
e 

sc
al

e,
 d

ri
vi

n
g

 c
h

an
g

e 
fo

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
s,

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
an

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s

i

23

Page 58



 

25

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

as
 ‘C

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

W
or

kp
la

ce
’ g

oe
s 

liv
e 

in
 2

01
7/

18
 a

s 
ar

ou
nd

 1
,0

00
 s

ta
ff 

m
ov

e 
in

to
 th

e 
ne

w
ly

 re
fu

rb
is

he
d 

M
er

rio
n 

bu
ild

in
g.

 T
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 h

el
pi

ng
 d

el
iv

er
 

 

W
h

en
 it

 r
e-

o
p

en
s,

 M
er

ri
o

n
 H

o
u

se
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 

to
ge

th
er

 t
h

e 
m

aj
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

fr
o

n
t-

lin
e 

co
u

n
ci

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

to
 o

n
e 

p
la

ce
 a

n
d

 c
re

at
e 

a 
n

ew
 

cu
st

o
m

er
 s

er
v

ic
es

 h
u

b,
 im

p
ro

v
in

g
  

cu
st

o
m

er
 a

cc
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e

– 
w

ith
 o

ur
 w

id
er

 ro
llo

ut
 o

f C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ub
s 

se
rv

in
g 

as
 fo

ca
l 

po
in

ts
 fo

r m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 in
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ts
 o

f L
ee

ds
.   

  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

 
H

ea
tm

ap
 h

as
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 th

at
 

13
%

 

o
f 

ad
u

lt
s 

in
 L

ee
d

s 
 

h
av

e 
n

ev
er

 b
ee

n
  

o
n

lin
e 

an
d

 2
3%

 la
ck

  
al

l fi
ve

 b
as

ic
 d

ig
it

al
 s

k
ill

s

– 
m

an
ag

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

in
g,

 tr
an

sa
ct

in
g,

 

am
bi

tio
n 

fo
r a

 c
ity

 w
he

re
 e

ve
ry

on
e 

ha
s 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 

W
e 

ar
e 

as
ki

ng
 a

ll 
co

un
ci

l s
ta

ff 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
em

se
lv

es
 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
se

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 w

e 
w

ill 
th

en
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

. B
y 

us
in

g 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 g

ro
w

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
di

gi
ta

l s
ki

lls
, w

e 
w

ill 
m

ak
e 

it 
ea

si
er

 fo
r s

ta
ff 

an
d 

ci
tiz

en
s 

to
 s

el
f-s

er
ve

 o
nl

in
e,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

on
 th

e 
w

eb
 in

 a
 u

se
r-f

rie
nd

ly
 w

ay
 th

at
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

s 
ta

ke
-

up
. W

e 
w

ill 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

cu
st

om
er

s 
to

 ‘c
ha

nn
el

 s
hi

ft’
: t

o 
m

ov
e 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 fa
ce

-to
-fa

ce
, p

ho
ne

 a
nd

 e
-m

ai
l c

on
ta

ct
 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

o 
th

at
 th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
a 

qu
ic

ke
r, 

m
or

e 
st

re
am

lin
ed

 re
sp

on
se

 a
nd

 c
an

 a
cc

es
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
t t

im
es

 
th

at
 s

ui
t t

he
m

. 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

G
oi

ng
 d

ig
ita

l in
co

rp
or

at
es

 te
ch

no
lo

gi
ca

l c
ha

ng
e 

bu
t i

s 
ju

st
 

as
 m

uc
h 

ab
ou

t c
ul

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
e,

 a
bo

ut
 b

ei
ng

 p
re

pa
re

d 
to

 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

of
te

n 
lo

ng
-s

ta
nd

in
g 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
. W

e 
w

ill 
th

er
ef

or
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ou

r a
pp

ro
ac

h 
of

 s
im

pl
ify

in
g 

an
d 

 

 st
an

da
rd

is
in

g 
ho

w
 w

e 
w

or
k 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
co

ns
ol

id
at

in
g 

an
d 

 
ra

tio
na

lis
in

g 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

as
 w

e 
re

fre
sh

 
ou

r I
T 

ha
rd

w
ar

e 
an

d 
so

ftw
ar

e.
 K

ey
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

th
e 

M
ic

ro
so

ft 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

th
at

 u
nd

er
pi

ns
 th

e 
ru

nn
in

g 
of

 m
os

t o
f o

ur
 c

rit
ic

al
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
; m

od
er

ni
si

ng
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 to
ol

s;
 a

ls
o 

m
od

er
ni

si
ng

 o
ur

 
ne

tw
or

k,
 s

er
ve

r a
nd

 d
at

a 
ce

nt
re

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
e 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
fo

r p
ar

tn
er

s.
 F

ur
th

er
 ro

llo
ut

 o
f o

ur
 

‘d
ig

ita
l b

y 
de

si
gn

’ p
rin

ci
pl

e 
w

ill 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
is

 w
or

k 
as

 p
ar

t 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

al
so

 to
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

el
ec

te
d 

m
em

be
rs

, b
rin

gi
ng

 to
ge

th
er

 d
at

a 
fro

m
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ci

ty
 to

 a
id

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

nd
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

de
ci

si
on

-
m

ak
in

g 
an

d 
be

tte
r p

rio
rit

is
e 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 w
he

re
 th

ey
 a

re
 m

os
t n

ee
de

d.
 A

 la
rg

e-
sc

al
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

fo
r 2

01
7/

18
 is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l c
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

, c
on

tra
ct

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pa

rtn
er

s 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 w
e 

sh
ar

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ar

e 

w
hi

ch
 c

om
e 

in
to

 e
ffe

ct
 fr

om
 2

5t
h 

M
ay

 2
01

8.
 T

he
se

 

st
rin

ge
nt

 ru
le

s 
fo

r h
an

dl
in

g 
pe

rs
on

al
 a

nd
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

da
ta

.  

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

m
ak

in
g,

 b
ut

 th
is

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

su
pp

le
m

en
te

d 
by

 w
ha

t 
pe

op
le

 te
ll 

us
 th

ro
ug

h 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t. 
Al

on
gs

id
e 

on
go

in
g 

co
un

ci
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 m

aj
or

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

e 
Le

ed
s 

G
ro

w
th

 S
tra

te
gy

, 2
01

7/
18

 w
ill 

al
so

 m
ar

k 
th

e 
la

un
ch

 o
f ‘

C
ha

ng
in

g 
Le

ed
s’

. T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

in
vi

ta
tio

n 
fo

r 
an

yo
ne

 w
ho

 li
ve

s,
 w

or
ks

, v
is

its
 o

r s
tu

di
es

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 

to
 ta

lk
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 th

at
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 in

 L
ee

ds
 a

re
 fa

ci
ng

 s
o 

th
at

 to
ge

th
er

 w
e 

ca
n 

co
m

e 
up

 w
ith

 th
e 

rig
ht

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
. W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

le
ar

n 
m

or
e 

an
d 

ta
ke

 p
ar

t i
n 

th
e 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 

as
se

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 lo

ca
l g

ro
up

s,
 e

ve
nt

s,
 s

oc
ia

l m
ed

ia
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 c
ha

nn
el

s.
  

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

C
ul

tu
re

 S
tra

te
gy

 
(c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 r

ef
re

sh
ed

 –
 to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
la

te
r 

20
17

)

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

A
nn

ua
l F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n 
20

17
/1

8 
an

d 

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

E
qu

al
ity

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

rio
rit

ie
s 

20
16

-2
0

 (
in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t –
 to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
la

te
r 

20
17

) 

• 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
20

16
 (t

he
 n

ex
t u

pd
at

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

in
 s

um
m

er
 2

01
7)

• 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
Fu

tu
re

 o
f L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 2

01
2

K
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

&
  

re
la

te
d

 d
o

cu
m

en
ts

:

K
EY

 P
ER

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
IN

D
IC

AT
O

R
S

   
H

o
w

 w
e 

ar
e 

m
ea

su
ri

n
g

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g

 b
et

te
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
es

 –
 t

h
es

e 
ca

n
 c

h
an

g
e 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

 s
o

 c
h

ec
k 

o
n

lin
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
te

st
 v

er
si

o
n

i
T

h
e 

se
t 

of
 k

ey
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

d
ic

at
or

s 
(K

P
Is

) 
b

el
ow

 h
el

p
s 

u
s 

m
ea

su
re

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g

 
ou

r 
B

es
t 

C
it

y 
an

d
 B

es
t 

C
ou

n
ci

l a
m

b
it

io
n

s,
 o

u
tc

om
es

 a
n

d
 p

ri
or

it
ie

s.
 T

h
ey

 a
re

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 in

d
ic

at
or

s 
th

at
 w

e 
tr

ac
k 

ov
er

 t
h

e 
lo

n
g

-t
er

m
 a

n
d

 r
ep

or
t 

on
 r

eg
u

la
rl

y.
 A

t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f t
h

e 
ye

ar
, w

e 
lo

ok
 b

ac
k

 
on

 o
u

r 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 a

n
 a

n
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
on

 t
h

e 
‘B

es
t 

C
ou

n
ci

l P
la

n
’ p

ag
e 

on
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
ci

l’s
 le

ed
s.

g
ov

.u
k 

w
eb

si
te

. T
h

is
 is

 s
u

p
p

le
m

en
te

d
 b

y 
m

or
e 

d
et

ai
le

d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 fo
r 

th
e 

ra
n

g
e 

of
 p

la
n

s 
an

d
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
th

at
 s

u
p

p
or

t 
th

e 
B

es
t 

C
ou

n
ci

l P
la

n
. A

 w
id

er
 s

et
 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

b
ou

t 
Le

ed
s 

is
 a

ls
o 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e 

Le
ed

s 
O

b
se

rv
at

or
y,

 a
 w

eb
-b

as
ed

 t
oo

l 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
 fo

ca
l p

oi
n

t 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
at

a 
ab

ou
t 

ou
r 

ar
ea

s 
an

d
 c

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s.
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 m
or

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 o

ur
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

M
or

e 
ap

pr
en

tic
es

  
em

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 

Lo
w

er
 a

ve
ra

ge
 s

ta
ff 

si
ck

ne
ss

 le
ve

ls
 

A
ll 

st
af

f h
av

e 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

  
an

d 
m

id
-y

ea
r r

ev
ie

w
s

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
ta

ff 
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t s

co
re

s

M
in

im
is

e 
ov

er
/u

nd
er

sp
en

d 

G
ro

w
th

 in
 b

us
in

es
s 

ra
te

s

co
lle

ct
io

n 
ra

te

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f  

IC
T 

sy
st

em
/s

er
vi

ce
 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y

Fe
w

er
 c

us
to

m
er

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

M
or

e 
co

un
ci

l c
us

to
m

er
s 

us
in

g 
se

lf-
se

rv
e 

w
he

n 
ge

tti
ng

 in
 to

uc
h 

 
fro

m
 c

ou
nc

il 
bu

ild
in

gs
  

an
d 

op
er

at
io

ns
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
st

af
f 

w
ith

 a
ll 

5 
ba

si
c 

di
gi

ta
l s

ki
lls

 

S
af

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r  
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r
H

ig
he

r s
ch

oo
l a

tte
nd

an
ce

Fe
w

er
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

no
t i

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r  

E
du

ca
tio

na
l a

tta
in

m
en

t a
t a

ge
 1

6 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

ity
 c

en
tre

 tr
av

el
 b

y 

N
um

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

ki
lle

d 
or

 s
er

io
us

ly
 

M
or

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 a
ll 

5 
ba

si
c 

 
di

gi
ta

l s
ki

lls
 

G
ro

w
th

 in
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 in
 L

ee
ds

 
R

ed
uc

ed
  h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

M
or

e 
ad

ul
ts

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
 

he
lp

ed
 to

 li
ve

 a
t h

om
e

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ra
te

d 
as

 ‘g
oo

d’
 o

r ‘
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g’
M

or
e 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 c

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
 

co
nt

ro
l o

f t
he

ir 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s

Fe
w

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

tu
rn

 to
 h

os
pi

ta
l 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
di

sc
ha

rg
e

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

ew
 c

lie
nt

 re
fe

rr
al

s 
 

fo
r s

pe
ci

al
is

t s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

re
so

lv
ed

  
at

 p
oi

nt
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

 o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
un

iv
er

sa
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

Fe
w

er
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
in

 fu
el

 p
ov

er
ty

R
ed

uc
ed

 c
ar

bo
n 

em
is

si
on

s 
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ci

ty
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 e
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

th
er

m
al

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
w

as
te

 re
cy

cl
ed

G
ro

w
th

 in
 jo

bs
 in

 th
e 

 
Le

ed
s 

ec
on

om
y 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 s
up

po
rte

d 
to

  
im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r s

ki
lls

M
or

e 
Le

ed
s 

re
sid

en
ts

 w
ith

 a
t  

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f n

ew
  

bu
si

ne
ss

 s
ta

rt-
up

s
In

cr
ea

se
d 

fo
ot

fa
ll a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
 

of
 m

aj
or

 c
ul

tu
ra

l e
ve

nt
s 

M
or

e 
ad

ul
ts

 a
re

 a
ct

iv
e

Fe
w

er
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

ar
e 

ob
es

e
Lo

w
er

 in
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

s
R

ed
uc

ed
 a

vo
id

ab
le

 y
ea

rs
  

of
 li

fe
 lo

st
Su

ic
id

e 
ra

te
s

Fe
w

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
sm

ok
in

g
C

la
im

an
t r

at
e 

fo
r E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Su
pp

or
t A

llo
w

an
ce

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
se

lf-
re

po
rti

ng
 o

f 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

an
d 

ab
us

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s

R
ed

uc
ed

 ra
te

 o
f s

er
io

us
  

 

be
ha

vi
ou

r /
 n

ui
sa

nc
e 

co
nc

er
ns

H
at

e 
cr

im
e 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
N

um
be

r o
f a

du
lts

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

in
-w

or
k 

po
ve

rty
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 fo
r t

he
 lo

w
es

t 
pa

id
 1

0%
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

 re
si

de
nt

s 

G
oo

d
 g

ro
w

th

H
ea

lt
h 

&
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

B
et

te
r 

liv
es

R
es

ili
en

t 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s

Tr
an

sp
or

t &
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

C
hi

ld
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 c

it
y

Lo
w

 c
ar

b
on

B
E

S
T

 C
IT

Y
 K

PI
s 

B
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 K

PI
s 

Page 59



27 27

O
U

R
 V

A
LU

E
S

   
U

n
d

er
p

in
n

in
g

 w
h

at
 w

e 
d

o
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

o
rk

i

B
ei

n
g

 o
p

en
,  

h
o

n
es

t 
an

d
  

tr
u

st
ed

– 
I c

an
 b

e 
m

y 
be

st

 Th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 th
is

 v
al

ue
 is

 w
el

l u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
in

te
gr

ity
, t

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y,

 tr
us

t a
nd

 h
on

es
t f

ee
db

ac
k.

G
oi

ng
 

fo
rw

ar
d,

 b
ei

ng
 b

ol
d 

in
 o

ur
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
ill

 b
e 

he
lp

fu
l, 

as
 w

ill
 

tw
o-

w
ay

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 s

ha
rin

g 
su

cc
es

se
s 

m
or

e 
w

id
el

y 
an

d 
m

or
e 

vi
si

bl
y.

 

H
ow

 w
e 

ca
n

 g
et

 b
et

te
r:

 W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

a 
cl

im
at

e 
of

 o
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

sh
ar

in
g;

 w
el

co
m

e 
re

gu
la

r f
ee

db
ac

k 
re

in
fo

rc
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l a
pp

ra
is

al
s 

an
d 

on
e-

to
-o

ne
 m

ee
tin

gs
; 

w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
ho

ne
st

 a
bo

ut
 w

ha
t w

e 
ca

n 
an

d 
ca

nn
ot

 
do

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
m

or
e 

on
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 s

ta
ff,

 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 a
t t

hi
s 

tim
e 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

 
an

d 
sc

al
e 

of
 b

us
in

es
s 

 
 

ch
an

ge
. 

 T
re

at
in

g
  

p
eo

p
le

 fa
ir

ly
 

– 
It 

fe
el

s 
lik

e 
I c

ou
nt

P
eo

pl
e 

re
al

ly
 a

pp
re

ci
at

e 
th

is
 v

al
ue

: w
he

n 
th

in
gs

 a
re

 n
ot

 
go

in
g 

so
 w

el
l i

t g
iv

es
 th

em
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 to
 p

oi
nt

 to
 a

nd
 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
be

ha
vi

ou
r t

ha
t i

s 
no

t i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 it
. 

H
ow

 w
e 

ca
n

 g
et

 b
et

te
r:

 W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 fo

cu
s 

m
or

e 
on

 e
nh

an
ci

ng
 s

ta
ff 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

nd
 re

si
lie

nc
e;

 m
ak

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
ity

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
an

d 
ce

le
br

at
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e;
 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

su
cc

es
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 n

ot
 ju

st
 a

t 
se

t p
oi

nt
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

an
nu

al
 s

ta
ff 

aw
ar

ds
; c

on
tin

ue
 to

 g
iv

e 
st

af
f a

 v
oi

ce
 a

nd
 a

ct
 o

n 
id

ea
s 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
as

 o
pp

os
ed

 to
 

bl
oc

ki
ng

 th
em

; c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

th
e 

‘c
an

 d
o’

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
th

at
 s

o 
m

an
y 

of
 o

ur
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 e
m

bo
dy

 a
nd

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

an
d 

le
ad

 o
n 

cu
tti

ng
 e

dg
e 

in
no

va
tio

n,
 e

na
bl

in
g 

th
is

 th
ro

ug
h 

 

 

 S
p

en
d

in
g

  
m

o
n

ey
 w

is
el

y

– 
I m

ak
e 

ev
er

y 
po

un
d 

 
go

 fu
rt

he
r

P
eo

pl
e 

fe
el

 th
at

 it
 is

 ri
gh

t t
ha

t w
e 

ha
ve

 th
is

 v
al

ue
, 

op
er

at
in

g 
in

, b
ut

 th
at

 ‘s
pe

nd
in

g 
m

on
ey

’ n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 m

or
e 

ho
lis

tic
al

ly
 th

an
 in

 p
ur

el
y 

ca
sh

 te
rm

s.

H
ow

 w
e 

ca
n

 g
et

 b
et

te
r:

 W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
 b

et
te

r u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 m
or

e 
w

id
el

y,
 w

ith
 

m
or

e 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
ta

le
nt

, t
im

e,
 a

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
as

 
w

el
l a

s 
ta

ng
ib

le
 a

ss
et

s;
 to

 re
in

fo
rc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f 

‘v
al

ue
 fo

r m
on

ey
’ i

s 
no

t j
us

t b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
lo

w
es

t c
os

t o
r 

be
st

 p
ric

e 
bu

t e
qu

al
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
de

liv
er

in
g 

be
tte

r o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

is
 s

om
et

im
es

 
re

qu
ire

s 
in

ve
st

in
g 

m
or

e 
up

fro
nt

 to
 s

av
e 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

.

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

s 
a 

te
am

  
fo

r 
Le

ed
s

 –
 I 

am
 p

ar
t o

f  
a 

te
am

 w
ith

 a
  

‘c
an

 d
o’

 a
tti

tu
de

W
or

ki
ng

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

el
y 

to
w

ar
ds

 c
om

m
on

 g
oa

ls
 w

as
 a

 
co

m
m

on
 th

em
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

ar
ou

nd
 th

is
 v

al
ue

. 
P

eo
pl

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 w

or
k 

di
ffe

re
nt

ly
 a

nd
 

ac
ro

ss
 s

ilo
s 

bu
t i

n 
pr

ac
tic

e,
 th

er
e 

is
 m

or
e 

to
 d

o 
to

  
ac

hi
ev

e 
a 

w
id

es
pr

ea
d 

co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
e 

 
m

in
ds

et
 a

nd
 th

e 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

 
to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
 

th
e 

ci
ty

. 

H
ow

 w
e 

ca
n

 g
et

 b
et

te
r:

 W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
st

af
f t

o 
w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 o
n 

sh
ar

ed
 g

oa
ls

, s
ha

rin
g 

ta
le

nt
 a

cr
os

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

re
co

gn
is

in
g 

th
at

 th
is

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
jo

b 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
cr

ea
tiv

ity
, l

ea
di

ng
 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
; a

llo
w

 ‘p
er

m
is

si
on

  
to

 p
la

y’
, t

o 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

an
d 

  
a 

‘c
an

 d
o’

 a
tti

tu
de

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ec

ia
te

 a
nd

 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
is

. 

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

  
al

l c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

- 
T

he
re

’s
 n

o 
w

ro
ng

  
do

or
 in

to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l

In
 o

ur
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 th

er
e 

w
as

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 th

at
 w

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 ‘w

or
k 

w
ith

’ o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, n
ot

 ‘d
o 

to
’. 

A 
m

or
e 

th
is

 a
nd

 o
ur

 B
es

t C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

n 
am

bi
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 
P

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
pr

ou
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

an
d,

 w
he

n 
w

e 
do

, w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 s
ho

ut
 a

bo
ut

 it
 m

or
e.

H
ow

 w
e 

ca
n

 g
et

 b
et

te
r:

 W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

et
te

r 
en

ab
le

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
 th

is
 in

to
 o

ur
 

em
ph

as
is

e 
th

at
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

is
 e

ve
ry

on
e’

s 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y;

 
be

 m
or

e 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 to
 c

us
to

m
er

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

ey
 c

on
ta

ct
 

us
, s

o 
th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

as
se

d 
fro

m
 o

ne
 p

er
so

n 
or

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

an
ot

he
r; 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
el

ec
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
, s

ta
ff 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
s 

as
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

w
e 

al
l p

ut
 c

iti
ze

ns
 a

t t
he

 c
or

e 
of

 
ev

er
y 

de
ci

si
on

 w
e 

m
ak

e;
 d

es
pi

te
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
 

 
   

  e
co

no
m

ic
 c

lim
at

e,
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
ha

rd
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

 
 

   
   

   
 w

el
l w

ith
 a

nd
 fo

r t
he

 p
eo

pl
e 

of
 L

ee
ds

. 

“
T

h
is

 m
e

a
n

s
 u

s
in

g
  

a
ll

 o
u

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
tl

y,
 e

v
e

ry
 d

a
y

”

“
I 

a
m

 p
le

a
s
e

d
 t

o
 s

a
y

 
I 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
rs

, 
n

o
t 

‘t
o

’ 
o

r 
‘f

o
r’

 t
h

e
m

.”

“
A

s
 l

o
n

g
 a

s
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

  
s
h

o
w

s
 a

 ‘
c

a
n

 d
o

’ 
a

tt
it

u
d

e
 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 ‘

w
e

’v
e

 a
lw

a
y

s
 

d
o

n
e

 i
t 

th
a

t 
w

a
y

’ 
th

e
n

 w
e

 c
a

n
 

a
c

h
ie

v
e

 g
re

a
t 

th
in

g
s
.”

“
I 

a
m

 s
e

t 
c

le
a

r 
e

x
p

e
c

ta
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 
re

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 w

it
h

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

”

“
It

 f
e

e
ls

 l
ik

e
 I

 
c

o
u

n
t 

w
h

e
n

 I
 h

a
v

e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
a

m
 g

iv
e

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

to
 g

e
t 

o
n

”
 

O
u

r 
va

lu
es

 u
n

d
er

p
in

 e
ve

ry
th

in
g

 w
e 

d
o

 –
 o

u
r 

p
o

li
ci

es
, s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 –
 a

n
d

 h
ow

 w
e 

w
o

rk
, d

efi
n

in
g

 o
u

r 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

al
 c

u
lt

u
re

. T
h

ey
 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
st

af
f 

o
n

 h
ow

 t
h

ey
 

ar
e 

ex
p

ec
te

d
 t

o
 b

eh
av

e 
an

d
 w

h
at

 t
h

ey
, a

n
d

 o
u

r 
cu

st
o

m
er

s 
an

d
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 c
an

 e
xp

ec
t 

fr
o

m
 L

ee
d

s 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

In
 2

0
1

1
, w

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

ed
 o

u
r 

fi
ve

 c
o

re
 v

al
u

es
. T

o
 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 s
ti

ll 
re

le
va

n
t, 

in
 J

an
u

ar
y 

2
0

1
7

 
w

e 
ta

lk
ed

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

em
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 a
cr

o
ss

 
th

e 
au

th
o

ri
ty

. O
ve

ra
ll,

 p
eo

p
le

 a
re

 p
o

si
ti

ve
 a

n
d

 

en
th

u
si

as
ti

c 
ab

o
u

t 
o

u
r 

va
lu

es
, f

ee
li

n
g

 t
h

ey
 f

ai
rl

y 
re

p
re

se
n

t 
h

ow
 w

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

w
o

rk
, o

r 
h

ow
 w

e 
sh

o
u

ld
 w

o
rk

. H
ow

ev
er

, p
eo

p
le

 a
ls

o
 f

el
t 

th
at

 m
o

re
 

co
u

ld
 b

e 
d

o
n

e 
to

 b
ri

n
g

 t
h

em
 t

o
 li

fe
. O

u
r 

fi
ve

 v
al

u
es

 
ar

e 
ex

p
la

in
ed

 b
el

ow
 in

 t
er

m
s 

o
f 

w
h

at
 t

h
ey

 m
ea

n
 t

o
 

st
af

f 
n

ow
, i

n
 2

0
1

7
, a

n
d

 w
h

at
 m

o
re

 w
e 

ca
n

 d
o.

W
or

ki
n

g
 w

ith
 o

u
r 

st
af

f o
n

 th
e 

co
u

n
ci

l’s
 v

al
u

es
 h

el
p

s 
u

s 
p

u
t t

h
os

e 
va

lu
es

 in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ev

er
y 

d
ay

, i
n

 e
ve

ry
 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
e 

d
el

iv
er

, s
o 

th
at

 L
ee

d
s 

ca
n

 h
av

e 
co

n
fi

d
en

ce
 

in
 a

 c
ou

n
ci

l w
h

ic
h

 is
 h

on
es

t, 
fa

ir
, g

oo
d

 w
ith

 m
on

ey
, 

jo
in

ed
 u

p
 a

n
d

 p
ro

u
d

 to
 m

ak
e 

a 
d

iff
er

en
ce

.  

Page 60



You can stay up to date with all our news  
and services throughout the year.

www.leeds.gov.uk

LeedsCC_News

Leedscouncil

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support

Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)

Date 22 June 2017

Subject: Financial Health Monitoring 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues 

1. During the previous municipal year (2016/17), the Scrutiny Board routinely 
monitored the Council’s financial health through regular reports from the Chief 
Finance Officer.  

2. Consideration of the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule and priorities for 2017/18 are 
presented elsewhere on the agenda; however, in anticipation of the Scrutiny 
Board’s desire to maintain an overview of the Council’s financial health, the 
following suite of financial reports are appended for consideration.

 Treasury Management Outturn Report 2016/17
 Financial Performance – Outturn Financial Year ended 31/3/17
 Financial Health Monitoring 2017/18 – Month 2 (May 2017)  

3. The above reports are due to be considered by the Executive Board at its meeting 
on 21 June 2017.  Appropriate senior officers have been invited to the meeting to 
discuss the attached report and address any issues raised by the Scrutiny Board. 

4. As part of the 2017/18 budget setting process – including Scrutiny’s involvement 
and input into that process – the Scrutiny Board may again wish to consider the 
following resolution of Executive Board from its meeting on 8 February 2017:

(c)  That the Executive Board’s thanks be extended to Scrutiny Boards for their 
comments, and in considering the specific recommendations made:

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  (0113) 37 88666

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



i)  The Board agrees that, during 2017/18, there should be further review of fees 
and charges, including revisiting the previous report and recommendations 
from Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources) in order to help ensure that 
the Council maximises its income streams;

 
ii)  The Board agrees that, as part of the development of the ‘Leeds £’ 

approach, there should be a review of joint funding arrangements in order to 
help ensure a consistent and strategic approach that is fair and equitable to 
all partners involved;

 
iii)  The Board agrees that, where any directorate is anticipating a significant 

budget overspend, support be given to the need for the section 151 Officer 
and the relevant Director to work closely and proactively with the relevant 
Scrutiny Board in order to provide suitable assurance that there is robust 
financial risk management and transition planning in place;

 
iv) The Board agrees that for all proposed budget savings, there is a clear 

narrative that explains how the savings will be achieved, including (but not 
limited to) service redesign and service commissioning/ decommissioning;

v)  The Board notes the comments of the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social 
Services, Public Health, NHS) in respect of the Adult Social Care precept 
and the assurances provided through the submitted report on the 
justification and how the additional funding will be utilised.

 Recommendations

4. That the Scrutiny Board considers the attached Executive Board reports and agrees 
any specific scrutiny actions that may be appropriate.  

Background documents1

5.        None.

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works.

Page 64



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources) 

Date: 22 June 2017

Subject: Work Schedule

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

1 Purpose of this report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 
forthcoming municipal year.

2 Main issues

2.1 Further to the discussions held during the meeting, Members are requested to 
translate the decisions made around the chosen topics for Scrutiny into a work 
schedule for the forthcoming municipal year.

2.2 A draft work schedule is attached.  Already included within the draft work schedule 
are the traditional items of Scrutiny work.  These involve recommendation tracking 
and Budget and Policy Framework Plans.  

3. Recommendations

3.1 Members are asked to prioritise the topics for Scrutiny identified during the meeting 
and incorporate these into its work schedule for the forthcoming municipal year (i.e. 
2017/18).

4. Background papers1 

4.1 None used

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  0113 378 8666

Page 65

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY BOARD

(STRATEGY RESOURCES)

2017/18 WORK SCHEDULE

APPENDIX 1

Title Type of Item Notes Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17

Review of Joint Funding 

Arrangements (TBC) 
Inquiry

Agreed by Executive Board 

(Feb 2017)

Terms of reference 

(TBC)

Inquiry area 2 (TBC) Inquiry Scope to be determined

Financial Health 

Monitoring
Performance reviews

Monitoring arrangements 

continue for 2017/18

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

Fees and charges Policy Review
Agreed by Executive Board 

(Feb 2017)

Terms of reference 

(TBC)

Budget proposals Policy Development

Performance Reports 

(TBC)

Performance 

monitoring

Performance reports:      scope 

and timing TBC

Best Council Plan 

progress

Performance 

monitoring

Best Council plan KPIs & 

performance monitoring

Service area 1
Performance 

monitoring
Quarterly report

P
age 67



SCRUTINY BOARD

(STRATEGY RESOURCES)

2017/18 WORK SCHEDULE

APPENDIX 1

Title Type of Item Notes Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17

Service area 2
Performance 

monitoring

Service area 3
Performance 

monitoring

Commissioning
Performance 

monitoring

Commissioning: 

recommendation tracking

Performance 

monitoring

Recommendation tracking: 

Commissioning report

Commissioning: 

Formal response 

Briefings
To be identified as and when 

required

P
age 68



SCRUTINY BOARD

(STRATEGY RESOURCES)

2017/18 WORK SCHEDULE

APPENDIX 1

Title Type of Item

Review of Joint Funding 

Arrangements (TBC) 
Inquiry

Inquiry area 2 (TBC) Inquiry

Financial Health 

Monitoring
Performance reviews

Fees and charges Policy Review

Budget proposals Policy Development

Performance Reports 

(TBC)

Performance 

monitoring

Best Council Plan 

progress

Performance 

monitoring

Service area 1
Performance 

monitoring

Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

TBC TBC TBC TBC

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

TBC TBC TBC

Initial 2018/19 

budget proposals

Performance report 

(TBC)

Quarterly report

P
age 69



SCRUTINY BOARD

(STRATEGY RESOURCES)

2017/18 WORK SCHEDULE

APPENDIX 1

Title Type of Item

Service area 2
Performance 

monitoring

Service area 3
Performance 

monitoring

Commissioning
Performance 

monitoring

Commissioning: 

recommendation tracking

Performance 

monitoring

Briefings

Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

Quarterly report Quarterly report

Quarterly report

6-monthly report 

(Rec. 2)

Commissioning: 

Progress report 

P
age 70



SCRUTINY BOARD

(STRATEGY RESOURCES)

2017/18 WORK SCHEDULE

APPENDIX 1

Title Type of Item

Review of Joint Funding 

Arrangements (TBC) 
Inquiry

Inquiry area 2 (TBC) Inquiry

Financial Health 

Monitoring
Performance reviews

Fees and charges Policy Review

Budget proposals Policy Development

Performance Reports 

(TBC)

Performance 

monitoring

Best Council Plan 

progress

Performance 

monitoring

Service area 1
Performance 

monitoring

Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18

TBC TBC TBC

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

Financial Health 

Monitoring 2017/18

2018/19 Budget 

recommendations

Performance report 

(TBC)

Quarterly report

P
age 71



SCRUTINY BOARD

(STRATEGY RESOURCES)

2017/18 WORK SCHEDULE

APPENDIX 1

Title Type of Item

Service area 2
Performance 

monitoring

Service area 3
Performance 

monitoring

Commissioning
Performance 

monitoring

Commissioning: 

recommendation tracking

Performance 

monitoring

Briefings

Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18

Quarterly report

Quarterly report

6-monthly report 

(Rec. 2)P
age 72


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 22 May 2017
	7 Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 - General Scrutiny Board TOR
	Item 7 - Appendix 2 - Article 06 Scrutiny Boards
	Item 7 - Appendix 3 - Strategy & Resources - relevant delegations

	8 Co-opted Members
	9 Sources of Work
	Item 9 - sources of work - appendix 1 (Vision for Scrutiny)
	Item 9 - sources of work - appendix 2 (Best  Council Plan 2017-18)

	10 Financial Health Monitoring
	11 Work Schedule
	Item 11 - Work schedule (draft outline - June 2017)


